Integrated annual report 2013

Basil Read integrated annual report 2013

C

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

D

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

Divisional review

Management review

Group overview

Our group
ABOUT THIS REPORT
Basil Read’s integrated annual report for the 12 months to
31 December 2013 integrates our economic, social and
environmental results for a group-wide understanding. It also
sets out the challenges and opportunities that lie ahead, and
follows a similar report issued for the year to 31 December
2012. Although this report is primarily prepared for providers of
capital, we trust it will be useful for all stakeholders.
Although the group is now over 60 years old, rapid expansion in
recent years makes data comparability quite challenging in
certain areas. Where practical, we are implementing common
data standards. Following the sale of the TWP engineering group
in March 2013, we incorporated the retained elements of TWP
into Basil Read’s group performance reporting. Once a groupwide reporting platform is more mature, this report may be
externally assured for non-financial disclosure.
BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The board acknowledges its responsibility for the integrity of
Basil Read’s integrated annual report. The audit committee
reviewed the integrated annual report and recommended its
approval to the board. Although the process of integrated
reporting is still evolving, Basil Read has integrated its
sustainability and financial reporting. Continuous efforts are
made to incorporate best practice and improve our level
of reporting.
The board reviews and finally approves the content of the
integrated annual report prior to publication.

Lester Peteni
Chairman

Marius Heyns
CEO

26 May 2014
DISCLAIMER
Opinions expressed in this report are, by nature, subject to
known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Changing
information or circumstances may cause the actual results,
plans and objectives of Basil Read to differ materially from
those expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements.
Financial forecasts and data in this report are estimates which
at times are based on reports prepared by experts who, in
turn, may have relied on management estimates. Undue
reliance should not be placed on such opinions, forecasts
or data. No representation is made on the completeness
or correctness of opinions, forecasts or data in this report.
Neither the company nor any of its affiliates, advisers or
representatives accept any responsibility for any loss arising
from the use of any opinion expressed, forecast or data in this
report. Forward-looking statements apply only as of the date
on which they are made and the company does not undertake
any obligation to publicly update or revise any of its opinions
or forward-looking statements, whether to reflect new data
or future events or circumstances. The financial information
on which the forward-looking statements are based has not
been audited nor reported on by the company’s independent
external auditors.
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DIVE

Triple bottom-line reporting remains a cornerstone of our
commitment to entrench global best practices in all operations.
Basil Read therefore reports on all managed operations against
the guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative (G3), and the
content of this report is self-declared at GRI level C. This
report also complies with the disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the King
report on governance for South Africa (King III) and the listings
requirements of the JSE.
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VERSITY

Divisional review

For further information please contact:
communications@basilread.co.za
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We have referred to our four strategic
themes throughout our report:
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Our year in review

HIGHLIGHTS

▶ St Helena contract on track – R3,1 billion
to design, build, operate and transfer an
international airport
▶ Order book up 22% despite challenging
markets
▶ Based on 2011 carbon footprint, ongoing
reductions in resource consumption.
LOWLIGHTS

▶ One fatality recorded for the year

(2012: one)

SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

ISO 14001 environmental
certification maintained for
all operating divisions

Annual investment in
training and development is
building a formidable pool
of skills across the group

▶ Labour unrest affected mining

division’s results.

Excellent safety record,
despite sites in many
remote areas
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Financial highlights

Cash on hand

R6,3 billion

R1,2 billion

(2012: R5,5 billion)

(2012: R1,0 billion)

Profit after tax from continuing operations

Total debt

R100,5 million

R426,4 million

(2012: loss of R196,1 million)

(2012: R890,4 million)

Earnings

Order book

R310,7 million

R12,5 billion

(2012: loss of R170,4 million)

(2012: R10,2 billion)

Summarised financial and
shareholder information
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Five-year review
for the year ended 31 December 2013

INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue
Contracting
Other
Contracting and other costs
Other admin and operating overheads*
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
Other income/(expenses)
Amortisation of intangible assets

2013#
R’000

2012#
R’000

6 304 580
6 086 729
217 851
(5 398 511)
(520 570)
(324 292)
252 342
(860)

6 834 146
6 608 258
225 888
(5 768 021)
(902 422)
(307 488)
25 230
(1 990)

6 230 456
6 000 764
229 692
(5 044 751)
(651 556)
(267 039)
24 621
(10 785)

(120 545)
–
(77 133)
(197 678)

280 946
(32 403)
(36 007)
212 536

2011
R’000

2010
R’000
5 389 769
5 196 208
193 561
(4 237 060)
(522 838)
(221 325)
252
(39 303)

2009
R’000
4 662 492
4 421 007
241 485
(3 766 044)
(283 435)
(183 197)
(578)
(20 488)

Operating profit/(loss)
Impairment of goodwill
Net finance income/(costs)
Profit/(loss) before share of associates
Share of profit of investments accounted
for using the equity method

312 689
–
13 670
326 359
45 166

44 812

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

371 525
(90 055)

(152 866)
(16 235)

216 287
(81 580)

371 588
(119 370)

411 779
(140 869)

Net profit/(loss) for the year

281 470

(169 101)

134 707

252 218

270 910

Net profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

310 742
(29 272)

(170 384)
1 283

140 979
(6 272)

260 753
(8 535)

274 270
(3 360)

Net profit/(loss) for the year

281 470

(169 101)

134 707

252 218

270 910

19 936
–
22 572

65 000
60 539
26 607

42 508

152 146

* The following non-recurring charges have been
included in “Other admin and operating overheads”
in the current and prior years:

Provision for Competition Commission
Share-based payment
Write down of development land
#

Includes the combined results of continued and discontinued operations.
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3 751

369 495
–
619
370 114
1 474

408 750
–
3 019
411 769
10
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2010
R’000

2009
R’000

235,97
235,97
88,16

(136,54)
(136,54)
(130,84)

113,88
113,88
139,65

210,63
210,63
209,25

317,15
316,49
333,12

88,16
175,00
4,78
4,96

(130,84)
–
(1,16)
(1,76)

139,65
30,00
4,04
4,51

209,25
42,00
5,39
6,86

332,43
58,00
7,82
8,77

Revenue and operating margin

Headline earnings per share
and dividend per share

R’000

cents

7 000 000

10%

400

6 000 000

8%

300

5 000 000

6%

4 000 000

4%

3 000 000

2%

2 000 000

0%

1 000 000

-2%

-100

-4%

-200

Sustainability

Includes the combined results of continued and discontinued operations.

200

Summarised financial and
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#

2011
R’000

Divisional review

INCOME STATEMENT continued
STATISTICS
Earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
Headline earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
Diluted headline earnings/(loss) per
share (cents)
Dividend per share (cents)
Interest cover (times)
Operating margin (%)

2012#
R’000

Corporate
governance

2013#
R’000

100

0

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Revenue*
Operating margin*

0

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Headline earnings per share
Dividend per share

* Adjusted for the results of discontinued operations.
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Five-year review continued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Development land
Contract debtors and retentions
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets held for sale
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Non-controlling interests
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other borrowings
Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to customers
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other current liabilities
Bank overdraft
Liabilities directly associated with
non-current assets classified as held for sale
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

2009
R’000

1 914 321
1 138 147
411 829
364 345
2 804 193
41 958
363 120
974 237
166 753
1 258 125
–
4 718 514

2 016 019
1 272 127
412 689
331 203
2 598 877
81 236
402 375
883 617
152 962
1 078 687
773 540
5 388 436

2 152 469
1 166 213
799 995
186 261
2 680 501
42 857
398 686
1 308 188
214 733
716 037
66 767
4 899 737

1 854 008
873 390
843 183
137 435
2 430 905
47 700
351 938
898 323
121 394
1 011 550
92 558
4 377 471

1 742 164
781 855
832 667
127 642
2 442 783
18 890
280 718
813 170
83 966
1 246 039
–
4 184 947

1 909 465
(38 207)
309 768
263 086
–
46 682
2 537 488
1 043 180
1 095 096
163 314
180 257
55 641

1 799 554
24 768
376 266
314 187
13 250
48 829
2 992 185
1 120 153
1 079 113
562 980
198 086
31 853

1 814 820
22 901
592 847
519 234
19 649
53 964
2 469 062
1 079 938
513 315
508 071
305 430
62 308

1 708 885
6 404
439 156
337 658
26 188
75 310
2 219 938
970 223
583 399
339 733
293 689
32 894

1 500 916
(1 212)
500 465
350 852
79 357
70 256
2 184 778
997 903
484 581
369 464
308 596
24 234

–
4 718 514

195 663
5 388 436

107
4 899 737

3 088
4 377 471

–
4 184 947

Group overview
Management review
131 686
33 608
1 450,01
1 137,28
1,11
16,76
6,74
837
0,14

131 686
33 608
1 366,55
1 053,16
0,87
(9,43)
(2,66)
1 216
0,18

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

2009
R’000

123 798
–
1 465,95
819,74
1,09
8,00
7,36
1 265
0,29

123 798
–
1 380,38
699,29
1,10
16,25
11,87
1 270
0,21

123 798
–
1 212,39
539,79
1,12
23,95
17,08
2 475
0,29

Divisional review

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION continued
STATISTICS
Number of ordinary shares in issue (’000)
Number of “A” ordinary shares in issue (’000)
Net asset value per share (cents)
Tangible net asset value per share (cents)
Current ratio (times)
Return on shareholders’ interests (%)
Return on total average tangible assets (%)
Average price per share (cents)
Debt-equity ratio (times)*

2012
R’000

Corporate
governance

2013
R’000

Cash on hand and debt-equity ratio

cents

R’000

2 000

1 400 000

35

1 200 000

30

1 400

1 000 000

25

1 200

800 000

20

800

600 000

15

600

400 000

10

200 000

5

1 800
1 600

Times

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Market capitalisation and
tangible net asset value per share

Sustainability

* Debt-equity ratio is calculated using total non-current borrowings.

1 000

400
200
0

2009

2010

2011

2012

Market capitalisation
Tangible NAV

2013

0

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

0

Cash on hand
Debt-equity ratio
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Our organisational overview

OUR GROUP

VISION

Basil Read Holdings Limited is listed under heavy
construction in the industrial sector of the JSE
Limited (JSE). The group and its subsidiaries are
active in civil engineering projects, road construction,
building, mixed integrated housing developments,
property development, opencast mining, and
engineering design, procurement and construction,
as well as related services. Following the sale of the
bulk of TWP’s operations in March 2013, Basil Read
operates primarily in South Africa and other selected
African markets.

To build an international construction,
engineering and related services group
with a focus on emerging markets,
operating in the mining, energy and
infrastructure sectors.

Backed by over six decades of construction
expertise, Basil Read has become synonymous
with excellence in the spheres of construction,
engineering, mining and property development.

VALUES

Today we stand out as a proud symbol of quality,
service excellence and professional integrity, both
in South Africa and beyond our borders.
For more than 60 years, Basil Read has played its
part in building the foundations of South Africa for all
its citizens. Every South African has been touched by
Basil Read at some point – from homes to clinics and
hospitals, schools, roads and highway systems.
We are proud of what we offer all stakeholders, and
we believe we are cementing our legacy.

8
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MISSION

Building legacies.
▶ Value our people
▶ Quality and service excellence
▶ Integrity, honesty and respect
▶ Professionalism and accountability.

Divisional review
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Corporate
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Sustainability

Construction
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Group overview

Group structure
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Our geographical operational footprint

AFRIC

Our growing African
presence reflects the
group’s steady growth
and ability to replicate
its business model in
similar markets.
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Mauritania
Senegal
Guinea
Sierra
Leone

Nigeria
Ghana
Uganda

Divisional review

Kenya

Democratic
Republic of
Congo

Tanzania

Angola

Malawi

Zimbabwe Mozambique
Namibia

Corporate
governance

St Helena
island

Zambia

Botswana
Swaziland

Lesotho
South Africa

– St Helena airport project
– Olifants River water resource
development project

Mining

– Jwaneng Cut 8 diamond mine
– Tschudi copper mine

– Tertiary milling plant at Two Rivers
platinum plant
– Barberton tailings retreatment plant
– MetroWind van Stadens wind farm

Developments

– Cosmo City
– Savanna City
– Klipriver Business Park

CURRENT COUNTRIES
OF OPERATION

PREVIOUS COUNTRIES
OF OPERATION

Botswana
Mozambique
Namibia
Nigeria
South Africa
St Helena island
Uganda

Democratic Republic of Congo
Lesotho
Malawi
Sierra Leone
Swaziland
Uganda
Zambia
Zimbabwe
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Angola
Ghana
Guinea
Kenya
Mauritania
Senegal
Tanzania

Construction

Engineering

Sustainability

TARGETED COUNTRIES

FLAGSHIP PROJECTS
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Our year in review

January

February

Roadcrete awarded
R279 million Vaalpenspruit
to Winburg contract for
rehabilitation of National
Route 5, Section 4.

Roadcrete awarded
R637 million Standerton to
Greylingstad contract for
rehabilitation of National
Route 23, Section 2.

March
Basil Read concludes
the disposal of TWP
for R877 million.

June
The N12 Tom Jones roads
contract received
commendations for Civil
Engineering Structure and
Innovative Construction at
the 2013 Fulton Awards, the
most prestigious awards of
the Concrete Society of
Southern Africa.

March

March
Malibongwe Ridge breaks
ground with a development
value of R1,85 billion over
five years.

June

Basil Read Buildings awarded
a R226 million contract to
construct a new 176-bed
hospital in Centurion for
Mediclinic.

Settlement agreement
reached for R95 million
with Competition
Commission.

June
Basil Read’s results for
the six months to June
demonstrate a return to
profitability with headline
earnings of 43,69 cents
per share.

August
Matomo awarded contract to
build a 60 MW AC solar
photovoltaic plant close to
Boshof, Orange Free State in
joint venture with Spanish
company, Isolux Corsan.

September
Basil Read Mining awarded a five-year load-and-haul
contract by Weatherly International plc valued at
R1,8 billion at the Tschudi copper mine in Namibia.

September

November

Additional work is
awarded at the
St Helena airport
project – design and
build of a permanent
wharf in Rupert’s Bay
valued at over
GBP15 million.

Stakeholders are invited
to celebrate key milestones
reached in the MetroWind
van Stadens wind farm
project and to view one
of the first wind turbines
to be commissioned in
South Africa.

November
Savanna City officially
launched on 20 November
2013.Valued at R24,5 billion,
this development is located
in the Midvaal Municipality.
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December
Basil Read finishes the year with revenue of
R6,3 billion and headline earnings of 88,16 cents
per share.The balance sheet is stronger with
R1,2 billion in cash and reduced debt of
R426 million. With an order book of R12,5 billion,
the group is well placed for the year ahead.
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▶ Bridges
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rehabilitation
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multiple seam
mining

▶H
 ard-rock selective
mining

▶ Materials handling
▶ S pecialised drill and

construct (EPC)
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construction
management
(EPCM)

for low and
middle-income
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transfer (BOOT)

partnerships (PPPs)
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Divisional review

blast services

SUPPORT SERVICES

and disposals

▶ P lant maintenance

▶ Legal
▶ Group insurance
▶ Group SHEQ
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commercial
and risk

▶ E stimating and

technical services

Human resources
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▶ Plant acquisitions

Commercial
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Our operations

For over 60 years, Basil Read has been building foundations across
South Africa. Today, the group plays a leading role in the country’s
construction, mining and engineering industries, enhancing its
reputation for quality and value.

Construction

Group

Mining

OVERVIEW

OVERVIEW

OVERVIEW

Strong organic and acquisitive growth in
recent years has made Basil Read a formidable
competitor in its core sectors. Increasingly, intragroup synergies enable constituent companies to
offer their clients a comprehensive service, while
securing additional work for the group.
Following this rapid growth, and the prevailing
downturn in the construction cycle, Basil Read
is consolidating activities and operations into a
cohesive, focused group by concentrating on
its core skills. As part of this review, the major
portion of the TWP group was sold in the
reporting period.

This division incorporates Basil Read’s civil
engineering, roads and building operations.
Proven technical and financial engineering skills
have reinforced our position among the leaders
in this industry.
Major works for private and public sector
clients cover a broad spectrum of civil
engineering, road and building projects,
including earthworks, bridges, pipelines,
infrastructure, harbour and marine works,
industrial plants, sports facilities, roads, highways,
airports and related industrial activities.
The group also adds value through innovative
packaging: build-operate-transfer (BOT) contracts,
design and construct, and alternative solutions
tailored to meet client requirements.
Using a total quality approach to projects, the
Basil Read construction division adds value
through unique turnkey solutions, innovative
construction methods, effective cost control,
design alternatives and financing options.

Basil Read’s mining division incorporates opencast
mining operations and the group’s drilling and
blasting activities, housed in subsidiary Blasting &
Excavating (B&E).
Basil Read Mining specialises in opencast
contract mining; mine spoils rehabilitation; bulk
earthmoving; thin, thick and multiple seam mining;
hard-rock selective mining and materials handling.
B&E provides drilling and blasting services to
the southern African construction, quarrying
and mining industries. It is the largest company
of its kind and the major regional user of
explosives in these industries.
Basil Read Mining has operated medium and
long-term contracts for gold, platinum, nickel,
iron, diamond and coal mining clients across
Africa, using the latest operating equipment
and innovative mining techniques to satisfy their
evolving needs.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

Revenue

Revenue

R6,3 billion

R4,6 billion

R935,4 million

(2012: R5,5 billion)

(2012: R4,0 billion)

(2012: R1 billion)

Operating profit

Operating profit

Operating profit

R67,6 million

R12,1 million

R58,9 million

(2012: loss of R170,9 million)

(2012: loss of R277,2 million)

(2012: R82,4 million)

SALIENT FEATURES

SALIENT FEATURES

SALIENT FEATURES

▶ 
Group returned to profitability despite
tough trading conditions
▶ Debt reduced by R464 million to
R426,4 million
▶ Sale of TWP to WorleyParsons concluded
in March 2013.

▶ 
Competition Commission inquiry finalised

▶ Results affected by labour unrest and
unprotected strike actions
▶ Significant new awards grew order book
to R3,9 billion
▶ Division active in South Africa, Botswana
and Namibia.
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resulting in final penalty of R94,9 million
▶ 
St Helena contract on schedule and on
budget; additional work awarded
▶ 
Continued focus on rest of African continent
to offset weak local market.

Group overview
Management review

OVERVIEW

OVERVIEW

Basil Read’s engineering division complements
the activities of the group’s construction, mining
and developments divisions, adding a wealth
of specialised in-house expertise and experience.
Within this division is the group’s engineering,
procurement and construction (EPC) company,
Matomo, an important part of the group’s
service offering.
The division is also home to LYT Architecture, the
most diversified design and architectural practice
in South Africa with significant skill and experience
in the design and delivery of a variety of projects,
both in South Africa and abroad.
This division meets the growing demand for
companies that offer turnkey services and
specialist skills for construction projects.

This division is strategically significant to the
broader group: while the nature of many of its
contracts is an integral part of our social licence
to operate, the division also provides secondary
work for group companies.
From affordable housing developments to mixeduse residential estates and light industrial parks,
Basil Read is working with national, provincial
and local government, parastatals and nongovernmental organisations to support national
imperatives focused on improving the quality of
life of South Africa’s people.
Basil Read’s flagship project in this sector is
Cosmo City – already a vibrant community
of over 11 000 families enjoying affordable,
quality homes surrounded by schools, churches,
clinics, shopping centres and parks. By the end
of 2013, Cosmo City had become home to some
60 000 residents. Similar projects are well along
the regulatory approval process.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

Revenue

Divisional review

Developments

Corporate
governance

Engineering

(2012: R25,0 million)

Operating profit

Operating loss

R12,9 million

R16,3 million

(2012: R54,0 million)

(2012: loss of R30,0 million)

SALIENT FEATURES

SALIENT FEATURES

▶ D
 ivision’s results affected by delays in the
awarding of EPC contracts
▶ Reputation as quality EPC service provider
gaining traction
▶ Architectural services results improved
reflecting better conditions in active sectors.

▶ L ack of sales at Rolling Hills Leisure Estate
resulted in R22,6 million writedown
▶ Savanna City broke ground in November 2013
▶ Division expanded into top structure
development.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

(2012: R466,1 million)

Sustainability

R676,4 million R69,9 million

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

15

VALUE C
CREATING SUSTAINABLE VALUE
Basil Read’s business is to build the roads,
bridges and power stations on which our
economy and our society depend. Our
impact, however, goes way beyond
infrastructure. Throughout this report, we
elaborate on the achievements, challenges
and disappointments of our social and
environmental performance for the review
period in creating value for all our
stakeholders.

Intellectual – achieving client objectives
and managing subcontractors
Financial – honouring funder
expectations and rewarding
shareholders
Human – effective leadership of
well-trained, disciplined workforce
Manufactured – managing raw
materials, parts, products, plant
and equipment
Social – building solid relationships
with all stakeholders
Natural – managing our impact.

Inputs

16

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

Activities
• Core – project execution across
construction, earthworks, drilling
andblasting, opencast mining and
engineering: pipeline development
Supporting – managing ﬁnance and
capital, business processes, strategic
planning, human resources and SHEQ,
suppliers and subcontractors and
stakeholder relations.

Corporate
governance

Divisional review

Management review

Group overview

CREATED

Impacts – waste water, solid and
hazardous material, noise, dust, carbon
emissions and land disturbance.

Outcomes
Sustainability

Services – turnkey approach from
design to handover across construction
and engineering ﬁelds

Our business activities support
economic and social development
while our business practices
concentrate on limiting and
addressing any impacts.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Outputs
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Stakeholder engagement

As the concept of sustainability becomes
entrenched in the wider Basil Read group,
management is focusing on a more formalised
stakeholder identification and engagement
process. While we have long been committed
to complete transparency for our
shareholders, we are extending this to
all stakeholders, acknowledging that their
input and support are invaluable in our
continued progress.
As part of this process, during the year, we
continued to hold open days and roadshows.
These were extremely well received by all
stakeholders. The open days involve members
of our executive management team hosting a

Regulators
Shareholders,
analysts and
potential
investors
Local citizens
and NGOs

Trade
unions

Equally, Basil Read is committed to the
transformation of the South African
construction industry – aiming for an industry
that is more representative of national
demographics. As such, we comply with both
the Department of Trade and Industry’s
broad-based black economic empowerment
targets as well as the construction sector
scorecard (page 110).

Government
and local
authorities
Clients

Suppliers

Partners

Media and
interest
groups

Employees
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mixed group of stakeholders at a range of
sites in our various divisions, giving them
the opportunity to interact with Basil Read
management and learn more about the
group’s operations.
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▶▶ Email
▶▶ Annual negotiations.

▶▶ Remuneration
▶▶ Work conditions.

▶▶ Wage negotiations conducted through
centralised bargaining council
▶▶ Our health and safety record underscores the
ongoing attention to keeping our people and
contractors safe and healthy in the workplace
▶▶ Compliance is a minimum standard – our aim is
to exceed these levels to best practice.

Local citizens
and NGOs

▶▶ Continual engagement
through divisional
community teams given
site-specific issues.

▶▶ Site-specific, but
generally focused on
any impact (social or
environmental)
▶▶ Job opportunities.

▶▶ Any impacts speedily addressed
▶▶ Local employment created, with on-the-job
training where practical
▶▶ Key skills are critical in our industry and not
always locally available. We aim to use local skills
or train community members wherever possible.

Shareholders,
analysts and
potential investors

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ JSE SENS
▶▶ Roadshows biannually
▶▶ One-on-one meetings
▶▶ Golf days
▶▶ Integrated annual report
▶▶ Posted communications.

▶▶ Returns on investment
▶▶ Gearing
▶▶ Loss-making contracts
▶▶ Succession planning
▶▶ Key metrics
▶▶ Executive remuneration
▶▶ Governance.

▶▶ Exceeded targeted return on equity
▶▶ Debt significantly reduced to debt equity level
of 13,8%
▶▶ Tender processes enhanced, current contracts
winding down
▶▶ Experienced interim management in place
▶▶ Improved disclosure on key metrics
▶▶ Performance based, fully disclosed
▶▶ Robust governance structures and full relevant
compliance to King III disclosed
▶▶ Transparent disclosure, meaningful projections
to enable informed decisions.

Regulators (including
JSE, Competition
Commission)

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ Statutory reports
▶▶ Presentations (as required).

▶▶ Industry collaboration
▶▶ Compliance.

▶▶ Full cooperation with enquiry, fine paid
▶▶ Accurate reports submitted on time
▶▶ Compliance is a minimum standard – our aim
is to exceed these levels to best practice.

Government
and local authorities

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ Statutory reports.

▶▶ Compliance.

▶▶ Accurate reports submitted on time
▶▶ Compliance is a minimum standard – our aim
is to exceed these levels to best practice.

Clients

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ Newsflashes newsletters
▶▶ Golf days.

▶▶ Service levels
▶▶ Quality control
▶▶ Innovation
▶▶ BEE credentials.

▶▶ Meet and exceed contractual obligations
▶▶ Continue building on the group’s reputation
for quality and innovation
▶▶ Basil Read is rated as a 125% B-BBEE
contributor and value-adding supplier.

Suppliers

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ Golf days
▶▶ Value chain management.

▶▶ Local procurement.

▶▶ We strive to do business with local suppliers
that meet our procurement criteria and
quality standards.

Partners

▶▶ Open days
▶▶ Golf days.

▶▶ Inconsistencies with
policies and procedures
between partners.

▶▶ Breakaway sessions at start of partnership to
manage expectations.

▶▶ Press releases
▶▶ Roadshows
▶▶ Management interaction.

▶▶ Insufficient timeous
information released
▶▶ Misrepresentation of
information provided.

▶▶ We continue to nurture relationships with key
media and interest groups
▶▶ Release of information centralised to avoid
misrepresentation
▶▶ Media communications policy in place.

Media and
interest groups
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Group overview

Trade unions

Management review

▶▶ Competitive remuneration structures
▶▶ Ongoing training and development – 20% of
workforce trained in 2013
▶▶ Open and continuous dialogue
▶▶ Building relationships based on mutual trust
and respect.

Divisional review

Response and approach

▶▶ Remuneration
▶▶ Personal development,
job-specific training
▶▶ Site briefings.

Corporate
governance

Issues

▶▶ Management road trips
▶▶ Recognition functions
▶▶ Wellness days
▶▶ Newsletters/magazines
▶▶ Intranet
▶▶ Newsflashes
▶▶ Email.

Sustainability

Engagement

Employees
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Key stakeholders

Our strategic thinking

Understanding that Basil Read’s future must be built on its current priorities and environment, we critically reviewed our strategy
in 2012 to build a stable platform for growth. This followed a comprehensive analysis of our business drivers, internal and external
factors affecting performance, lessons learned in recent years and an independent risk audit.
Given that we are operating in a depressed construction market, with limited differentiation between major companies, we have
concentrated on our product offering across the value chain and prudently pursued our geographical diversification strategy.
Our strategy is based on a long-term view. In our industry, material issues vary from year to year so, for reporting purposes, there will not always
be a material issue directly linked to a strategic focus area. However, our strategy is continually reviewed against material issues as they arise.

Focus area: desired outcome

Material issue

Risk

Business processes

▶▶ Not meeting business targets.

Energy – cost, outages, security
of supply

▶▶ Cost of electricity has risen significantly in
recent years
▶▶ Every prolonged power outage translates
into lost production.

Water – scarcity and security of supply

▶▶ Shortages affect project deadlines.

Safety and health

▶▶ Loss of productivity, skills and morale.

Skills shortage – scarcity of key skills

▶▶ Loss of expertise affects ability to
complete contracts
▶▶ Shortage of suitable candidates to meet
BEE objectives.

Compliance – licence to operate

▶▶ Inability to tender on large projects.

Stakeholder relationships

▶▶ Lack of cooperation can affect project
deadlines.

Social responsibility

▶▶ Stakeholder activism can hinder project
deadlines.

Consolidate and rationalise

▶▶ Strategic and structural
▶▶ Broad-based construction solutions provider
▶▶ Leveraging skills across the group
▶▶ Focused on consistency
▶▶ Consolidate and rationalise.

Leadership through operational excellence
▶▶ Operational management
▶▶ Re-engineer end-to-end business processes
▶▶ Optimise organisational design.

Leadership through operational excellence
▶▶ Training and development
▶▶ Risk management
▶▶ Project financial control
▶▶ Operational execution.

Consolidate and rationalise

▶▶ Financial performance
▶▶ Target 15% return on equity
▶▶ Conservative approach to capital expenditure,
debt and liquidity management.

Work ethic and pride

▶▶ Work procurement
▶▶ Selective tendering with focus on margin
▶▶ Focus on entire value chain.

Image and reputation

▶▶ Improve stakeholder engagement.
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Group overview

▶▶ Sale of TWP for R877 million – profit of R288 million
▶▶ Managed distressed and unprofitable contracts to minimise loss and achieve efficient
completion by December 2013
▶▶ World-class airport design and construct capability with St Helena airport project
▶▶ Improved order book from R10,2 billion to R12,5 billion by December 2013
▶▶ Competition Commission claim settled, first payment made under extended terms.
▶▶ Quantum Leap business improvement programme launched
▶▶ Management strengthened in key positions.

▶▶ Basil Read Energy is making progress with
alternative and renewable energy supply. This
offers both a secure supply and business
opportunities for the group

▶▶ After determining the group’s carbon footprint, we have set measurable targets to
reduce our resource consumption by 10% each year by the end of 2015.

▶▶ Basil Read Energy has identified hydropower as
a key development area and invested in two
potential projects to be submitted under
government’s renewable energy programme

▶▶ Recycling and reuse initiatives across the group with a target of reducing consumption.

▶▶ By embedding world-class safety and health
practices across the group, Basil Read becomes
a preferred employer

Targets for 2013:
▶▶ DIFR 0,00 – actual 0,12
▶▶ Fatalities 0 – actual 1
Targets for 2014:
▶▶ DIFR 0,00
▶▶ Fatalities 0.

▶▶ Developing and retaining a world-class
construction and engineering team offers
competitive advantages in an industry where
contracts are often awarded on skill

▶▶ Multi-million rand programme focused on specific skills – 1 288 people completed
77 445 hours of training in 2013, 20% of workforce.

Corporate
governance

▶▶ Successful business attracts new shareholders
and clients, as well as key skills

Sustainability

▶▶ Achieved 16,8% return on equity
▶▶ Debt reduced from R890 million to R426 million by December 2013 in line
with strategy.

▶▶ Aiming to exceed targets in both government’s empowerment scorecard and
construction sector scorecard. Good progress being made (page 110).

▶▶ Mutual benefits ensure willing cooperation and
can facilitate the award of tenders

▶▶ Successful roadshow on the group’s MetroWind van Stadens wind project
▶▶ Stakeholders engaged during Competition Commission inquiry to rebuild trust.

▶▶ Social responsibility has important multiplier
effect in creating value – for every job we
create, an estimated 10 people benefit

▶▶ Stakeholder engagement, corporate citizenship and ethical conduct are entrenched
principles in our group (page 18).
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

▶▶ Tenders valued at R60 billion priced in 2013, with 10% strike rate
▶▶ Multi-disciplinary St Helena airport project used as a model for future negotiated
works, particularly across the rest of Africa.

▶▶ Contributing to national transformation targets

Management review

Progress in 2013

Divisional review

Opportunity
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Basil Read’s governance structures
Our board
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E. PC Baloyi

C. Charles Peter Davies (67)
Independent non-executive director, chairman of remuneration
committee, member of audit committee, member of chairman’s
nomination and investment committee
Charles spent his career in the insurance industry, retiring as
chief executive officer of Norwich Holdings in 1999. He currently
serves on various boards in a non-executive capacity. He was
appointed to the board in July 2006.

D. Nopasika Vuyelwa Lila (45)
Independent non-executive director, chairman of
audit committee
Qualifications: HDip Acc (University of Natal), CA(SA)
Nopasika is chief financial officer of the Eskom Pension and
Provident Fund, a non-executive director of the Johannesburg
Development Agency and chairs its audit committee. She is
also a member of the audit committee of the Department of
International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO) and National
Arts Festival. Her vast experience and areas of interest cover
finance, corporate governance, management, the retirement
industry, strategic issues, and training and development. She
was appointed to the board in August 2012.

E. Paul Cambo Baloyi (58)
Independent non-executive director, member of audit
committee, chairman of risk committee
Qualifications: MBA (University of Manchester), Senior Executive
Programme (Harvard Business School), Management Development
Programme (University of Stellenbosch)
Paul has over 25 years’ banking experience and was previously the
chief executive officer and managing director of the Development
Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) as well as chief executive officer
of the DBSA Development Fund since July 2006. Prior to that, he
was managing director of Nedbank Africa and a divisional director
of Nedbank SA. He currently serves as non-executive director on
various boards and was appointed to the board in November 2012.

F. Andrew Conway Gaorekwe Molusi (52)
Non-executive director, member of social, ethics and
transformation committee, member of risk committee
Qualifications: MA (Notre Dame University, Ind. USA),
B Journalism (Rhodes University)
Connie is currently chairman of the SIOC Community
Development Trust and chief executive officer of Kabo Capital.
He has 25 years’ board experience as well as South African
business knowledge and previously held the position

Qualiﬁcations: BCom (Memorial University of Newfoundland,
Canada)
Thabiso is a founding member and director of Amabubesi
Investments (Pty) Ltd. He has been chief executive officer of The
Don Group since acquiring a significant shareholding in 2000, and
has been involved in the hotel industry for over 15 years. He is
also a founding member and chairman of the Tourism Business
Council of South Africa. He was appointed to the board in
July 2006.

I. Amanda Claire Wightman (40)*
Interim chief financial officer, group financial manager
Qualiﬁcations: BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)
Amanda has more than 20 years of work experience. She
spent five years at AECI Limited in their treasury department,
culminating in her appointment as treasury accountant. She also
worked for Standard Bank for seven years, where she completed
her financial management (TOPP) articles and gained valuable
experience in their Africa division. Amanda joined Basil Read in
December 2005 as group financial manager and has been involved
in the group’s annual audited financial results for the past eight
years. In addition to her current role, she has been appointed as
interim chief financial officer.

J. Terence Desmond Hughes (65)#
Interim chief executive officer
Qualiﬁcations: PEng (UK) MSPE, Pr CPM, MSE Civil, ACIOB
Des has 43 years’ experience in the construction industry, the
last 13 of which have been spent with the Basil Read group. He
started his career at GT Hemingway Consulting Engineers – Cape,
subsequently held various positions with ZMG Consulting Engineers
– London (UK), Murray & Stewart – Cape, and LTA Building –
Cape before joining Basil Read Building – Cape in 1996. Since 2004,
Des has been the managing director of the developments division
responsible for the development of mixed-use, integrated new
towns throughout South Africa. He has been appointed as interim
chief executive officer with effect from 1 June 2014.

K. Marius Lodewucus Heyns (54)
Chief executive officer, managing director
Qualiﬁcations: BSc Civ Eng, PrEng, MSAICE
Marius has 35 years’ experience in the construction industry
across the full spectrum of activities. He has held various
executive management positions for leading public and private
companies in the sector and was reappointed at Basil Read
in October 2004 in his current position. Marius tendered his
resignation in March 2014 and will leave the group at the end
of May 2014.
* Interim appointments. Invitees to board meetings.
#
Incoming board member effective 1 June 2014.
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Group overview
Management review

H. Thabiso Alexander Tlelai (50)
Non-executive director, chairman of social, ethics and
transformation committee, member of remuneration committee

Divisional review

Qualifications: BA Hons (University of Natal), MPhil (Sussex
University), DPhil (University of Sussex)
Claudia has worked in the economic development field for
over 20 years, in various positions responsible for management
and financing of infrastructure projects, sourcing and closing of
investment transactions, and economic development consulting.
She has also worked on the Department of Trade and Industry’s
development corridor programme, which originated a number
of priority infrastructure investment projects in South Africa and
the SADC region. Claudia currently serves as a non-executive
director on the board of the Development Bank of Southern
Africa (DBSA), and is a member of the Presidential BEE Advisory
Council. She was appointed to the board in August 2012.

Qualiﬁcations: BCom, BCompt (Hons) (Unisa), CA(SA), HDip Tax
Law (University of Johannesburg)
Sango is a founding member of Amabubesi Investments (Pty) Ltd,
and serves on the boards of listed companies and public sector
entities. He was a founding member of SizweNtsalubaGobodo and
Neotel. He was appointed to the board in July 2006.

Corporate
governance

B. Dr Claudia Estelle Manning (47)
Independent non-executive director, member of social, ethics
and transformation committee, member of remuneration
committee

G. Sango Siviwe Ntsaluba (53)
Non-executive director, member of audit committee

Sustainability

Qualifications: BSc (Building Science) (University of Cape Town)
Lester has numerous years’ experience in various roles at
construction and property development companies, and was a
founding member of Thebe Investment Corporation. He was
appointed to the board in July 2006 and as chairman in May 2009.

of executive director and group chief executive officer of Johnnic
Communications Limited (Johncom) from 2000 to 2006. He
currently serves as director on the boards of African Media and
Entertainment Limited (chairman), Caxton and CTP Publishers and
Printers Limited and Continental Coal Limited. He was appointed
to the board in March 2013.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

A. Sindile Lester Leslie Peteni (69)
Independent non-executive director, chairman, chairman of the
chairman’s nomination and investment committee

Basil Read’s governance structures continued
Executive management committee

C. AC Wightman

D. OJP Giot

J. A Naidoo

A. ML Heyns

I. A Ndoni

B. TD Hughes

F. BS Morton

H. N Milne

G. K Mapasa
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E. G Hellhoff

C. Amanda Claire Wightman (40)
Interim chief financial officer, group financial manager
Qualiﬁcations: BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)
Amanda has more than 20 years of work experience. She
spent five years at AECI Limited in their treasury department,
culminating in her appointment as treasury accountant. She also
worked for Standard Bank for seven years, where she completed
her financial management (TOPP) articles and gained valuable
experience in their Africa division. Amanda joined Basil Read in
December 2005 as group financial manager and has been involved
in the group’s annual audited financial results for the past eight
years. In addition to her current role, she has been appointed as
interim chief financial officer.

D. Olivier Jean-Paul Giot (49)
Executive director: subsidiaries*
Qualiﬁcations: BCom (IFG Commercial School, Paris)
Olivier has more than 20 years of experience in the construction
industry, with a particular focus on finance, human resources and
strategy. He started his career with the Bouygues construction
group in France and was seconded to Basil Read in 2003, where
he has held various roles at an executive management level. He
became a permanent employee of the group in April 2014 in his
current role.

E. Guenther Hellhoff (57)
Executive director: human resources*
Qualiﬁcations: MA Counselling Psychology (University of Pretoria)
Guenther worked as a consulting practitioner in a management
consulting practice from 1985 to 1994 where he had an extensive
client base in the construction sector. He subsequently held a
senior management position for a listed construction company
where he worked with the executive team on various organisation
and executive development projects. Guenther started his own
management consulting practice in 2004, focusing primarily on the
construction industry. In January 2013 he joined Basil Read in his
current role.

Qualiﬁcations: BSc Chem Eng (University of Cape Town),
Programme for Management Development (Harvard), Management
of Mining and Mineral Policy (WITS)
Khathutshelo has more than 15 years of experience in the mining
sector gained through various senior roles with the De Beers
group. He has also served as a non-executive director on various
boards and audit committees for companies providing miningrelated services.

Group overview
Management review

G. Khathutshelo Mapasa (37)
Executive director: mining*

H. Norman Milne (59)
Commercial director*
Qualiﬁcations: NHD QS A Arb
Norman has in excess of 33 years’ experience in the local and
crossborder construction industry with the main focus on the
commercial and contractual management of heavy civil engineering
and building projects. Norman joined Basil Read in 2006 and is
responsible for the commercial, contractual and risk management
functions of the group.

I. Andiswa Ndoni (47)
Group company secretary and legal adviser
Qualiﬁcations: BProc, LLB, post-graduate diploma in business
management, certificate in corporate governance
Andiswa is an attorney of the High Court of South Africa. She was
previously the company secretary and legal counsel for Ubank
Limited. She is a member of the Judicial Services Commission
(JSC) and a member of the Competition Tribunal. Andiswa has
20 years of experience as an attorney, six of which have been as
company secretary. She was appointed to the group in January
2013 and as company secretary in March 2013.

Divisional review

Qualiﬁcations: PEng (UK) MSPE, Pr CPM, MSE Civil, ACIOB
Des has 43 years’ experience in the construction industry, the
last 13 of which have been spent with the Basil Read group. He
started his career at GT Hemingway Consulting Engineers –
Cape, subsequently held various positions with ZMG Consulting
Engineers – London (UK), Murray & Stewart – Cape, and LTA
Building – Cape before joining Basil Read Building – Cape in
1996. Since 2004, Des has been the managing director of the
developments division responsible for the development of
mixed-use, integrated new towns throughout South Africa.
He has been appointed as interim chief executive officer with
effect from 1 June 2014.

Corporate
governance

B. Terence Desmond Hughes (65)
Interim chief executive officer

Qualiﬁcations: BSc Civ Eng, MSc (Transportation),
MSc (Pavement Engineering)
Bruce is a transportation and engineering specialist with
extensive experience in the design and construction of transport
infrastructure across the African continent. He was previously
employed at Aurecon where he was responsible for the delivery
of airport infrastructure projects worldwide. He joined Basil Read
in February 2013 and was appointed to his current role
in February 2014.

J. Avinash Naidoo (41)
Head: group risk and compliance*
Qualiﬁcations: BCom (Rhodes), BCom (Hons) (Unisa), CA(SA),
MBA (Wits Business School)
Avi completed his articles at Ernst & Young and then joined
KPMG, specialising in forensic accounting and risk management.
During this time he worked on several high-profile matters both
locally and internationally. Avi has also worked in various roles
within the telecommunication and private equity sectors before
joining Basil Read in his current role in 2011.

Sustainability

Qualiﬁcations: BSc Civ Eng, PrEng, MSAICE
Marius has 35 years’ experience in the construction industry
across the full spectrum of activities. He has held various
executive management positions for leading public and private
companies in the sector and was reappointed at Basil Read
in October 2004 in his current position. Marius tendered his
resignation in March 2014 and will leave the group at the end
of May 2014.

F. Bruce Seeton Morton (36)
Executive director: Construction*

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

A. Marius Lodewucus Heyns (54)
Chief executive officer, managing director

* Appointments at subsidiary level
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Basil Read’s governance structures continued
Divisional heads

Mining

Khathutshelo Mapasa
Executive director: Basil Read Mining*

Antonie Fourie
Managing director: Basil Read Mining*

Developments

Yusuf Ebrahim Patel
Managing director: Basil Read
Developments*

*Appointments at subsidiary level.

26

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

Group overview
Reinoud Cornelis Oranje
Operations officer: Basil Read Buildings*

Christopher John Erasmus
Chief operations officer: Basil Read
Roads and Civils*

Richard Roy Simpson
Managing director: Basil Read Civils*

Divisional review

Bruce Seeton Morton
Executive director: Basil Read
Construction*

Management review

Construction

Corporate
governance

David John Bennett
Managing director: Basil Read Roads*

Guy Frederick Steenekamp
Managing director: LYT Architecture*

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Olivier Jean-Paul Giot
Executive director: subsidiaries*

Sustainability

Engineering

Willem Erik Bruggink
Managing director: Matomo*
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Chairman’s statement

Basil Read returned to profitability in 2013, underscoring
the enhanced financial and operational disciplines being
put in place through a business improvement programme
across the group.
Lester Peteni – chairman

OPERATING CONTEXT
As Basil Read enters its seventh decade, key indicators in
the construction industry are turning up. Although margins
are likely to remain under pressure as public and private
sector clients struggle with the lagged impacts of the
financial recession, building activity picked up during the
final quarters of 2013, particularly in the non-residential
sector. In December 2013, the benchmark building confidence
index (First National Bank/Bureau of Economic Research)
was at its highest level since 2008.
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R827,1 bn
293,2
255,9

262,8

271,1

177,8

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

2015/16

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

2009/10

Key construction indicators
2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

HIGHLIGHTS

83,5

2008/09

28

Provincial
department
– 17,8%

208,3

203,5

130,2
70,7

Transnet
– 15,0%
Rand Water
– 0,7%
Public-private
partnership
– 3,1%
Other – 16,0%
CEF – 0,7%

Public sector infrastructural spending
In 2010/11 public In 2011/12 public
sector spent 68% sector spent 91,9%
of budget
of budget

SA budgeted infrastructure spending over next
three years (R827,1 billion)

turning up

Eskom – 24,7%
SANRAL
(non-toll)
– 3,8%
Local
government
– 18,2%

COMPETITION COMMISSION
The Competition Commission’s initial inquiry into the
construction sector was finalised during 2013 resulting in the
group concluding a settlement agreement with the commission
for an amount of R94,9 million relating to four anticompetitive transgressions.
As we move forward, Basil Read is committed to restoring the
reputation of the group and the industry as a whole through
the eradication of anti-competitive, collusive and corrupt
behaviour. Ongoing training on new competition law
reinforces our commitment to conducting our business
responsibly. Rebuilding trust with all stakeholders has become
a key driver in the way that we do business.

Group overview
Management review

In terms of broad-based black economic empowerment
(B-BBEE) under Department of Trade and Industry codes, the
group has retained its status as a level 2 value-added (125%)
contributor over the past year and is actively taking the
necessary steps to meet the amended B-BBEE scorecard
requirements for 2014.

PERFORMANCE

Budgeted infrastructure spend

Status as

R827,1 billion Level 2
South African budget over the next
three years

value-adding contributor
maintained

Strategically well placed for
the upturn
Ethics profile benchmarked
against peers and JSE-listed
companies
Operational management
strengthened
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shareholder information

Sustainability

MATERIAL ISSUES
Basil Read’s risk management processes have been
considerably strengthened in recent years. In tandem, we
have focused on understanding the issues that underpin our
sustainability as a leading construction sector group. By
integrating these factors into our strategic thinking, we have
developed a keen understanding of the challenges facing our
company and industry, and translated this into an optimal plan
to address issues, capitalise on opportunities and mitigate
risks. I highlight below a few examples of our proactive
approach to dealing with material issues that are likely to
characterise our group and industry for the foreseeable future:
▶▶ The scarcity of key skills is not unique to our industry.
Accordingly, we have expanded our training and
development initiatives to include unemployed members of
the public in a range of programmes that will increase the
national skills base.
▶▶ To address both the cost and security of energy supply, we
have set measurable targets to reduce our consumption
each year while Basil Read Energy is making progress in the
fields of alternative and renewable energy. This is also
developing business opportunities for the group.
▶▶ Safety and health is not only a material issue, it is pivotal to
our sustainability in a skills-intensive industry. The number
of records set during the review period and the accolades
received for safety reflect the world-class systems in place
to keep our people safe and healthy.

Divisional review

Despite many challenges facing the construction sector, we
are cautiously optimistic about the year ahead. Basil Read has
a record pipeline of new work – locally and in the rest of
Africa – and our strategy has been refined to accommodate
current market conditions. This is discussed by the chief
executive and detailed on page 33.

COMPLIANCE AND TRANSFORMATION
We have made steady progress against the 2009 construction
sector charter. The group has achieved full points on the
elements of preferential procurement, enterprise development
and socio-economic development. Coupled with our black
ownership, management control, employment equity and skills
development, this makes Basil Read arguably one of the most
empowered construction companies in South Africa in terms
of overall scorecard.

Corporate
governance

In addition, the South Africa government’s massive
infrastructural projects are expected to gain momentum in the
year ahead, reflected in the rising number of bids being issued.

Chairman’s statement continued

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Basil Read’s directors and senior management endorse the
code of corporate practices and conduct set out in the
King III report on corporate governance. Basil Read complies
with this code as well as with the JSE listings requirements
in all material respects. The group regularly reviews its
corporate governance policies and practices and strives for
continuous improvement.
During the year, Donny Gouveia resigned as deputy chief
executive officer after 12 years with the group. Donny made a
valuable contribution to the growth and development of Basil
Read during his tenure, and we wish him well in his future
endeavours. Towards year-end, Pieter Marais resigned as
financial director. The board thanks him for successfully
executing his appointment mandate, which included
stabilising various business projects, and wishes him well
in his future career.
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Subsequent to year-end, Marius Heyns retired as chief
executive officer after 10 years in that role, and 20 years with
the group. Basil Read has initiated the necessary processes for
appointing a successor. Terence Desmond Hughes (Des),
managing director of Basil Read Developments, was appointed
interim CEO from 1 June 2014, but immediately began
working with Marius and the board to ensure an efficient
transition. He brings extensive industry experience to his new
role, building on 13 years with the group and over 40 in the
industry. Amanda Wightman (previously group financial
manager) was appointed interim chief financial officer.
Basil Read has a strong and capable management team to assist
in ensuring the appropriate business focus remains in place
while a board committee identifies suitable candidates for
these roles.
On behalf of board, we acknowledge the significant
contribution Marius has made to Basil Read over the years,
and wish him well for the future.

Group overview
Management review
Corporate
governance

Divisional review
A slight recovery in infrastructure spend is expected in the
coming year, spread across all spheres of government; central,
provincial and local. Renewable energy projects and possible
mining-related work is expected to support private sector
spending. The slow roll-out of projects coupled with labour
disruptions could have a negative effect on the effective
delivery of work in the year ahead.

APPRECIATION
The construction industry has been thoroughly tested in
recent years. Despite these challenges, the group’s results
for the year underscore that Basil Read remains home to a
formidable and committed group of people, ably led by Marius
Heyns and his management teams. Coupled with the counsel
and support of my fellow directors, we have built a solid
platform for Basil Read’s continued growth and development.

Sustainability

OUTLOOK
In the South African context, a slowdown in energy
infrastructure expenditure is expected over the next few
years with more infrastructure expenditure expected on
transport and water. Transnet, in particular, has indicated
that it is on the verge of its next wave of capital investment,
peaking in 2016/17. The implementation of the e-tolling system
is likely to result in more money being made available for
transport-related projects.

Lester Peteni
Chairman

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The outlook for growth in the rest of Africa remains
favourable, driven by oil production, mining and agriculture
with significant infrastructure required to unlock value across
the continent. To offset weak local conditions, the group’s
focus continues to shift to the rest of the African continent,
particularly West Africa where significant opportunities for
expansion exist.
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Chief executive officer’s review

Strategically, the group is well placed to capitalise on
the imminent upturn in the construction industry, with
a record order book, strengthened balance sheet and
world-class teams.
Marius Heyns – chief executive officer

The review period has again proved the resilience of the
Basil Read group. Under challenging conditions, we reversed
our 2012 loss into a respectable profit for the financial year to
31 December 2013. This performance reflects the benefits of
a multi-pronged strategy and focused initiatives, implemented
by skilled and committed teams.

The proceeds from the disposal of TWP of R877 million
allowed the group to reward shareholders with a
R232,6 million dividend and make a significant reduction
in the group’s debt levels. Total debt was reduced by
R464 million to R426,4 million and resulted in the group’s
debt-equity ratio, based on long-term debt, being reported
at a conservative 13,2%.

Selective tendering has led to a gradual marginal improvement
in margins resulting in net profit after tax from continuing
operations of R100,5 million, a definite improvement from the
loss of R196,1 million reported for the previous financial year.
Although competition remains fierce, margins continue to
improve, albeit slowly.

HIGHLIGHTS

Strong flow of new awards
– current order book

R12,5 billion
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Desired outcome

Progress

▶▶ Gear for the upswing
▶▶ Strengthen our core competencies

▶▶ Strategic soundness
▶▶ Financial soundness




Work ethic and pride

▶▶ Sound use of corporate assets
▶▶ Quality of products and services
▶▶ Community and environmental social responsibility


➞


▶▶ Customer focused
▶▶ Quality company

▶▶ Increased shareholder value as a long-term investment
▶▶ Quality of marketing

➞
➞

Leadership through operational excellence

▶▶ Quality of management
▶▶ Capacity to innovate and adapt quickly to market conditions
▶▶ Ability to attract, develop and retain talent





Consolidate and rationalise

▶▶ Performance driven
▶▶ Being accountable

Image and reputation

▶▶ Building capacity
▶▶ Ensuring our capabilities

 Achieved   ➞ Under way

▶ Improved risk management ▶ Loss-making roads contracts
on challenging contracts
completed, progress on
settling outstanding claims
▶ St Helena project meeting
expectations
▶ Competition Commission
settlement finalised

▶ TWP disposal finalised and
R877 million received
▶ Early benefits from
strategy execution
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annual report 2013

Group overview
Sustainability

Strategic goals

Corporate
governance

PERFORMANCE AGAINST STRATEGY IN 2013

Management review

Much emphasis was also placed on our business development
strategy in securing work for the future. Given the protracted
downturn in the local building and construction sector, we
focused on the core elements that will ensure the success of
our group in the future. Accordingly, the functions of the
business development team were consolidated into a fully
fledged division within the group, ensuring that our vision is
aligned to strategic objectives and action plans.

Divisional review

After a particularly difficult period in 2012, a comprehensive
business review identified four strategic themes that would
play a key role in turning the business around and setting the
platform for reshaping Basil Read’s future. These themes and
our progress are summarised below:
▶▶ Strengthening and realigning Basil Read’s management
structures: the current structure was assessed to identify
any weaknesses or gaps in critical business functions. This
provided the opportunity to promote key people internally
and recruit experienced executives to broaden our
knowledge base. This component aims to build
organisational muscle and improve executive oversight
of operations.

▶▶ Advancing operational excellence by reviewing and
improving all core work processes: in recent years, Basil
Read has recorded phenomenal growth, both organically
and acquisitively. To accommodate this growth, existing
systems had to be strengthened to ensure we operate as
effectively and efficiently as possible to improve profitability.
This is detailed in the panel project Quantum Leap.
▶▶ Improving teamwork and collaboration: with the key
objective of harnessing the power of collaboration towards
innovation, Basil Read is improving its communication
channels, training and development to ensure that a wealth
of knowledge is shared across the group, which leads to
smarter ways of doing business and improved profitability.
▶▶ Enhancing Basil Read’s image and reputation: striving for
excellence in all that we do permeates the group – from the
boardroom to individual sites.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

INTEGRATED STRATEGIC THINKING
The business environment in which we operate is continually
changing, creating both constraints that must be managed and
opportunities that we must capitalise on. For Basil Read and
the construction sector at large, the current global economic
environment, coupled with a post-World Cup slowdown and
general loss of specialised construction skills, has created a far
more challenging operating environment. This required a
complete rethink of our business – from the way we procure
and tender work, to the way we execute work, to the
markets we should be operating in.

Chief executive officer’s review continued

This team will play a key role in engaging with stakeholders in
the industry to identify business opportunities, working closely
with the group’s divisions and subsidiaries to maximise these
opportunities and develop initiatives for Basil Read’s key
clients. Equally, collaboration and teamwork will play a major
role in the group’s turnaround strategy, harnessing combined
strengths, optimising areas of specialisation and using these to
ensure our success in securing work and implementing
specialist skills on specific projects.
As part of our focus on differentiating ourselves in a
competitive market, we will concentrate on nurturing
ongoing relationships with our clients and structuring
projects correctly from the start. We will also target
more multidisciplinary cross-border projects such as
St Helena with selected key clients.

QUANTUM LEAP
Basil Read’s Quantum Leap is giving people the right tools
to do their jobs, streamlining business processes, improving
the flow of information and effectively transforming the
group’s business procedures into the industry benchmark.
Its objectives are twofold. The first is to assist the group’s
operational side in improving controls on-site using best
practices to manage risks and opportunities. The second
objective is administrative – standardising processes for
faster and greater integrity of data.
Launched in February 2013, the initial project will run
to the end of 2014, delivering significant productivity
improvements, and better quality information for business
and strategic decision making. During this time, all systems
and organisational structures across the group are being
reviewed and standardised. Outdated systems and business
processes (both operational and administrative) will be
replaced with more streamlined procedures, while
improving role clarity and accountability.
By involving people from the operations side in
building best practices, Quantum Leap focuses on
developing tailored solutions and key performance
indicators for the entire group by harnessing the
experience of our key people and entrenching an
attitude of continuous improvement.
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Group overview
Management review
FUTURE
Basil Read has weathered many challenges over six decades.
By focusing on the key elements below, we will ensure our
sustainability now and for decades to come.
▶▶ Expansion into Africa
▶▶ Disposal of non-core assets
▶▶ Expansion across the value chain
▶▶ Progress from a small to medium-tier construction company
▶▶ Be recognised for quality work delivered on time
▶▶ Eliminate all loss-making contracts and dispose of all no or
low income-generating assets

APPRECIATION
The exceptional calibre and loyalty of our people at every
level have long characterised our group.
Our clients and suppliers in the public and private sectors
continue to support Basil Read, reflecting relationships
entrenched over decades and the benefits of working towards
common goals.
We deeply appreciate every contribution – never more so
than in challenging times.

Marius Heyns
Chief executive officer
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Corporate
governance

Divisional review
For over 60 years, Basil Read has operated as a family
business. Several years ago, we aligned those values with the
triple bottom-line approach by covering our economic, social
(including our people and communities) and environmental
performance in our integrated annual report to stakeholders.

Sustainability

This focus is evident in our operations, our conduct and our
strategies for growth. We take our obligations as a corporate
citizen seriously, aiming to enhance the quality of life of those
we employ and those touched by our operations. Equally, we
aim to move beyond legislative compliance in advancing South
Africa’s transformation, and embedding global standards in our
corporate governance.

▶▶ Achieve a return on equity greater than our cost of equity
(weighted average cost of capital) with a focus on efficient
allocation of capital
▶▶ Achieve a sustainable BEE rating in the top quartile of
the scorecard
▶▶ Vertically integrate throughout the construction value chain
▶▶ Develop a sustainable meaningful presence in selected
African geographies
▶▶ Improve the Basil Read reputation with customers,
employees, shareholders and government with more
active engagement.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

SUSTAINABILITY
We remain committed to embedding sustainability into every
facet of our business and the communities where we operate,
in line with our international peers and best practice.

Financial director’s report

Our return to profitability reflects improved
performances from most divisions in challenging
trading conditions.
Amanda Wightman – Interim chief financial officer

The 2013 financial year was characterised by a return to
profitability for the group after improved operational
performances from most divisions in difficult trading
conditions. The disposal of TWP contributed a sizeable profit
and significant cash inflow, which allowed the group to reward
shareholders by paying a special dividend, and strengthen the
balance sheet by aggressively reducing debt.
Despite the return to profitability, fundamentals in the
local construction sector remain tenuous with margins
under pressure in a highly competitive environment. To
offset weak local conditions, the group is focusing its
expansionary activities on the rest of Africa where there
are significant opportunities at more favourable margins.
This exposes the group to additional risks which will need
to be carefully monitored and managed as our African
expansion gains traction.
With margins still under pressure, it is imperative that the
group continues to focus on financial discipline, sound internal
controls, policies and procedures. As discussed by the chief
executive and detailed on page 34, Quantum Leap, the
group’s business improvement project, is already having a
positive impact on the way we do business. This broad-ranging
project will feed into our initiative to procure an integrated
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system to better support
our operations.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS
Income statement
Revenue from continuing operations rose 15% to R6,3 billion
with an operating profit of R67,6 million. Overall operational
performance was impacted by two non-recurring items:
▶▶ Poor sales at the Rolling Hills Leisure Estate resulted in the
group recording a non-cash writedown of development land
for R22,6 million.
▶▶ The Competition Commission’s investigation into the
construction industry was finalised in July 2013 with a fine
of R94,9 million imposed on Basil Read. As we had made a
provision for R75 million in prior years, the charge to the
income statement in the review period was R19,9 million.

HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue up

15%
to R6,3 billion

Earnings per share improved significantly to 235,97 cents,
with earnings from continuing operations turning around
from an earnings loss of 256,92 cents per share to an earnings
profit of 98,54 cents. Headline earnings per share increased
to 88,16 cents after adjustments, primarily for the profit from
the TWP disposal.
The group achieved a return on equity of 16,8% for
shareholders, above our target of 15%. Given the ongoing
tough trading conditions, we will again be targeting a 15%
return on equity for the new financial year. Ideally, we would
like to see this improve to 20% over the longer term, as
market conditions improve.

PERFORMANCE

Construction division
turned around with
operating profit of

R12 million

Return on equity of

Business improvement plan
under way

16,8%

Competition Commission
inquiry finalised

against target of 15%

Group overview
Management review
Sustainability

The developments division was impacted by the
R22,6 million writedown of development land relating to
the Rolling Hills Leisure Estate, resulting in the division
reporting a R16,3 million operating loss from revenue of
R69,9 million. All other property developments being
managed by the division remained profitable with the
Klipriver Business Park contributing the biggest portion
of revenue and profits as further stands were sold during
the period.

Divisional review

Despite solid revenue growth in the engineering
division, margins were significantly affected by high overhead
costs as the division took a strategic decision to maintain
capacity. Revenue was reported at R676,4 million with an
operating profit of R12,9 million. LYT Architecture’s results
improved markedly, reflecting better conditions in most of
its active sectors.

The group reported net interest income of R13,7 million
compared to a net interest cost of R84,7 million in the prior
year. This significant turnaround reflects the increase in cash
and reduction in debt following the inflow of R877 million
from the disposal of TWP. The sharp weakening of the rand
in 2013 further improved net interest income as foreign
exchange gains were reported.

Corporate
governance

The mining division was affected by labour unrest and
unprotected strike action at local sites, which impacted
results. Despite tough trading conditions, the division
reported revenue of R935,4 million, with operating profit of
R58,9 million at an operating margin of 6,3%. A significant
portion of this division’s profits is generated by its 28%
investment in the equity-accounted Majwe Mining joint
venture, which is executing a multi-billion rand contract for
Debswana at its Jwaneng mine in Botswana and contributed
R46,1 million profit after tax for the division.

In the 2012 integrated report, we indicated that we were
aiming to achieve 4% to 5% group operating margin in the
current climate. The operating margin from continuing
operations of 1,1% in the period is well below this target,
and reflects losses on certain contracts in the construction
division continuing to impact results, coupled with weaker
results in the engineering division. Non-recurring costs of
R42,5 million also contributed to the below-par operating
margin. Despite the fact that our target was not achieved in
the 2013 financial year, we still believe a target of 4% to 5%
is reasonable and will continue to aim for this as a minimum
in the 2014 financial year.

Debt significantly
reduced

Basil Read integrated
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Divisional results were mixed with the construction division
reporting improved results. Bolstered by a solid operational
performance from the St Helena airport project, the
construction division returned to profitability, posting a
R12,1 million operating profit from revenue of R4,6 billion.
This modest profit underscores the ongoing challenges faced
by the division which had several loss-making contracts still
affecting its results in 2013. Importantly, most of these,
including the Nata-Pandamatenga road in Botswana, were
completed during the review period. Regrettably, the division
reported a R50 million loss on the Olifants River water
resources development project for client, Trans-Caledon
Tunnel Authority. This contract is scheduled for completion
in the second half of 2014.

Financial director’s report continued

Order book
R million

2013

Construction

8 165

Buildings

1 350

Civils

820

Roads

2 980

Special projects (SHAP and TCTA)

3 015

Mining
Developments
Engineering
Total

3 919
100
280
12 464

Statement of financial position
To preserve cash and keep debt balances at acceptable levels,
the group placed a moratorium on capital expenditure in the
first half of 2013, after which all purchases were strictly
controlled. This reduced capital spend to R257,8 million for
the period, almost half that of the prior year. The approved
capital expenditure budget for the 2014 financial year is set at
R250 million, with 80% allocated to the mining division.
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The group’s cash position improved to R1,2 billion, largely
due to the disposal of TWP which generated R877 million,
including interest. The cash inflow was partially offset by the
payment of a special dividend to shareholders of R232 million
and the repayment of debt of R464 million. Working capital
continues to be closely monitored, particularly as the timeous
receipt of debtors and settlement of claims remain concerns.
A sizeable amount of cash is tied up in the group’s property
portfolio, which comprises land held for both residential and
industrial purposes. While sales of stands at Klipriver Business
Park have been steady, but slow, no sales were recorded at
the Rolling Hills Leisure Estate and we are exploring ways to
unlock more value out of this asset.
Basil Read aggressively reduced debt in the year under review
to R426,4 million, down 52%. Three of our notes issued under
the domestic medium-term note programme – BSR05, BSR09
and BSR10 totalling R375 million – were settled during the
year. To maintain working capital levels and liquidity, however,
we considered it prudent to issue a further note – BSR11U for
R125 million. This 18-month note matures in June 2015.
We indicated in our prior report that we were aiming to keep
total debt to tangible equity at under 33,3%. We achieved a
ratio of 28,5% in the review period and will continue to aim
to keep this under 33,3% in the coming financial year.

Group overview
Management review
Divisional review
Total debt to tangible equity
CORPORATE ACTIVITY
The disposal of TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd to WorleyParsons
was completed in March 2013 for an
adjusted consideration of R869,6 million (excluding interest
of R8,1 million), realising a profit of R288,5 million. This
translates into a net profit on disposal of R226,8 million
after providing for capital gains tax. As a result of this sale,
we closed our operation in Australia and recognised a loss
of R31,2 million.
DIVIDENDS
On 14 March 2013, the directors declared a special
dividend of 175 cents per share out of the proceeds of
the disposal of TWP Holdings. This was paid to shareholders
on 24 June 2013.

Target for 2014
%

4–5

1,1

4–5

15

16,8

15

<33,3

28,50

<33,3

IN CLOSING
The review period was a year of consolidation and stabilisation
after a poor operational performance in 2012. With significant
prospects, a strong order book and a substantially stronger
balance sheet, we believe the basics are in place for a
successful year ahead and the ongoing sustainability and
growth of the group. Critical to our ongoing success is the
dedication and commitment of all employees, and I thank
every member of the Basil Read team for their contribution.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Group operating margin
Return on shareholders’ interests

Actual for 2013
%

Sustainability

Target for 2013
%

Corporate
governance

Summary of financial targets

Amanda Wightman
Interim chief financial officer
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Divisional review

Management review

Group overview

VISIONS
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

With over six decades of experience, Basil Read
is one of the foremost construction groups in
Africa. Our reputation has been built on
excellence in the fields of construction, mining
and engineering.
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Case study

St Helena airport project – two years into the project

Our multi-billion rand contract to
construct the first airport on one
of the most isolated islands in the
world has been expanded due to
our expertise in managing the
associated logistics, quality of our
work and commitment to the
community of St Helena.
The excellent progress being made on Basil Read’s flagship
project – St Helena’s first airport – has resulted in additional
related works for a permanent wharf and a landfill site
totalling R258 million.

Building works for the terminal building, air traffic control
tower and fire services building are under way. These are
scheduled for completion in early 2015.
Concrete works on the 1 950 m runway strip, taxiway and
apron will begin in 2014.
With initial testing of the permanent wharf design completed
at the CSIR wave tank facility in Stellenbosch, construction
works on this facility will start in 2014 with the required
200-tonne crawler cranes shipped to St Helena in early 2014.
The airport certification process is under way, with airport
manuals, operation and maintenance manuals, “as built” details
and data packs in production. Training for operational staff
under phase 2 will begin in 2014, which includes fire fighting,
security and ramp handling. Regular discussions are being held
with the regulator and security advisory bodies in the UK.

The construction phase of the airport is due for completion
by early 2016 and is currently on schedule and on budget.
However, building an airport in one of the most isolated
locations in the world has presented some challenges.
Basil Read currently employs over 550 people on St Helena,
with two-thirds being local. In addition, there are more than
100 full-time and part-time people off island, involved with
airside, landside and architectural design, logistics,
procurement, human resources, finance, accounting, plant,
quality assurance, environmental, engineering and construction
methods and commercial.
The bulk of civil designs is now complete and the design and
assembly of navigational aids and aerodrome ground lighting
is under way.
On the construction side, the 14 km road from Rupert’s Bay
to the airport site is progressing well. It will be brought up to
sub-base level and be completed once all heavy construction
plant is taken off the island.
The major work item, the bulk fill in Dry Gut, passed the 33%
mark in November 2013. This translates to the team placing
almost 3 million m3 of the total 7,8 million m3 required.
Work on the fill runs on a 24-hour cycle, six days a week,
using four 70-tonne excavators, 20 40-tonne ADTs and
associated dozers and compaction equipment. At that point,
production rates were up to 25 000 m3 per day, depending
on the weather and quality of material which, given the
volcanic nature of the area, can vary considerably.
Eight 750 000 ℓ tanks have been constructed at the bulk fuel
installation which is complete. This is being followed by final
concrete, mechanical, electrical and piping works, testing
and commissioning.
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ST. HELENA AIRPORT PROJECT

Apart from construction activities, considerable work is being
done on the environmental, risk and safety aspects of the
project, which are critical to its overall success.

SUMMARY

▶▶R3,1 billion contract to design, build, operate and
transfer an international airport on St Helena island
awarded in November 2011
▶▶Construction phase due for completion by early 2016,
whereafter Basil Read will operate the airport for a
period of 10 years

Group overview

The airport project is critical to the sustainability of this
remote location, and the positive effect is already evident in
work opportunities and an improving domestic economy.
With significant tourism potential, including magnificent
scenery, deep-sea fishing and scuba diving, the island has much
to offer tourists. Although St Helena has a population of only
4 000, it boasts three primary schools and one high school.
The island is rich in history as Napoleon’s last resting place
and was used by British forces during the Anglo-Boer war
(South African war) in 1900 to incarcerate up to 5 000 Boer
prisoners of war.

Management review

The human resources team, on and off the island, has
processed and organised travel for over 565 trips between
St Helena and Cape Town for staff and subcontractors on
the five-day voyage.

In addition to strong teamwork within Basil Read, both on and
off island, and the input of design teams from WorleyParsons
and Delta BEC, the success of this project to date reflects the
excellent working relationship with the St Helena government
and the UK’s Department for International Development.

Key activities under way
▶▶Bulk earthworks fill ongoing

Divisional review

The logistics team in Johannesburg and Walvis Bay has now
successfully planned and executed 15 voyages between
Walvis Bay and St Helena. To date, the Basil Read ship has
sailed almost 100 000 km (equivalent to over twice around the
world) and carried over 6,5 million litres of fuel, 2 700 tonnes
of explosives, 4 700 tonnes of cement and fly ash, with
700 containers and 120 items of heavy plant.

▶▶Building works for terminal buildings commenced
▶▶Airport certification process under way.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

▶▶The airport project is critical to the sustainability of
the island, which is set to become a unique and
diverse tourist destination.
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Case study

Olifants River water resources development project

The pipelines, pump stations
and fibre-optics lines we are
installing as part of the massive
Olifants River water resources
development project will meet
the needs of new mining
developments and enhance the
quality of life for local communities
in Limpopo.
Basil Read is busy with the R1,2 billion contract to construct
phases 2C and 2H of the Olifants River water resources
development project being developed by the Trans-Caledon
Tunnel Authority (TCTA). The project falls in the Olifants
River catchment, incorporating the Steelpoort River
catchment area and extending into the Mogalakwena and Sand
River catchments. Within this region are the towns of
Mokopane, Burgersfort, Steelpoort, Roossenekal, Jane Furse,
Polokwane, Lebowakgomo and the rural communities of the
Lepelle-Nkumpi, Fetakgomo and Greater Tubatse
municipalities.
After construction began in early 2012, the second phase is
currently under way to create a bulk water supply to meet
the needs of new mining developments and local communities
in Limpopo. This follows a commitment to the Jane Furse
community that water would be supplied to the Nebo Plateau
by 2013.
Phase 2 comprises De Hoop Dam, being constructed by
the Department of Water Affairs, and a bulk water transfer
system with a number of pump stations and pipelines.
De Hoop Dam will be the bulk storage facility to boost
current water supply in Limpopo.
The scope of work being undertaken by Basil Read includes:
▶▶ Some 40 km of welded steel pipeline varying from 1 100 to
1 800 mm in diameter, with a wall thickness of 5 to 13 mm
▶▶ One pump station at Steelpoort (2 m³/s) for both the
Olifants River water resources development project and the
existing Lebalelo scheme
▶▶ Cathodic protection to the pipelines
▶▶ Auxiliary works including access roads, road deviations and
an operations centre
▶▶ Associated electrical, hydro-mechanical and instrumentation
works.
After initial delays when some sections of the site were not
available while land compensation issues and disputes were
resolved, construction is progressing well.
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To facilitate the successful completion of this project,
Basil Read acquired three Volvo PL4608 pipelayers, becoming
the largest fleet owner of Volvo pipelayers in Africa.
With its innovative, patented design and enhanced safety
features, the new Basil Read Volvo fleet offers cost-effective
versatility as a pipelayer, excavator or for other heavy lift
applications. This acquisition strengthens the group’s position
in the pipelaying industry, enabling it to tender more
competitively for large diameter pipeline construction projects
in future.
Valente Bros, a subsidiary of Basil Read, has been extensively
involved in phases 2C and 2H of this project because of its
extensive experience in constructing pipelines.

OLIFANTS RIVER PROJECT

Although our blasting operations were unlikely to have been the only cause of the structural deterioration evident in the
trust offices, we considered this an excellent opportunity to establish a legacy project in keeping with our corporate social
investment policy.
In the spirit of shared responsibility, the Tshehla community will contribute half the expenses required to construct new offices,
after a professional examination on the integrity of the structure concluded this was the safer solution. The community will also
source the required labour, providing much-needed income opportunities in the area.
Basil Read has willingly cooperated on this project, investing R250 000 to ensure the community can rebuild an important
resource. We believe that by going beyond the letter of our contractual social obligations, we generate goodwill and trust
among stakeholders and expand opportunities for the benefit of all. This approach permeates most of our projects, from
supporting eco-tourism initiatives on the remote St Helena island where we are constructing the community’s first airport,
to our mining division matching its staff’s contribution to donate almost 1 000 blankets to needy people.

Divisional review

Key activities under way

Corporate
governance

▶▶Remaining 16 km of pipeline being laid
▶▶Pump station works in progress
▶▶Fibre-optic line from Aquaville to Steelpoort
under way.

Sustainability

▶▶Awarded in February 2012, this R1,2 billion contract
has faced several challenges including access to land,
community interference, challenging environmental
conditions and rain delays
▶▶With some 24 km of pipeline completed to date,
completion is expected in early 2015
▶▶Project is currently loss-making due to the nonresolution of claims.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

SUMMARY

Group overview

During the second phase of the Olifants River water resources development project, some infrastructure in the Tshehla Trust
area appeared to have been damaged by blasting required to build the pipeline for the new De Hoop Dam. Negotiations with
individual stakeholders on affected residential structures were successfully managed in the prior period, leaving only
reconstruction of the Tshehla Trust office in the review period.

Management review

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT IN ACTION
In the construction industry, maintaining the trust and support of all stakeholders is often critical to a project’s progress and
ultimate success.

Basil Read integrated
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Case study

Cut 8, Jwaneng Mine

Completing a contract on time
and within budget is an overriding
aim for all Basil Read teams.
Securing additional work from
the same client sets us apart
from our competitors, and has
become a hallmark of the group
over the years.
Basil Read has operated in Botswana for over 10 years,
building in-depth experience in managing projects in often
remote sites. From the logistics of moving and scheduling
teams and equipment, to the detail of managing employee
health and safety, as well as environmental considerations, the
group’s reputation for managing operations on behalf of some
of the world’s most prestigious mining clients has made it a
preferred partner on several sites.
Basil Read has been active on Debswana’s Jwaneng opencast
diamond mine for over four years. Located in the southern
parts of Botswana, Jwaneng has operated for over 30 years
and is the pride of the country’s diamond sector. It is not only
one of the largest producers, but also one of the richest
diamond mines worldwide.
The pioneering Cut 8 mine expansion began in 2010, with
Basil Read Mining and Blasting & Excavating (B&E) working
with Bothakga Burrow on phases one to three of the project
to mine and move 60 million tonnes of waste material over
three years. In 2011, Basil Read Mining formed a three-way
joint venture with Leightons and Bothakga Burrow Mining
(Majwe Mining) for the next phase of the Cut 8 expansion
project – mining 156 million cubic metres of material over a
five-year contract period.
This expansion will extend Jwaneng’s life to at least 2025 and
is expected to yield 100 million carats of diamonds worth
some USD15 billion. This would make Jwaneng one of few
super pits in the world.
Interestingly, at Jwaneng, the group is benefiting from
cross-company synergies with B&E completing the drill and
blast functions, and Basil Read Mining responsible for load and
haul. B&E is also assisting the Majwe Mining joint venture with
small diameter drilling on trims and buffers in order to
increase bulk drilling production. Merging the B&E group into
Basil Read Mining some years ago has added considerable
intellectual property – with the knowledge and skills of the
combined team making it possible to use people across both
entities and to allow for a full mining scope service providers.
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Basil Read Mining has recently expanded its mining portfolio in
Botswana beyond diamonds after securing an agreement with
Discovery Metals to assist in increasing production rates at its
Baseto copper project.
Working closely with our clients, such as at Jwaneng, has
helped secure small projects to keep the remaining plant busy
for the year. As an example, our 310-tonne and 200-tonne
excavators were used to help the client load its fleet while
using our smaller fleet in difficult areas to enhance overall
performance. Our successful and safe mining methods have
elicited both professional comment and formal recognition
from the client, given the sensitivity of the rock failure.

▶▶Cut 8 expansion will extend Jwaneng’s open pit life
to at least 2025
▶▶Awarded in 2011, this five-year contract involves
mining 156 million cubic metres of material

Management review

Key activities under way
▶▶Basil Read Mining responsible for load and haul
▶▶Blasting & Excavating completing drill and blast
functions.

Divisional review

SUMMARY

Group overview

Based on an integrated approach, Basil Read Mining considers
it equally important to be recognised for its quality,
professional and consistent service, for its superior safety
records and innovative practices and for being a preferred
employer by creating a committed and engaged workforce
benefiting from growth opportunities and structured
development programmes. Community development and
stakeholder engagement are woven into this approach, in
line with the group’s philosophy on active involvement in
its communities.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

▶▶Contract is being undertaken by the Majwe Mining
joint venture, a three-way joint venture with
Australian-based company Leightons and local partner
Bothakga Burrow Mining.
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Case study

MetroWind van Stadens wind farm

Through Basil Read Energy and
Matomo, we are participating in
building renewable and alternative
sources of energy in South Africa.
This experience and skill position
the group well to capitalise on
similar opportunities across Africa.

Civil works, including roads, and all nine wind turbine bases
are complete, as is the main control building and individual
turbine mini-substations, including all electrical works.
Throughout the process, the site remained compliant with all
environmental specifications and targeted job-creation goals
for the project were met.

In South Africa and across Africa, demand for cost-effective,
reliable electrical power is rising. In late 2012, the South
African Minister of Energy announced that government would
procure an additional 3 200 MW of renewable energygeneration capacity from independent power producers under
its integrated resource plan 2010 to 2030. In South Africa,
tariff increases by Eskom are driving many large consumers of
electrical power to consider alternative sources of supply,
while the African continent lacks the generation capacity to
meet demand, and many nations are looking to independent
power producers to fill this deficit.

Following the successful installation and commissioning of
solar-powered area lighting in the community of Fitches
Corner on Mandela Day in 2012, the wind farm has helped

Anticipating developments in this field, Basil Read Energy
was established to ensure the group was well positioned to
capitalise on these opportunities. With a careful balance of
the right partners and appropriate skills, the group successfully
participated in initial tenders issued by the South African
government.
Basil Read’s R475 million contract to construct the
MetroWind van Stadens wind farm project in the Eastern
Cape is being executed through wholly owned subsidiary,
Matomo, which specialises in turnkey renewable energy and
process projects. The wind farm will feed 80 000 MWh/year
of green electricity into the Nelson Mandela Bay metro grid.
Construction began towards the end of 2012 and was
completed on schedule in February 2014. After the turbine
supply agreement with Sinovel, one of the largest
manufacturers of wind turbines in the world, was concluded in
November 2012, two shipments arrived in the Port of Ngqura
near Port Elizabeth in June 2013.
This was a significant milestone for the project and followed
months of preparatory work on site. After a week-long
process of offloading turbine components at the harbour, and
the challenging task of transporting them by road, the turbines
were erected on site from August last year.
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The MetroWind van Stadens wind farm is a strategic project
of national significance that has numerous positive local
benefits for the Nelson Mandela Bay Metro. These include
meeting nearly 50% of the metro’s target to generate clean,
sustainable renewable electricity while investing in, benefiting
and uplifting the local community.

SUMMARY

▶▶MetroWind van Stadens wind farm will feed
80 000 MWh/year of green electricity into Nelson
Mandela Bay Metro grid
▶▶Construction of this R475 million project was
completed on schedule in February 2014

Key activities under way
▶▶All construction completed on schedule by
February 2014
▶▶Site remained compliant with all environmental
specifications and targeted job-creation goals for the
project were met.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

▶▶Project received an endorsement from the Minister
of Energy during 2013.

Group overview

The growth of the renewable energy industry in the Eastern
Cape and particularly the wind farms being developed around
the Nelson Mandela Bay Metro, are a catalyst for economic
growth in one of the poorest provinces in the country.
The Basil Read group is proud to be able to contribute to the
growth and development of communities and businesses in
this region and hopes to make a meaningful and sustainable
difference over time.

Management review

In addition to funds for solar lighting, Matomo invested over
R400 000 to support and develop some previously
disadvantaged small and medium enterprises in the metro.
Understanding that small and medium enterprises are the
incubators of job creation in South Africa, Matomo will
continue to provide financial support, mentorship and
professional advice to further develop these construction
and engineering enterprises.

Because of its integrated approach, the project has received
high praise, including an endorsement from the Minister of
Energy in 2013.

Divisional review

improve the lives of the Shamrock and Witteklip communities
by installing similar solar-powered area lighting. These were
commissioned late in December 2012, after a sizeable
donation by Matomo, bringing transformational light to the
local residents just in time for Christmas.
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Group overview
Sustainability

Corporate
governance

Divisional review

Management review

RUCTION
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The construction division houses Basil Read’s
civil engineering, roads and building operations.
Despite challenging conditions, our proven
technical and engineering skills have reinforced
our position among the leaders in our industry.
More robust financial controls will ensure we
retain this status.

51

Construction – roads, civils, buildings

Innovative solutions, reliable
service and a steadfast
commitment to delivery are
characteristic benefits enjoyed by
our clients across the disciplines
of roads, civils and buildings.
With fewer tenders at lower values, subdued market
conditions and fierce competition, the past year has again
been challenging for the construction division. Despite this,
Basil Read secured several key projects, significantly boosting
the divisional order book. This included additional work for
the division’s flagship project, construction of the first airport
on the island of St Helena.
The division increased its order book by 7% and margins on
new work are improving, particularly in the roads segment. In
this subdued but competitive market, with significant pressure
on margins, we continue to focus on securing new work at
acceptable margins and keeping resources occupied.
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Given the state of the local market, the focus has shifted to
other parts of Africa, where the need for quality construction
groups is high. At present Basil Read is exploring niche
markets with long-term prospects in infrastructural spend
in Africa. With secured contracts in Botswana, Namibia,
Mozambique and offices established in Zambia, the group is
actively tendering for projects in Africa, where there are a
number of public and private work opportunities.
PERFORMANCE
For the review period, revenue was R4,6 billion
(2012: R4,0 billion) with an operating profit of R12,1 million
(2012: loss of R277,2 million). The divisional order book at
year-end was R8,2 billion.

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

73%

Group overview
Management review
Divisional review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY
▶▶ Four-year contract to construct and operate airport
on St Helena island – value R3,1 billion
▶▶ R1,2 billion contract to lay 40 km of pipeline for the
Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority
▶▶ Kusile and Medupi power stations for client, Eskom.

Sustainability

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
Various parastatals – specifically those accountable for power,
transport and water – are expected to roll out infrastructure
development projects sizeable in the current year. While
government has announced ambitious infrastructure
development projects in recent years, most of this spend has
been allocated to provincial and municipal authorities, which
could prove challenging to roll out.

Corporate
governance

There has been an encouraging increase in pre-qualification
activity for design-and-construct tenders in the civils segment
and a steady flow of tenders for the roads segment. Equally,
tender activity in the buildings segment is picking up and the
government’s schools programme is gaining momentum.

PERFORMANCE
▶▶ Actively tendering for
work in Africa
▶▶ Robust control restoring
margins to acceptable
levels.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Despite solid divisional growth, margins in recent years
have been affected by a number of loss-making contracts,
particularly in the roads sector, historically one of the group’s
key performers. With most of these contracts complete, we
have made good progress in pursuing opportunities for
recovery through negotiation and dispute resolution.

Construction – Basil Read Buildings

What we do
The buildings division is active
in South Africa’s major centres.
It specialises in hospitals, offices,
shopping centres, schools and
industrial buildings.

New contracts during the year include nine schools in the
Western Cape, a new Mediclinic in Centurion, student
accommodation for 972 students in Hatfield, Pretoria and a
warehouse for Anglo American in Middelburg, Mpumalanga.
Building on its reputation for delivering quality projects,
the division is expanding its footprint beyond Gauteng and
strengthening relationships with developers and contractors
to capitalise on the rising trend of approved plans in its sector.

The performance of the building division in 2013 proved
satisfactory despite the difficult working conditions and labour
unrest that characterised the Kusile joint venture project for
most of the period.
In 2013, the division successfully completed significant projects
such as the new Natalspruit Hospital and Nurses
Residences in Thaba Tshwane.
Work continues on the Trompsburg Hospital and building
works at Medupi power station, with both projects nearing
completion in the latter part of the year. The TWP office
block in Melrose Arch was completed in March 2014.
With five basements and seven floors, this state-of-the-art
building incorporates the latest green technology and will
accommodate around 1 200 staff members.
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CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

14%

Group overview
Management review
Divisional review
Corporate
governance

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
Market conditions in South Africa are expected to remain
under pressure, although conditions in Gauteng have
improved somewhat. With signs that margins are easing
in other regions, the division is well placed to capitalise on
the expected roll-out of work in the Eastern Cape. Once
the government’s anticipated roll-out of projects in
Gauteng begins, tendering conditions should also become
less competitive.

Sustainability

Early results from this strategy are encouraging, with a number
of contracts secured in the Western Cape after establishing
a dedicated team for the Eastern and Western Cape and
KwaZulu-Natal. Longer term, the division continues to target
joint ventures in selected high-growth territories in Africa.

▶▶ Various buildings at Medupi and Kusile power
stations – combined value R1,2 billion
▶▶ New TWP headquarters – R300 million
▶▶ Mediclinic Centurion – R266 million
▶▶ Asidi Schools – R200 million
▶▶ Central workshop for Anglo American – R70 million.

PERFORMANCE
▶▶ Focus on securing work at
acceptable margins
▶▶ Expanding footprint beyond
Gauteng and targeting joint
ventures in selected highgrowth territories in Africa.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY

Construction – Basil Read Roads

What we do
Basil Read Roads, with its skilled
teams, is a leader in high-profile
road contracts in southern Africa.
The review period was an improved year for the roads
division. Although margins were still under pressure in the
market, there was a substantial increase in tenders which
bodes well going forward.
In 2014, Basil Read’s roads division and Roadcrete Africa will
be combined into a larger and stronger roads division that will
be better positioned to capitalise on the forecast upswing in
the industry over the next two years.
Since starting on the N9 Colesberg in March 2011, progress
on this joint venture between Basil Read Roads and Newport
Construction has been excellent. The project was completed
by the March 2014 contractual deadline.
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The Hotazel-Kuruman road upgrade project began in
February 2012 and was completed by the end of April 2014,
with the contract rising from R40 million to just over
R100 million.
The 15-month, R170 million contract from Swakop Uranium
in Namibia to construct an access road at Husab Uranium
Mine began in January 2013. This 22 km contract is on track
to be completed on time and has been a flagship project for
the division, despite challenges presented by the terrain and
conditions of the site (mainly water and environmental
constraints).

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

37%

Group overview
Management review
Divisional review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY
▶▶ South Africa: R637 million upgrade StandertonGreylingstad road
▶▶ Namibia: R170 million access road, Swakop
Uranium
▶▶ Mozambique: R335 million joint venture for
Gaza project.

PERFORMANCE
▶▶ Sites to interact and
leverage off each other’s
resources
▶▶ Innovative construction
techniques employed on
contracts
▶▶ Constituent entities being
combined into a larger and
stronger division
▶▶ Actively tendering in Africa
to expand footprint.
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Corporate
governance

The Gonubie project has been plagued by landowner issues
with Buffalo Municipality. This seems to have been resolved
by the courts and further disruptions to the works are not
expected. This project entails upgrading the existing Gonubie
access road to continuously reinforced concrete pavement
that will be laid by the division’s SP500 slipform paver. This is
the only one of this kind currently in the country retrofitted
with a 3D guidance system. Paving started in late March 2014.

Sustainability

The joint venture Gaza project in Mozambique with
Portuguese company, Opway, began in May 2012. Given
the smooth progress in 2013, the project looks set to
complete by November 2014. As a focus area for Basil Read,
we are actively pricing in Mozambique and have set up

permanent offices in Maputo to ensure we can service future
clients adequately.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Basil Read Roads was recently awarded a 30-month,
R360 million contract from Sanral to rehabilitate the
N2 interchange between Murchison and Marburg in
KwaZulu-Natal. Although only 11 km long, the project
presents a number of logistical challenges. With asphalting
of the first sections under way, the project looks set to meet
the expectations of all interested parties.

Construction – Basil Read Roads continued

Basil Read Roads was awarded the N1 New Redhouse/
Chelsea interchange contract in Port Elizabeth by Sanral.
The contract value is R240 million over 22 months from
mid-October 2013. Although the site has been established and
works are under way, the client is facing some difficulties in
securing all environmental clearances, but this is expected to
be resolved imminently. When completed, the interchange will
provide access from the N2 to Bay West Mall, which is being
constructed in the western suburbs of Port Elizabeth.
The contract involves constructing 3,3 km of dual-carriageway
arterial road including three double bridges and a half clover
leaf interchange on the N2 for the new Bay West Mall. The
contract is scheduled for phased completion – with access
to Bay West Mall in March 2015 and overall completion
by mid-October 2015.
Additional works for the St Helena airport project include
the design and build of a permanent wharf in Rupert’s Bay
(R244 million) and constructing the Horsepoint landfill site
(R14 million). These will be carried out under the existing
contract and within the existing contract period, bringing the
total project value to around £255 million (R3,4 billion) for
phases 1 and 2. Construction is scheduled for completion by
early 2016.
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As one of the fastest-growing civil engineering contractors in
the Eastern Cape, Newport Construction (70% held by Basil
Read) is well placed to capitalise on the expected upturn in
activity in this province, underscoring its empowerment
credentials and focus on transferring skills to SMME
subcontractors.
After exceptional progress on the R61 million civil and
building works project, MetroWind van Stadens wind farm,
the contract was substantially completed seven weeks
ahead of schedule.
Newport’s project management contract to design and
construct 2,4 km of precast concrete wall for the Coega
Development Corporation was completed in February 2014.
Although the value of the contract is relatively small
(R1,5 million), the concept of developing SMME
subcontractors is aligned with Newport’s strategy to
transfer skills and nurture sound partnerships with
emerging contractors.

Group overview
Management review
Divisional review
The 24-month, R240 million contract to rehabilitate the
N5 between Vaalpenspruit and Winburg started in
February 2013 and is on track for completion in early 2015.

The R82 million contract to upgrade section 1 of national road
R37 and construct the new Polokwane smelter interchange
was successfully completed in February 2014.

Roadcrete Africa has also recently been awarded two
contracts in the Standerton area to rehabilitate national route
R23. The combined works are valued at close to
R900 million with the larger contract due for completion
in June 2016.
SprayPave offers world-class technology to a broad base of
customers throughout sub-Saharan Africa from a fleet of
bitumen distributors and haulers. In 2013, SprayPave expanded
its geographical presence by establishing a Cape Town branch
to secure market share in the Western Cape.
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Corporate
governance

Roadcrete Africa was involved in the N8 AlexanderfonteinPetrusburg contract to rehabilitate 49,5 km of the N8 for
R222 million. Despite initial problems with the crushing
subcontractor, this contract is due for completion in July 2014.

Sustainability

Roadcrete was awarded the contract to rehabilitate the R35
and D2514 from Amersfoort to Majuba power station,
valued at R122 million. Although this contract was severely
affected by rainfall due to the type of material used in the
works, it was completed by April 2014.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Roadcrete Africa had a healthy order book from Sanral
exceeding R1 billion for 2013 and into 2014/2015. The
14-month contract for major reconstruction of a section
of the N2 from the KwaZulu-Natal/Mpumalanga border to
Piet Retief was successfully concluded in February 2013.

Construction – Basil Read Roads continued

This was a markedly difficult year, not only for SprayPave but
the industry as a whole. As a result, the company recorded
a disappointingly poor performance.
The company’s sophisticated manufacturing plant remains
a competitive advantage, with 100% of product supplied
manufactured in-house for optimum quality control and
competitive pricing.
The inconsistent supply of bitumen and failure of refineries
to keep pace with rising demand is an ongoing challenge,
exacerbated by rising imports. To mitigate these risks and as
part of its expansion to the Western Cape, SprayPave is
acquiring a reactor plant that will produce various grades of
bitumen and enable it to enter the production process earlier.
The new plant is expected to be in full production by
end-2014.
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The Durban plant was upgraded to include a new weighbridge,
manufacturing plant, modified bitumen plant and a world-class
laboratory. In addition, SprayPave’s Gauteng head office was
expanded to incorporate new workshop facilities and a
training room.
The new financial year appears far more positive, and
management is certain that well-placed marketing and constant
contact with its existing customer base, coupled with the
reliable quality performance of SprayPave’s plant and products,
should be reflected in improved results.
Sladden International (Botswana) was acquired in 2010 to
enhance the group’s civil engineering capabilities in Africa.
Sladden’s client base includes the Botswana government,
Debswana, African Copper, Tati Nickel Mine and it has had
a presence in the prestigious diamond mines of Jwaneng and
Orapa since 1977.

Group overview
Management review
Corporate
governance

Divisional review
This year, Debswana also awarded Sladden a BWP12 million
contract for bulk earthworks linked to stormwater protection
at the modular tailings treatment plant at its Jwaneng mine
in Botswana.

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
The roads market appears more buoyant in the year ahead,
with both provincial and national governments putting more
work out to tender. We continue to compete in areas where
we are established to avoid resources being spread too thin
and to allow different sites to interact and leverage off each
other’s resources where advantageous. A large focus for the
division is to increase its cross-border footprint. We view
this as key to our growth and numerous prospects are
being finalised.

Sustainability

Sladden was awarded a nine-month contract at Debswana’s
Orapa mine to strip and stockpile 91 000 m3 of topsoil,
construct a 2 m rock-fill platform, which will be capped with
a sub-base course layer, and construct drainage structures. It
was also awarded the 13-month Orapa EMV and LVG-HVG
workshops relocation project in a contract valued at some
BWP74 million.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sladden’s key contract to construct 135 km of road between
Nata and Pandamatenga was completed during the 2013
financial year with handover of the road taking place in early
2014. A significant loss-making contract for the group,
negotiations to agree the final account are well under way.

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

61

Construction – Basil Read Civils

What we do
Basil Read Civils operates on a
project basis, mainly in South Africa
and neighbouring countries.
Projects further afield are pursued
for selected clients and where
we have the required capacity
and expertise.

In July 2013, the division achieved two million hours without a
lost-time injury – a significant achievement in the construction
industry and one that reflects that the best practices are
in place.

Basil Read Civils had a satisfactory year, with a number of
contracts performing well in a depressed market. With the
successful closure of a number of loss-making contracts, the
division was able to limit predicted losses and complete its
planned consolidation. Integral to this consolidation process
was strengthening divisional capabilities to address its key risks
of commercial management, contract administration and
project management resources. Senior appointments during
the year and into the new period are ensuring the division is
in a much better position to manage and control current and
future contracts.

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE
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Key contracts for 2013 were the Medupi and Kusile power
station projects for Eskom. These works will continue to
form a large portion of divisional turnover for 2014. While
both Kusile and Medupi carry significant risks, with sizeable
claims outstanding, management is optimistic of resolving
claims timeously.
The division continues to pursue works in the mining sector
locally and in Africa, with over 65% of its 2014 order book
consisting of secured contracts at year-end.

22%

Group overview
Management review
▶▶ South Africa: Civil works at Medupi power station
for Eskom valued at R917 million
▶▶ South Africa: Civil works at Kusile power station
for Eskom in joint venture
▶▶ South Africa: Civil works at Venetia mine for
De Beers.

PERFORMANCE
Major milestone of two million
hours without a lost-time
injury reached in July 2013
Planned consolidation
completed
Divisional capabilities
strengthened
Design-and-construct
contracts being pursued as
tender activity increases.
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Divisional review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY

Sustainability

The division is involved in two contracts on the Medupi
power station project: the secondary and primary clarifiers
and the Medupi ash dump, dams and miscellaneous
infrastructure contracts (currently valued at R151 million
and R766 million, respectively). Both contracts were expected
to be complete in 2013, but the overall project has faced
numerous delays due to industrial action, labour disputes and
unprotected strikes.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The division is involved in three contracts on the Kusile
power station project:
▶▶ Kusile Civil Works joint venture (Basil Read 25%). Contract
works have progressed well and the estimated final value is
expected to exceed R8 billion, with completion anticipated
in 2015
▶▶ The division is also a partner (33,3%) in the Kusile Silos joint
venture with a total contract value of R150 million. This
contract was completed in March 2014
▶▶ The subcontract via the subsidiary, Basil Read Conform,
to construct the columns to the inclined coal conveyor and
the lighting masts (total value R37 million) is due to be
completed in October 2014.

Construction – Basil Read Civils continued

Basil Read Civils is a consortium partner with Bombardier on
the R1 billion Prasa resignalling project for Transnet’s
passenger rail services. Despite some delays due to designrelated changes and modifications, the main works started in
March 2014. The division’s portion of works is R110 million
and the approval of a further R92 million for additional works
is pending. The division is responsible for the civil works and
minor rail works associated with station upgrades through
to 2015.
The division’s sliding section (Basil Read Conform) has
performed very well on the Sasko silos contract, which
will be complete in the second quarter of 2014. At a value
of R20 million, this was not a major contract but has proven
its value by producing a respectable profit for the division
in 2013.
The R108 million contract at Venetia diamond mine
in Limpopo started in 2013, and involved constructing
the surface civils infrastructure for a vertical shaft and a
box-cut for an inclined shaft, with terrace earthworks
and miscellaneous works. Completion is anticipated at the
end of 2014.
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Valente has built a solid reputation in the civil engineering
sector, specialising in constructing bulk infrastructure,
specifically pipeline infrastructure and pipe jacking. Now fully
integrated into Basil Read, this group comprises Valente Bros,
Phambili Pipelines and Tubo Jacked Pipelines.
The Valente Bros group has been involved in the
Zuikerbosch-Panfontein pipelines. This R35 million contract
for client, Rand Water, involves constructing welded steel
pipelines from Zuikerbosch pump station to Panfontein
reservoirs and constructing a 2 000 m² lined dam with
reinforced concrete chambers.
Valente is also participating in another landmark Basil Read
Civils contract, phases 2C and 2H of the Olifants River
water resources development project. Although awarded to
Basil Read Civils, Valente is overseeing execution given its
extensive experience in constructing pipelines. Construction
began in March 2012 and was scheduled for completion by
December 2013. Despite initial delays when certain sections
of the site were not available while land compensation issues
were resolved, the site has since been handed over and
construction is progressing well.

Group overview
Management review
Although the market is still tight and margins are under
pressure, there are positive signs that it may improve towards
mid-2014. This is mainly due to the National Development
Programme, with infrastructure programmes for parastatals
like Eskom, Rand Water and Transnet being rolled out.
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The contract to construct the rising main to Baviaanspoort
as part of the augmentation of Wallmannsthal and Cullinan
bulk water supply scheme was awarded to Valente in
March 2014. This R98,7 million contract is set to commence
in June 2014 and will have a 12-month duration.

The much-anticipated upswing in the construction market,
especially infrastructure works, has not yet started. There has
also been a significant slowdown in private sector markets as
investment in the country slows, perhaps in anticipation of the
outcome of national elections in May 2014 and given the
protracted labour unrest and protests across many sectors
of industry, particularly mining.

Sustainability

Valente’s other key contracts include the SAFDEV
Kruisfontein project valued at R25 million and the
Baviaanspoort Glenway project worth R22 million.
Earlier this year, Valente was awarded a 10-week R5,7 million
contract to reconstruct existing bulkwater mains and pipes at
the Centurion cricket grounds for Bombela CJV in Tshwane.
Valente also secured a 32-week R23,3 million contract to
construct a bulkwater supply for Glenway Estate for client,
Space Securitisation.

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
The primary objective for this division is to establish itself as
the civil engineering contractor of choice in Africa. In addition
to targeting markets in the mining, industrial, public and
private sectors, the division is also improving its presence in
the petro-chemicals industry where there is the greatest
potential to increase its order book.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The group became the largest fleet owner of Volvo pipelayers
in Africa to facilitate successful completion of this project. The
acquisition of these specialised plant items is also enabling Basil
Read to tender more competitively for additional large
diameter pipeline construction projects.

MINING
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Basil Read Mining specialises in opencast
contracts, rehabilitation, bulk earthmoving,
thin/thick/multiple seam projects, hard-rock
selective mining and materials handling.
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Mining – Basil Read Mining

Specialist skills and experience set
Basil Read Mining apart in a
competitive, but currently
depressed, industry. Expanding its
geographic footprint will ensure
it maintains its standing as an
industry leader.
For Basil Read Mining, 2013 was a difficult year. Commendably,
despite very little secured work in a depressed mining industry
characterised by labour unrest, the division produced a solid
set of results. It is already active in Botswana and Namibia, but
is well placed to capitalise on business opportunities further
afield in Africa.
The labour unrest in the South African mining industry, which
led to several unprotected strike actions at the division’s local
sites, resulted in decreased productivity which impacted
results. Labour relations continue to be fragile and are being
managed on an ongoing basis.
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The division has maintained its international accreditations
(ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001), illustrating the
continuous drive for safety and quality that surpass
industry standards.
PERFORMANCE
Despite numerous challenges in the mining sector, the
division remained profitable, recording an 8% decline in
turnover to R935 million (2012: R1 billion) and an operating
profit of R58,9 million (2012: R82,4 million) at a margin of
6,3% (2012: 8,1%). A significant portion of the division’s profits
are derived from the Majwe Mining joint venture, over which
the division has significant influence but not control and
therefore is not included as part of operating profit. Despite
the current state of the mining industry, the division’s order
book is R3,9 billion (2012: R1,5 billion).
CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

15%

Group overview
Management review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY
▶▶ South Africa: Joint venture contract at Beeshoek
mine for Assmang
▶▶ Namibia: Five-year contract for Weatherly
International plc at the Tschudi copper project,
beginning March 2014 – value R1,8 billion
▶▶ Botswana: Contract for phase 2 at Jwaneng mine for
Debswana as part of the Majwe Mining joint venture.

Corporate
governance

Divisional review
Drilling at Orapa, Letlhakane and Damtshaa mines was
complicated by the location of the three mines. The division
was, however, able to achieve its targets and secured
a one-year contract at Orapa for all small diameter
drilling work.

Venetia diamond mine in Limpopo province is a significant
and long-standing client. Divisional activities on site in the
review period were characterised by excessive rain and
industrial action which placed huge pressure on the team to
meet set targets. After renegotiating the parameters for this
load-and-haul contract, the team was able to remove the
maximum amount of kimberlite from the bottom of the pit
under difficult circumstances.

Sustainability

Good progress is also being made on the Majwe joint venture,
despite some technical challenges.

The initial six-month load-and-haul contract with Discovery
Metals has been steadily increased to 16 months.

PERFORMANCE
Need for significant capital
expenditure prohibitive to
rapid expansion
Established contract mining
partner of choice for
projects in southern Africa
Actively investigating
opportunities in selected
markets across Africa.
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shareholder information

Basil Read Mining was awarded a three-month contract
at Jwaneng mine in Botswana, valued at R31 million, to
load and haul over 1 million tonnes of waste per month
from the pit Cut 7 to the waste rock dump. In addition,
a strong relationship with the client generated smaller
projects that kept the remaining plant active and enhanced
overall productivity.

Mining – Basil Read Mining continued

Basil Read Mining has completed the second year of a
three-year opencast mining contract at Northern Cape-based
Beeshoek mine, co-owned by Assore (through Assmang) and
African Rainbow Minerals. This is the division’s first iron ore
project, adding an understanding of the requirements of hard
rock applications to the set of skills. Despite the impact of
labour issues during the year, the company has moved
15 million tonnes to date and will move 48 million tonnes
in total. The division secured a one-year extension to this
contract in April 2014, extending the contract to June 2016.
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The division was awarded a R1,8 billion contract by Weatherly
International plc for the Tschudi copper project in Namibia.
The project has two phases: a 10-month start-up phase from
June 2014 and the open-pit phase expected to last 66 months
from June 2014 to December 2019. Although the initial
contract period for the two phases is five years, it has a
two-year extension option.
Blasting & Excavating (B&E) has provided drilling and blasting,
load-and-haul and crushing services to the construction,
quarrying, civil engineering and mining industries since 1972.
As a leading drill and blast specialist contractor, the company
has executed projects in all major southern African countries
including Uganda, Zambia, Mauritius and Madagascar.

Group overview
Management review
Corporate
governance

Divisional review
The contract has been extended at Jwaneng mine for drilling
works in Cut 6 and Cut 7, with a completion date of end
2014. B&E is also assisting the Majwe Mining joint venture
at Jwaneng with drill rigs for restricted spaces to increase
bulk drilling.

Sustainability

The project at Uitvlugt mine for Highveld Steel and Vanadium
was completed in 2013.

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
Given ongoing concerns about challenges in the South African
mining industry over the next few years, and a softening
market globally, Basil Read Mining is investigating opportunities
in carefully selected markets across Africa. There is a caveat
to possible expansion, considering the significant capital
expenditure required, and the division is therefore
simultaneously investigating alternative financing arrangements.
However, in terms of both expansion and financing, an
established track record in South Africa will stand the division
in good stead.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

B&E has the percussion drilling contract at Venetia diamond
mine, which was extended for another three years. The
majority of its drill and blast fleet (13 drill rigs and two pit
vipers) is based and operational at Venetia.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Basil Read’s engineering division adds
significant in-house expertise and experience,
complementing the activities of our
construction, mining and developments divisions.
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Engineering – Basil Read Engineering

The group is proving that effective
risk management is critical in
providing a turnkey service in the
engineering, procurement and
construction environment.
The disposal of TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd to WorleyParsons
was concluded in March 2013, realising a profit before tax of
R288,5 million and generating R877 million in cash. The
remaining entities in the engineering division are well
integrated into the Basil Read group.
PERFORMANCE
Results in the engineering division were negatively
impacted by delays experienced in the awarding of
contracts. Overhead results were disproportionately
high as the division made a decision to maintain capacity
in anticipation of new work, particularly in the renewable
energy market. The division reported on operating profit
of R12,9 million (2012: R54,0 million) from an improved
revenue level of R676,4 million (2012: R466,1 million).
The division’s order book at year-end was R280 million
(2012: R1,0 billion).
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Matomo, the group’s engineering, procurement and
construction (EPC) company is rapidly being recognised as a
quality EPC service provider in sub-Saharan Africa, particularly
in the mining and energy industries.
For process projects, the company’s capabilities range from
conceptual studies, to design, construction, commissioning
and optimisation of pilot scale and production facilities for
refineries, concentrators, smelters, materials handling as
well as support/infrastructural and utility systems.
Matomo’s energy division is structured around four focus
areas: energy efficiency, renewable energy, co-generation and
self-generation. The company is equipped and skilled to deliver
any alternative energy project, including biomass/biogas, wind
energy, solar thermal and photovoltaic power plants.
CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

11%

Group overview
Management review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY
▶▶ MetroWind van Stadens wind farm in Port Elizabeth
▶▶ Boshof photovoltaic project in the Free State at a
contract value of R170 million
▶▶ TWP headquarters in Melrose Arch for
client, Amdec.

PERFORMANCE
Affected by delays in the
awarding of contracts
Capacity maintained resulting
in disproportionately high
overhead costs.
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Divisional review
On the renewable energy side, the flagship R475 million
27 MW MetroWind van Stadens wind farm project in the
Eastern Cape reached commercial operating date on
7 February 2014, one of the first Round 1 projects to reach
completion. The project has received high praise, including an
endorsement from the Minister of Energy earlier in 2013.
Basil Read Energy holds 23% of the equity in this project.

Sustainability

The company was awarded EPC execution of the
Barberton tailings retreatment plant in late 2012, the
second project with Pan African Resources. The project
is a 100 000 tonnes per month tailings retreatment plant
to recover gold and was successfully handed over to the
client in the second quarter of 2013.

It was also awarded the EPC contract to construct a new
tertiary milling plant at the Two Rivers platinum mine, a
joint venture between African Rainbow Minerals and Impala
Platinum in the southern part of the eastern limb of the
Bushveld Igneous Complex. This project was successfully
commissioned at the end of 2013.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Effective risk management is critical in the EPC environment
as more risk is carried by the company. Matomo’s expertise
in this area means it is safely able to provide clients with
complete transparency, assurance and peace of mind
throughout the project development cycle. The EPC model
is increasingly becoming the preferred option for clients,
which offers significant growth opportunities for Matomo.

Engineering – Basil Read Engineering continued

Early electrical power produced during the commissioning
phase of the plant was procured by Eskom, generating revenue
from the project earlier than expected. In addition, 3 Energy
South Africa, a B-BBEE facilities management company
co-owned by Basil Read Energy (25%) began its contractual
obligations at the wind farm in November 2013.
The joint venture, Engala, between Matomo and Isolux Corsan
(Spain) was awarded the R170 million 60 MW Boshof
photovoltaic project by Sun Edison. This Free State project is
for the balance of plant with the photovoltaic panels, inverters
and tracker structures being supplied by the client.
A number of vertical integration initiatives are being
investigated, including alliances with strategic equipment
suppliers and specific fabrication and installation functions
that are core to the successful execution of both energy
and process projects.
Matomo is currently on track to obtain ISO and OSHAS
accreditation in the first half of 2014. With contractual
obligations becoming more stringent, primarily in the energy
sector, as the company moves into larger projects, it is
updating business systems and procedures to accommodate
more complex projects. The focus on moving into Africa is
also starting to bear fruit with imminent projects and studies
for projects in Namibia, Zimbabwe, Mozambique, Guinea,
Democratic Republic of Congo and Zambia. Working in each
of these countries presents unique logistic, cultural and legal
challenges which are being carefully managed.

76

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

In 2014, the mining sector is expected to remain under
pressure, with the focus on “stay in business” work rather
than major expansions or development of new projects.
However, a number of junior miners are developing projects
that could move into execution by mid-2014. In the energy
sector, the focus has been primarily on the renewable energy
programme in South Africa. Given intense competition in this
market, Matomo will continue to consider its contracting
options – including smaller projects – while optimising
efficiencies, and maintaining its prudent expansion into Africa.
LYT Architecture is one of the most diversified design and
architectural practices in South Africa with significant skill and
experience in mining, infrastructure, industrial, educational,
residential, commercial, hospitality, retail and transportation
projects, both in South Africa and abroad.
In September 2012, the practice was relaunched as LYT
Architecture, reflecting a new management structure and
style, and a focus on addressing many of the pressing issues
in South Africa through a design-orientated, solutions-driven
approach. This shift in emphasis is a direct result of the
long-term strategic plan that was implemented towards the
end of 2011.
LYT Architecture’s results have improved markedly, reflecting
better conditions in most of its active sectors. LYT is working
on projects throughout sub-Sahara Africa, particularly Zambia,
Angola, Mozambique, Ghana and Nigeria. LYT Form & Space
was registered in Nigeria in 2013 to facilitate existing projects

Group overview
Management review
The local hospitality industry remains under pressure although
some new hotels are being planned. Cross-border, however,
demand for hotel accommodation continues, particularly in
West Africa.
The retail sector has, to an extent, defied expectations as
some larger urban centres are still going ahead. LYT is
completing Forest Hill Mall and has begun work on a new
mall in Mthatha. The main focus of its retail operations
remains in Nigeria, where South African developers are
committing significant resources to a regional mall roll-out.
LYT is also doing work for local Nigerian developers where
opportunities arise.

During 2013, C S SKY, a Canadian solar company, acquired a
controlling interest in the 75 MW Beaufort West solar
photovoltaic project, with Basil Read Energy retaining its 26%
shareholding. Foreign power utilities have dominated the
South African government’s renewable energy procurement
programme in 2013, driving solar photovoltaic prices to
sub-marginal levels. This has resulted in substantially lower
investor returns, particularly in solar photovoltaic projects,
which in turn puts pressure on the Beaufort West project.
In line with the company’s strategy of diversification by
offtaker mix, geographical footprint and technological, Basil
Read Energy has expanded its project development portfolio
to include hydropower generation, biomass power generation
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Demand in the mining sector remains mixed as the downturn
in commodity prices is balanced by increasing pressure on
mining houses to deliver on housing, schooling and other
social investment initiatives. LYT has been commissioned to
design housing and other projects in this sector.

Africa’s economic growth depends on reliable and costeffective electrical power, and independent power producers
are proving a most effective means for governments to meet
this ever-increasing demand. The World Bank reports that
US$45 billion per annum has to be spent in Africa on power
infrastructure to meet demand, and 40% of that spend has to
happen in southern Africa. Basil Read Energy is well placed
to capitalise on these opportunities.

Sustainability

Activity in the commercial development sector continues to
improve, and LYT is involved in several new developments or
refurbishments which will continue in 2014.

LYT continues to operate as the pre-eminent practice in the
education sector, and is executing its first energy-efficient
“green” school in Soweto. While school projects are a
low-profit proposition for LYT, the practice is committed
to education as a key success factor for South Africa.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

and develop new business in the region. While projects
outside South Africa generally take time to mature, LYT
believes geographical diversity is crucial to its long-term
sustainability.

Engineering – Basil Read Engineering continued

and co-generation projects. Opportunities to use municipal
solid waste, waste coal and biomass as primary fuel sources
for power generation are also being investigated.
With developers oversubscribing to solar photovoltaic and
wind capacity under the South African government’s
renewable energy procurement programme, Basil Read Energy
has strategically shifted its development focus to technologies
that are undersubscribed and would benefit the group’s core
capability, ie construction. Accordingly, the company has
extended its development portfolio:
Acquired a 65% equity stake in the 50 MW Orange River
hydro portfolio consisting of three prospective hydro sites
from Sidala Energy.
▶▶ Two furnace offgas projects (55 MW) being developed by
Prana Special Gas Projects. These will either generate
power for the furnace operator or for sale to the South
African government under the anticipated co-generation
power procurement programme.
▶▶ Two biomass combustion projects (20 MW) using sawmill
by-product (sawdust, bark and offcuts) as the primary fuel
source. These projects will sell their power to the South
African government under the anticipated co-generation
power procurement programme.
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The supply of electrical power in southern Africa remains tight
as a result of continued delays in Eskom’s new-generation
capacity-build programme. While demand for additional
generation capacity in the region remains high, legislation and
historical tariff structures that do not reflect the actual cost
of generation make the South African market particularly
challenging for independent power producers. In addition,
consolidation in the renewable energy segment is expected to
accelerate after the latest bidding round as margins have been
significantly eroded for developers.
The upfront development cost of projects, particularly in
South Africa, is the industry’s main challenge at present.
Capital is spent at risk and returns have been severely eroded,
particularly in the wind and solar photovoltaic market.
With continued delays in Eskom’s build programme, demand
for so-called base-load capacity is growing. This is creating
opportunities for companies such as Basil Read Energy to
provide this capacity through hydropower generation and
biomass and gas-fired power plants.
Africa continues to have insufficient generation capacity and
this will be the case for the foreseeable future. Many African
nations are looking to independent power producers
to fill this deficit. Basil Read Energy continues to explore
opportunities north of South Africa and is well positioned
to capitalise on these opportunities as they arise.

Group overview
Management review
Equally, Africa lacks the generation capacity to meet demand, with many nations looking to independent power producers to fill
this deficit. As a multidisciplinary group, Basil Read is well positioned to capitalise on these opportunities. The MetroWind van
Stadens wind farm is a good example of the group’s range of skills being applied to a single project.
When the first shiploads of Sinovel wind turbine components docked at the Port of Ngqura near Port Elizabeth in mid-2013,
Basil Read Matomo – as developer of the wind farm – was responsible for the logistics in transporting these massive turbines to
site. Simply unloading the turbine components at the harbour took a full week. Erection began in August 2013.
The wind farm is a strategic project with national significance and numerous benefits for the Nelson Mandela Bay Metro. The
wind farm will feed 80 000 MWh/year of green electricity into the metro grid. In addition, it will meet nearly 50% of the metro’s
target to generate clean sustainable renewable electricity while benefiting the local community through focused investment.
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CASE STUDY:THE LOGISTICS OF WIND FARMS
The demand for cost-effective reliable electrical power is rising in South Africa and Africa. In December 2012, the South African
Minister of Energy announced government would procure an additional 3 200 MW of renewable energy-generation capacity
from independent power producers in line with the integrated resource plan for electricity 2010 to 2030. In addition, tariff
increases are driving many large electrical power consumers to consider alternative sources.

Sustainability

Its most advanced project is the Lehating manganese project
in the Northern Cape, for which the bankable feasibility study
has been completed. A mining rights application is in the
process of being lodged.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

TWP Investments was the investment arm for the mining and
processing segment of the TWP group and remains in the
Basil Read stable. Its mandate is to invest in mining and
processing projects from an equity perspective while creating
new pipeline opportunities for the group.

DEVELO
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PMENTS

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

From affordable housing developments to
mixed-use residential estates, the division
is laying solid foundations for vibrant
new communities across South Africa.
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Developments – Basil Read Developments

Basil Read Developments continues to entrench its reputation
for developing sustainable communities, with a number of
landmark developments over the past year.
This division is well positioned in the subsidised and affordable
housing sector where government expenditure over the next
few years is expected to increase significantly. It has also
extended its urban management experience to provide expert
services and capacity-building functions in this area. Given the
significant potential for integrated residential developments in
the low/middle-income category, both in South Africa and
across the continent, the division is exploring a range of
opportunities against stringent criteria.
Although the smallest of Basil Read’s divisions, it has the
largest impact with a total economic impact of over R60 billion
during construction, creating over 116 000 employment
opportunities. For the group, this division is strategically
significant, given its focus on sustainable development and
the secondary work it creates for group companies. Some
R4,5 billion in work, not yet included in the group’s order
book, will be generated for other Basil Read divisions over the
life of current projects.
In 2013, the division continued to focus on several large-scale
integrated and affordable housing developments as part of its
contribution to reducing the housing backlog in South Africa
by creating sustainable cities and communities.
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PERFORMANCE
Basil Read Developments contributed revenue of R69,9 million
(2012: R25,0 million) and an operating profit of R6,3 million
(2012: loss of R30,0 million) from core operations, excluding
the writedown of the Rolling Hills Leisure Estate. This
improved performance largely reflects the sale of further
stands at Klipriver Business Park, an industrial park south
of Johannesburg.
Basil Read Developments continues to focus on its large-scale
integrated housing developments, Savanna City, Malibongwe
Ridge and Cosmo City.

CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP REVENUE

1%

Group overview
Management review
▶▶ South Africa: Phase 1 of mega-scale integrated
housing development, Savanna City, under way
▶▶ South Africa: The R1,8 billion Malibongwe Ridge
project broke ground in July 2012.

Corporate
governance

Divisional review
KEY CONTRACTS UNDER WAY

Sustainability

The servicing of phase 1 has started and will run over
18 months, comprising over 1 000 residential stands and
six non-residential stands.

Situated south of Johannesburg’s CBD, in the Midvaal Local
Municipality, Savanna City will provide over 18 000 affordable
housing opportunities including schools, churches,
commercial opportunities, parks and a 400 ha environmental
area. Basil Read and its partner, Housing Impact Fund of
South Africa (HIFSA), a fund managed by Old Mutual, will be
working with the Gauteng Department of Human Settlements
and Midvaal Local Municipality to ensure the 1 400 ha
development sets a new benchmark in economic development
and housing.

PERFORMANCE
Significant socio-economic
impact by creating
sustainable cities and
communities
Ability to provide expert
services, driving expansion
into Africa.
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shareholder information

The Savanna City development was officially launched on
20 November 2013 with full support from government.
The entire development will generate a projected R60 million
contribution to divisional profits over the next five years in
the form of fees and sales of serviced stands. In addition,
R1,7 billion in construction turnover is expected for
the group.

Developments – Basil Read Developments continued

Savanna City will take 10 years to complete,
creating 55 000 jobs during construction and around
13 000 permanent jobs post construction.
Basil Read Developments’ flagship project Cosmo City has
reached its final stages. All planned fully subsidised houses
have been handed over to qualifying families. In addition,
the division launched its gap housing project (under the
government’s FLISP or finance-linked individual subsidy
programme) during the year, with the national minister
for human settlements handing over the first 31 houses
in December 2013.
The industrial park, a joint venture with Investec, is well
established. The first tranche of stands was transferred during
the year and numerous businesses are already operational.
There is still significant revenue potential at Cosmo City
from industrial park sales, and some housing and
commercial opportunities.
Work is under way on the Malibongwe Ridge development,
adjacent to Cosmo City, north-west of Johannesburg. The
R1,8 billion affordable housing project is being developed for
the Gauteng Department of Local Government and Housing
and the City of Johannesburg.
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Malibongwe Ridge will provide housing for over 5 500 families
in a sustainable mixed-use, integrated development. Around
60% of the project will comprise low-income housing units
with rental rooms. The balance will be split among low-income
freestanding houses, finance-linked partially subsidised (GAP)
houses, bonded houses and rental/social housing units.
Servicing for the first phase covering 484 residential stands is
due for completion in July 2014.
Basil Read Developments is also concluding major sales at its
Klipriver Business Park. The R390 million business park
spans 143 ha with development land of 119 ha and 96 saleable
erven that will be developed in four phases.
Covering the entire R59/R550 interchange and accessible to
all major road (N1 and N3) and rail networks, state-of-the-art
facilities provide a superior high-tech working environment.
The 52 ha phase 1 is proclaimed, fully serviced and includes
fibre-optic communication systems and security.
Klipriver Business Park is considered the new major growth
area of Gauteng – a vibrant working node with excellent
access to all major southern suburbs of Johannesburg including
Meyerton, Vanderbijlpark and Eye of Africa.

Group overview
Management review
Corporate
governance

Divisional review
OUTLOOK FOR 2014
Prospects for the division’s involvement in top-structure
development of affordable housing projects remain good,
especially where it is already the master developer such as
Malibongwe Ridge and Savanna City. Demand for affordable
housing remains strong, supported by substantial government
investment, but rising interest rates, continued high
unemployment and pressure on household incomes pose
a challenge.

Sustainability

The division signed a land development agreement in May
2012 to develop a mixed-use project on a prime 15-acre site
at the Munis Sports Club in Zambia. After concept designs
and a high-level feasibility study were completed, a market
study was initiated to determine the best use of commercial,
retail and office space and tenants.

Basil Read Developments was appointed to undertake a
feasibility study for the City of Kigali in Rwanda and its
partners, Shelter Afrique and the Rwandan Development
Bank, for an integrated housing project. The feasibility study
has been completed. Phase 2 is expected to be released
shortly.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The 800 ha Rolling Hills Leisure Estate, a lifestyle
development on the major N4 route to Mpumalanga, is being
actively marketed. This contemporary estate offers a mix of
freehold, sectional title, retirement, eco-village, hotel and
conference opportunities. Although it has attracted much
interest, market conditions in the upper-end residential and
second-home sector remain difficult and a writedown of
R22,6 million was taken in the period.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

For Basil Read, sustainability begins with
leading governance standards. These inform
every facet of our business – from our operating
practices, financial disciplines and community
initiatives to our environmental conservation
and human resources.
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Corporate governance

Our board considers compliance
as a minimum standard – the aim
is continual improvement towards
best practice in all governance
issues. The board evaluation
conducted during the year is part
of this process.
The Basil Read board of directors is committed to the
highest standards of corporate governance contained in
the Code of Governance Principles for South Africa 2009
(King III), the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended
(the Act), the JSE listings requirements (listings requirements)
and other regulations.

▶▶ Principle 3.2: The board is finding suitably skilled and
experienced independent non-executive directors to ensure
all audit committee members are independent nonexecutive directors
▶▶ Principle 9.3: An independent assurance of sustainability
reporting and disclosure is under review.

The board’s role is to provide the leadership necessary to
promote application of the principles of good corporate
governance throughout the group.

In March 2013, the board split the audit and risk committee
into separate committees to ensure effective oversight of
audit and risk issues. Membership of these committees is
detailed on page 91.

KING III COMPLIANCE
The board is satisfied that the group complies in all material
respects with the principles and recommendations of King III,
most of which are entrenched in Basil Read’s internal controls,
policies and procedures, with the following exceptions:
▶▶ Principle 2.24: Development of a governance framework
between the holding company and its subsidiary companies
is under way
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JSE LISTINGS REQUIREMENTS
The board has considered amendments and guidance notes
issued in 2013 by the JSE on listings requirements and is
satisfied that the group fully complies with the listings
requirements. The annual compliance certificate for the
year under review has been submitted to the JSE.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Social, ethics and
transformation

Nominations
and investment

Internal audit

The non-executive directors have the necessary skills,
qualifications and experience to provide judgement that is
independent of management on issues material to the group.
Biographical details of each director are on page 23.
Board charter
The Basil Read board charter is closely aligned with the
recommendations of King III and forms the basis of the
board’s responsibilities and duties by:
▶▶ Regulating the parameters within which the board operates
▶▶ Setting out specific responsibilities to be discharged by
board members.
The charter specifically reserves the following matters for
the board:
▶▶ Determining and reviewing the company’s strategic
direction, and exercising prudent control over the
company and its affairs
▶▶ Approving financial objectives, including budgets,
and non-financial objectives and policies proposed
by management
▶▶ Overseeing the company’s performance against
agreed objectives

▶▶ Ensuring there is an effective risk-based internal
audit function
▶▶ Delegating appropriate authority to the chief
executive officer
▶▶ Appointing the chief executive officer, executive and
non-executive directors on recommendation from the
nominations committee
▶▶ Approving succession planning for the board
▶▶ Ensuring the integrity of financial reporting and the full
and timely disclosure of material matters.

Corporate
governance

THE BOARD
Basil Read has a unitary board led by an independent nonexecutive chairman. The board consists of two executive
directors and eight non-executive directors, five of whom
are independent. However, with the resignation of the
financial director, the board currently has one executive
director. The board has obtained the required dispensation
from the JSE, pending appointment of the financial director.

Changes to the board during the year
The board has a formal procedure for appointing directors.
This procedure is transparent and a matter for the board as a
whole. The nominations committee applies identified criteria
in conducting the search for a director, considering the
balance of skills, experience and diversity before making a
recommendation to the board.
On 30 May 2013, Mr Donny Gouveia resigned as the financial
director and Mr Pieter Marais was appointed in his stead. On
22 November 2013, Mr Marais resigned as financial director
and chief financial officer. Ms Amanda Wightman was
appointed interim chief financial officer.
Subsequent to year-end, Mr Marius Heyns retired as chief
executive officer and the board has initiated the necessary
processes for appointing a successor. Des Hughes has been
appointed as interim chief executive officer and managing
director from 1 June 2014.
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Management review

Remuneration

Divisional review

Risk
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Sustainability

Audit

Company
secretary

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Board of
directors

Group overview

Shareholders and
other stakeholders

Corporate governance continued

Board meetings and attendance
During 2013, the board met four times for normal business and three times for special meetings, with attendance noted below:

Members
SLL Peteni
ML Heyns
MDG Gouveia*
PJ Marais#
NJ Townshend†
PC Baloyi
CP Davies
NV Lila
CE Manning
ACG Molusi^
SS Ntsaluba
TA Tlelai

14 Mar

30 May

29 Aug

31 Oct
Special
board




n/a
n/a












n/a










n/a

n/a










n/a

n/a








7 Nov
Special
board

21 Nov
Special
board

1 Dec



n/a

n/a










n/a

n/a










n/a
n/a
n/a








 Attended
 Absent with apology
n/a Individual was not a director of the company at that date

*

		

^

Independence
The nominations and investment committee assessed the
independence of non-executive directors against the
criteria of King III, the listings requirements and the Act. The
assessment confirmed that five non-executive directors
were independent. The names of directors at the date of
this report, their year of appointment and independence
status are set out below:

Responsibilities of chairman and chief executive officer
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the chief
executive officer and chairman of the board, such that no one
individual has unfettered powers of decision making.

Members
Executive
directors
ML Heyns
Non-executive
directors
SLL Peteni (chairman)
PC Baloyi
CP Davies
NV Lila
CE Manning
ACG Molusi
SS Ntsaluba
TA Tlelai

Independent

Date of
appointment

–

19/10/2004

yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
no
no
no

05/07/2006
19/10/2012
05/07/2006
23/08/2012
23/08/2012
14/03/2013
05/07/2006
05/07/2006

Conflicts of interest
Basil Read has a conflict of interest policy designed to
assist directors in identifying situations that could present
potential conflicts of interest. A comprehensive register of
directors’ interests is maintained, and updated and signed
by each director.
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#
†

Resigned 30 May 2013
Appointed 30 May 2013, resigned 22 November 2013
Resigned 12 March 2013
Appointed 14 March 2013

Election and rotation of directors
In terms of the non-executive directors’ policy, directors will
not serve for more than three terms (nine years) and the
retirement age is 70. Directors are subject to rotation in line
with the company’s memorandum of incorporation and the
Act. At least one-third of directors retire each year and can
offer themselves for re-election at every annual general
meeting (AGM).
Mr Lester Peteni, Ms Nopasika Lila and Mr Charles Davies will
retire by rotation at the AGM on 26 June 2014. Mr Peteni will
turn 70 in November 2014 and, as such, he makes himself
available for re-election until the end of November 2014.
Mr Davies has served three terms and is not offering himself
for re-election. Ms Lila will retire from the board on
26 June 2014.
Directors appointed by the board after the AGM are
elected at the next AGM following their appointment. No
appointment was made by the board in the review period.
The board is satisfied that directors are eligible for re-election.
Director induction and ongoing training
On appointment, directors participate in an induction
programme. Their ongoing training and development is a
standard board agenda item, including updates on various
training and development initiatives. The company secretary
liaises with directors to source relevant seminars and
conferences for them to attend, funded by Basil Read.

The table indicates non-executive representation on board committees at the date of this report.

Members

Independent
yes
yes
yes
yes
yes
no
no
no

SLL Peteni (chairman)
PC Baloyi
CP Davies
NV Lila
CE Manning
ACG Molusi
SS Ntsaluba
TA Tlelai

Audit

Risk



Chairman

Chairman

Remco

Social,
ethics and
transformation

Nominations
and investment
Chairman

Chairman










Chairman




AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee is constituted as a statutory committee
of the group, as well as a board committee approved by the
board. The committee has approved terms of reference and
its mandate includes:
▶▶ Safeguarding Basil Read assets
▶▶ Operation of adequate systems and control processes
▶▶ Operation of adequate risk management processes for
internal audit and financial risk
▶▶ Preparation of accurate and timely financial reports
and statements
▶▶ Compliance with all applicable legal requirements and
accounting standards.


Composition
The committee is constituted of three independent nonexecutive directors and one non-executive director, who
have the requisite financial skills and experience to fulfil the
committee’s duties:
▶▶ NV Lila – independent non-executive director (chairman)
▶▶ PC Baloyi – independent non-executive director
▶▶ CP Davies – independent non-executive director
▶▶ SS Ntsaluba – non-executive director
Frequency and attendance of committee meetings
In addition to committee members, the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, head: group risk and compliance,
heads of finance, internal auditors and external auditors attend
meetings by invitation.

The committee meets separately with management, internal audit and external audit prior to or at every meeting. During the year,
the committee met six times including special meetings. Attendance is presented below:

Members

12 Feb
Special
meeting

NV Lila
PC Baloyi
CP Davies
SS Ntsaluba


n/a



 Attended

 Absent with apology

13 Mar

26 Mar
Special
meeting

29 May

28 Aug

21 Nov


n/a























n/a Individual was not a member of the committee at that date
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Group overview
Management review

BOARD COMMITTEES
In exercising control of the group, the directors are
empowered to delegate tasks to various board committees.
The board has established five standing committees: audit;
risk; remuneration (Remco); social, ethics and transformation;
and nominations and investment. Further information on the
committees appears on subsequent pages.

Divisional review

In compliance with the JSE listings requirements, the board has
considered and is satisfied that the company secretary is
competent, and has the relevant qualifications and experience.

Corporate
governance

Dealing in securities
Basil Read has a policy for dealing in the company’s securities.
During a closed period, as defined in the listings requirements,
directors, their associates and designated employees are
prohibited from dealing in the company’s securities. Prior to
the start of each closed period, a formal notification is
circulated to all directors and employees, advising them of the
closed period.

Sustainability

The facilitator is in the process of finalising results for the
board committees’ evaluation. The results of the evaluation
will be reported on in our next report.

Company secretary
Andiswa Ndoni is the company secretary of the group. All
directors have direct access to the company secretary who
provides guidance and assistance in line with King III and the
listings requirements. The company secretary is not a director
and therefore maintains an arm’s-length relationship with the
board. The company secretary is responsible for the flow of
information to the board and its committees and for ensuring
compliance with board procedures. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, whose
appointment and removal is a board matter.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Board and committee performance evaluation
The board commissioned an effectiveness review by an
external, independent facilitator. The independent facilitator
has no connection with the group. The review took the form
of a detailed questionnaire and series of structured interviews
with each director. All directors completed the questionnaire
and were interviewed during the review.

Corporate governance continued

RISK COMMITTEE
The risk committee assists the board with its responsibilities
for risk governance. Its broad mandate is oversight of risk
exposure and future risk strategy, risk management process,
risk governance, levels of risk tolerance and disclosure on risk.
The committee has terms of reference in place and its
mandate includes:
▶▶ Reviewing total risk management and procedures, including
the effectiveness of systems and processes
▶▶ Reviewing processes and procedures for risk identification,
analysis and quantification, including the systematic,
documented, formal risk assessment to be undertaken
▶▶ Advising the board on the company’s overall risk appetite,
tolerance and strategy
▶▶ Monitoring that risks taken are within tolerance and
appetite levels
▶▶ Reviewing the adequacy of the group’s insurance
programme.
Composition
The committee comprises the following members:
▶▶ PC Baloyi – independent non-executive director (chairman)
▶▶ ACG Molusi – non-executive director
▶▶ ML Heyns – chief executive officer
▶▶ MDG Gouveia – chief financial officer (resigned 30 May
2013)
▶▶ PJ Marais – chief financial officer (appointed 30 May 2013,
resigned 22 November 2013)
▶▶ N Milne – commercial director
▶▶ A Naidoo – head: group risk and compliance
Frequency and attendance of committee meetings
After its constitution by the board in March 2013, the
committee met three times during the remainder of the
review period, with attendance shown below:
Members

Composition
The committee is constituted of two independent nonexecutive directors and one non-executive director. The
committee comprises the following members:
▶▶ CP Davies – independent non-executive director (chairman)
▶▶ CE Manning – independent non-executive director
▶▶ TA Tlelai – non-executive director
Frequency and attendance of committee meetings
In addition to committee members, the executive director:
human resources, group remuneration and services manager
and executive director: subsidiaries attend meetings by
invitation.
During the year under review, the committee met four times.
Attendance of meetings held during the year under review is
presented in the table below:

30 May

28 Aug

20 Nov

Members

13 Feb

10 July

10 Sept

09 Oct





n/a






n/a







n/a




CP Davies
CE Manning
TA Tlelai

















PC Baloyi
ACG Molusi
ML Heyns
MDG Gouveia
PJ Marais
N Milne
A Naidoo

 Attended
 Absent with apology
n/a Individual was not a member of the committee at that date
The risk committee report on page 96 provides further details
on the governance of risk in the group.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration committee is constituted as a statutory
committee of the group, as well as a board committee
approved by the board.
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The committee has terms of reference in place and its
mandates include:
▶▶ Assisting the board by ensuring that the group’s
remuneration strategies and policies are designed to attract,
motivate and retain quality employees, directors and senior
management, committed to achieving the overall goals of
the company
▶▶ Making recommendations to the board and shareholders for
their consideration and final approval regarding
remuneration strategy and policy
▶▶ Assisting the board by ensuring that directors and
executives are remunerated fairly and responsibly and that
their remuneration is aligned with shareholders’ interests
▶▶ Monitoring of succession planning for the CEO and
senior management
▶▶ Ensuring that disclosure regarding the remuneration of
directors and prescribed officers is accurate, complete
and transparent.
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 Attended
 Absent with apology
n/a Individual was not a member of the committee at that date
The remuneration committee report on page 100 provides
further details.
SOCIAL, ETHICS AND TRANSFORMATION
COMMITTEE
The social, ethics and transformation committee is constituted
as a statutory committee in terms of the Act, as well as a
board committee.
The committee is responsible for developing policies and
guidelines to manage social, economic and sustainability
development, safety, health and environmental matters. The
committee has terms of reference in place and its mandate
includes both statutory and board-delegated duties which
include monitoring the company’s activities in light of relevant
legislation, regulator, best practice and codes on:
▶▶ Social and economic development
▶▶ Good corporate citizenship
▶▶ Environmental management, safety and health of employees
and communities in which the company operates
▶▶ Labour and employment practices.

28 May

10 Sept

19 Nov



n/a
n/a






n/a

n/a




n/a

n/a






n/a

 Attended
 Absent with apology
n/a Individual was not a member of the committee at that date
The integrated annual report contains further information on
company activities which the committee oversees.
NOMINATIONS AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
The committee makes recommendations to the board on
the composition of the board and board committees and
ensures that the board comprises suitably qualified individuals.
It is also responsible, in consultation with other directors,
for evaluating the chairman of the board and individual
directors. The committee has terms of reference in place.
The committee also serves as the investment committee
responsible for considering the group’s acquisitions,
mergers and disposals.
Composition
The committee comprises the following members:
▶▶ SLL Peteni – independent non-executive director (chairman)
▶▶ CP Davies – independent non-executive director
▶▶ SS Ntsaluba – non-executive director
▶▶ ML Heyns – chief executive officer
Members’ attendance during the year is shown below:
Members
13 Mar 17 May
10 Jul 24 Aug 18 Oct
SLL Peteni





CP Davies





SS Ntsaluba





ML Heyns





 Attended
 Absent with apology
n/a Individual was not a member of the committee at that date

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE
Following the appointment of a group chief information officer
in the prior period, a management and steering structure was
established to effectively manage the group information
technology (IT) infrastructure and information systems
functions. Related management committees manage the
day-to-day maintenance and enhancement of IT infrastructure
and systems. These committees report to the IT steering
committee which in turn reports to the group audit and
risk committees.
In 2012, information systems were assessed against the
emerging requirements of different business units and an
appropriate strategy developed. This highlighted three primary
areas of activity:
▶▶ Short-term risk mitigation to further enhance the core
business system
▶▶ Medium-term exercises to develop or enhance system
capabilities in priority areas
▶▶ A longer-term project to define and procure an integrated
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system to more
optimally support the wider needs of the group.
Other areas of focus in 2014 include:
▶▶ IT integration across the group
▶▶ Improved software asset management to ensure licensing
compliance
▶▶ IT business continuity planning
▶▶ Review of procurement channels and strategies
▶▶ Improvements to the group wide area network (WAN)
▶▶ Enhanced system functionality in various key areas to
support the business.
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Group overview
Management review

TA Tlelai
CE Manning
ACG Molusi
ML Heyns
G Hellhoff
NJ Townshend

5 Mar

Divisional review

Members

Basil Read is committed to the transformation of the South
African construction industry to be more representative of
the demographics of the country. We acknowledge that
transformation is a journey and not something that can be
achieved overnight. The critical areas are skills development,
employment equity and management control and we are
pleased with the improvement shown in these areas. The
building blocks we put down today will form the path to a
transformed company in future.

Corporate
governance

Frequency and attendance of committee meetings
In addition to committee members, the head: group risk and
compliance, group legal adviser, director: group SHERQ and
group remuneration and services manager attend meetings.
During the period, the committee met four times, with
attendance presented below:

The charter is a framework for the construction sector to
address broad-based transformation, enhance capacity and
increase productivity to meet global best-practice standards.
Its implementation will be monitored by the construction
charter council, which will have executive capacity and will
provide the necessary links to government institutions.

Sustainability

CONSTRUCTION SECTOR B-BBEE SCORECARD
As a sector, we believe the codes of good practice on
broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) for the
construction sector (the construction charter) implemented in
June 2009 are addressing inequalities in the sector. In time,
this will unlock potential and enhance growth – for the
ultimate benefit of the entire South African nation.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Composition
The committee comprises the following members:
▶▶ TA Tlelai – non-executive director (chairman)
▶▶ CE Manning – independent non-executive director
▶▶ ACG Molusi – non-executive director
▶▶ ML Heyns – chief executive officer
▶▶ G Hellhoff – executive director: human resources
▶▶ NJ Townshend – executive director (resigned
12 March 2013)

Audit committee report

Continual improvement across the group’s financial
disciplines is a key function of the audit committee’s
board-approved mandate.
Nopasika Lila – Chairman of the audit committee

The committee is pleased to present its report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 as required by
the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (the Act).
The committee’s operation is guided by a formal detailed
charter that is in line with King III and the Act, and is approved
by the board as it is amended. The committee has discharged
all of its responsibilities as contained in that charter.
OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE
The overall objectives of this committee are to:
▶▶ Assist the board in discharging its duties relating to
safeguarding assets and operating adequate systems
and controls
▶▶ Control reporting processes and accurate reporting of
financial statements in compliance with legal requirements
and accounting standards
▶▶ Oversee the activities of internal and external audit
▶▶ Perform those duties prescribed by the Act, the JSE
and King III.
The committee performed the following activities in the year
under review:
▶▶ Received and reviewed reports from internal auditors on
the effectiveness of the internal control environment,
systems and processes
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▶▶ Reviewed the reports of internal and external auditors
detailing concerns arising out of their audits and requested
appropriate responses from management
▶▶ Made appropriate recommendations to the board on
corrective actions in view of audit findings
▶▶ Considered the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors and ensured the scope of additional
services did not impair their independence
▶▶ Reviewed and recommended for adoption by the board
financial information that is publicly disclosed. For the year,
this included:
– The integrated annual report for the year ended
31 December 2013
– The interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2013
▶▶ Considered the effectiveness of internal audit, approved the
one-year operational strategic internal audit plan and
monitored the adherence of internal audit to its annual plan.
The audit committee believes its objectives were met during
the year under review. Where weaknesses in specific controls
were identified, management undertook to implement
appropriate corrective actions.

Mr Charles Davies continued to serve on the committee in
the year under review. Charles has extensive management
experience at executive level and serves on various boards
in a non-executive capacity.
Mr Sango Ntsaluba continued to serve on the committee
in the year under review, despite not being an independent
non-executive director. Sango is a chartered accountant with
more than 20 years of experience and brings a wealth of
knowledge to the committee.
Mr Paul Baloyi was appointed to the committee on
14 March 2013. Paul has extensive management experience
at executive level, significant banking experience and serves
on various boards as a non-executive director.
Details of committee membership appear on page 91.
EXTERNAL AUDIT
The committee has satisfied itself through enquiry that
the auditor of Basil Read Holdings Limited is independent
as defined by the Act. The committee, in consultation
with executive management, agreed to an audit fee for
the 2013 financial year. The fee is considered appropriate
for the work that could reasonably have been expected at
that time. Audit fees are disclosed in note 9 to the
financial statements, which are available on the group’s
website www.basilread.co.za or by request from the
company secretary.

The committee confirms that the auditor and the designated
auditor are accredited by the JSE.
FINANCIAL DIRECTOR REVIEW
The position of chief financial officer and financial director is
currently vacant. The committee is monitoring the process
to find a suitable candidate for appointment to the role.
The committee has reviewed the performance and expertise
of the interim chief financial officer, Ms AC Wightman, and is
satisfied that she has the requisite knowledge and skills to fulfil
the role.
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements were prepared using
appropriate accounting policies which conform to
International Financial Reporting Standards. The committee
therefore recommended the approval of the annual financial
statements to the board and the board approved the annual
financial statements on 26 May 2014.
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT
The committee has evaluated the integrated annual report
in respect of its consistency with operational and other
information known to the committee. The committee has
therefore recommended the approval of the integrated annual
report, which approval has been formally given.

Sustainability

Ms Nopasika Lila is a chartered accountant with a number
of years’ experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
governance. She is considered suitably qualified to carry out
the duties required of chairman.

Group overview

Mr F Lombard assumed the role of designated auditor for
the 2013 financial year and will continue for the 2014
financial year.

Management review

In addition, the chief executive officer, the chief financial
officer, head: group risk and compliance, heads of finance,
internal auditors and the external auditors are permanent
invitees to the meeting.

The committee has reviewed the performance of the external
auditors and has nominated for approval at the annual general
meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc as the external auditor
for the 2014 financial year.

Divisional review

Meetings were held with the external auditor where
management was not present, and no matters of concern
were raised.

Corporate
governance

MEMBERSHIP
During the 2013 financial year, membership of the committee
comprised three independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director as detailed below:
▶▶ Ms Nopasika Lila – chairman
▶▶ Mr Paul Baloyi
▶▶ Mr Charles Davies
▶▶ Mr Sango Ntsaluba

Nopasika Lila
Chairman of the audit committee

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

A formal procedure governs the process by which the
external auditor is considered for providing non-audit
services. Each engagement letter for non-audit work in
excess of R250 000 is reviewed by the committee in advance
of this work. Routine work assignments, including auditor
letters required for tendering purposes, below the value of
R250 000, are not required to be approved by the committee.
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Risk committee report

Basil Read’s new enterprise-wide risk management
programme will facilitate delivery on our strategic
objectives, ensure compliance and promote more
certain outcomes at project level.
Paul Baloyi – Chairman of the risk committee

RISK OVERVIEW
Basil Read has implemented an enterprise-wide risk
management programme to support its ability to deliver on its
strategic imperatives, ensure compliance with legislative and
regulatory requirements and promote greater certainty of
outcome at project level.
An effective risk management programme is central to the
group’s strategy of maintaining a competitive advantage and
adapting to changes in the internal and external environments.
The underlying principle of an integrated enterprise-wide
risk management programme is that risk management
forms part of all strategic, tactical and operational processes
and activities.
King III places the responsibility for the process on the board.
In 2013, a dedicated risk management committee was
established to assist the board in discharging this responsibility,
and operates under approved terms of reference.
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MEMBERSHIP
During the 2013 financial year, membership of the committee
comprised one independent non-executive director, one
non-executive director and three members of executive
management as detailed below:
▶▶ Mr Paul Baloyi – chairman
▶▶ Mr Connie Molusi
▶▶ Mr Marius Heyns
▶▶ Mr Norman Milne
▶▶ Mr Avi Naidoo
RISK MANAGEMENT
Line management remains accountable for the execution and
effectiveness of the risk management process approved by the
board, overseen by the head: group risk and compliance.
In 2013, the group decided to move the risk management
process onto a proven software platform. Risk champions
were identified in each operating entity/division and training
is ongoing.

Risk-bearing capacity
In 2013, Marsh Risk Management Services was employed to
determine the group’s risk-bearing capacity at both central and
individual business unit level. These measures, together with
the group’s risk appetite, have assisted in developing a series
of gates where if a risk-bearing capacity threshold is expected
to be exceeded, decisions are escalated to higher levels,
culminating in the CEO and the board.
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Group overview
Management review
Divisional review

The group continues to use a hybrid risk management
methodology which assesses risk from a top-down and
bottom-up perspective. Risk assessments are performed
continuously and reiteratively at four levels in the group:
▶▶ Group level: Conducted bi-annually by the group’s board of
directors, executive committee and sector advisers
▶▶ Business unit/divisional level: Conducted every quarter by
the management team of each functional level, business unit
and operating entity
▶▶ Project level: Conducted monthly by the relevant project
teams and at specific completion points with the broader
project management team and divisional management teams
▶▶ Tender evaluation: As part of the tendering process, a
detailed risk assessment is performed on each proposed
project.

Corporate
governance

Once risks have been identified, they are documented on risk
registers maintained at a project, business unit, divisional and
group level.

Key risks
Risks are evaluated by probability of occurrence and impact on
the business across several matrixes. The key risk areas facing
the group are aggregated as follows (in no particular order):
▶▶ Margin pressure and competition – the current low-margin
environment places added emphasis on sound risk
management practices and faultless project execution
▶▶ Liquidity – working capital deterioration could affect our
ability to deliver projects or fund new projects. The inability
to resolve claims timeously on large industrial projects has a
direct impact on liquidity
▶▶ Market volatility – the “overnight” freeze on any new capital
expenditure in the platinum mining industry is a stark
reminder of market volatility and there is a need to
be nimble
▶▶ Growth and expansion into new markets – as the group
moves into new markets and countries, there is a need to
fully understand the legislative and regulatory environment
and have proper systems to monitor project performance
▶▶ Tender risk – the risk of inadequately evaluating and pricing
a tender enquiry and then being awarded a flawed contract
remains a key area on which a considerable amount of
senior management time is spent
▶▶ Project management – ineffective project management skills
affect project delivery and costs
▶▶ Subcontractors – poor subcontractor selection and
management could result in cost escalation, schedule
delays or poor quality output which can affect the
group’s reputation
▶▶ Industrial action – large industrial projects such as the two
power stations currently under construction remain at risk
of unprotected industrial action. The cost and time
consequences are considerable.

Sustainability

Managing uncertainty and risk rests on identifying and
managing the interfaces. In identifying potential risks associated
with achieving the group’s objectives, three key interfaces
are considered:
▶▶ External – where we interact with the outside environment
▶▶ Transactional – where we interact with others
▶▶ Internal – where we interact among ourselves.

90-day peer review
Experience has shown that projects set up correctly from
the outset are better equipped to complete on time, quality
and budget than those that develop documentation, policies
and procedures as they evolve. Accordingly, a 90-day peer
review process has been introduced on all construction sites
to verify a number of issues, including that:
▶▶ The construction programme has been approved and is
updated regularly
▶▶ The risk register and the risk and opportunity schedule are
reviewed at least monthly
▶▶ Project change management procedures are documented
and all timelines understood and adhered to
▶▶ Key productivities are measured and reported, with final
results fed back into the estimating system.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Methodology
Within the group, risk is regarded as the impact of uncertainty
on the objectives of key processes and activities. Hence, a
holistic approach to managing uncertainty, representing both
risk and opportunity, has been adopted. By better
understanding and managing risk, the group is able to add
value, reduce cost, be better informed in decision making
and provide greater clarity and certainty to all employees,
customers and stakeholders.

Risk committee report continued

Engineering and Construction Risk Institute (ECRI)
The group continued its sponsorship of ECRI in 2013, which
gives exposure to best international risk management
practices in the engineering and construction industry.
Meetings take place twice a year where senior risk
management practitioners share experiences and lessons
learnt. ECRI has also developed over 75 risk management
practices and procedures addressing the full project cycle
from time of bid to commissioning and handover. These
documents are available to all employees via our intranet.
ECRI runs an introductory and advanced risk course at a
number of venues globally. In South Africa courses are held
at Stellenbosch University twice a year. To date, over
50 Basil Read head office and project staff have attended.
Insurance
Basil Read uses Marsh (Pty) Ltd as insurance brokers, both for
placing our annual programme and any project-specific covers.
Marsh is able to advise on best practice in insurance from both
a global and local viewpoint. The type of cover, limits of
indemnity and deductibles are reviewed annually
with Marsh and presented to the risk and audit committees
for ratification.
The group is comfortable that the types of cover and limits of
indemnity in place are commensurate with our risk profile.
Internal audit
The internal audit function is a key element of our integrated
assurance structure. The group continues to outsource this
function to Grant Thornton, whose work is guided by the
group’s risk register, management perceptions and previous
audit findings.
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The internal audit activity is governed by a charter approved
by the group’s audit committee. Internal audit provides
objective and independent assurance, via the group audit
committees, to the management and board of Basil Read
about risk management, control and governance processes
and systems.
Compliance
The local and international regulatory environment continues
to evolve, increasing compliance pressures to improve
governance structures and practices in the business. Basil Read
is committed to the highest standards of compliance to
corporate governance and business ethics in all our activities.
The group continues to operate in several countries across
Africa, each with unique legal, financial and taxation regimes
that need to be complied with, increasing the burden on
ensuring effective compliance programmes.
Tip-offs Anonymous
Tip-offs Anonymous is an independently managed hotline
designed to enable our employees and stakeholders to report
possible incidents of fraud or corruption without fear of
retribution. In 2013, we continued to create awareness of and
trust in this facility.

Embedding the risk methodology

▶▶ Refining and embedding risk tolerance levels in line with the board’s risk appetite
and the group’s risk-bearing capacity
▶▶ Developing measurement and monitoring indicators
▶▶ Risk-reporting dashboards to be developed

Developing the legal framework

▶▶ Develop the corporate governance framework
▶▶ Develop country-specific compliance programmes
▶▶ Detailed cross-border supply chain due diligence programme

Early project interventions

▶▶ Develop a continuous improvement and early intervention team to address early
warning signals
▶▶ 90-day peer review programme to be extended across the group into nonconstruction segments

Business continuity protocols

▶▶ Formalise all related policies and protocols on business continuity
▶▶ Proactively manage business continuity warning signals

Compliance training

▶▶ Develop a comprehensive compliance training programme
▶▶ Continued staff training and awareness on high-risk areas:
– Anti-bribery and corruption programme
– Competition law
– Directors’ duties

Enterprise risk management (ERM)
application

▶▶ Roll-out ERM software application
▶▶ Train users on ERM application
▶▶ Refine real-time reporting dashboards

Management review

2014 milestones

Corporate
governance

Divisional review

Long-term objectives

Group overview

OBJECTIVES

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Paul Baloyi
Chairman of the risk committee
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Remuneration committee report

A key function of this committee is ensuring that Basil
Read’s remuneration structures are equitable and
aligned with the long-term interests of the group and
its stakeholders.
Charles Davies – Chairman of the remuneration committee

The board is responsible for ensuring the group’s
remuneration structures are equitable and aligned with the
long-term interests of the group and its stakeholders. To
ensure compliance, the board has tasked the remuneration
committee with assisting it in making decisions affecting
employee remuneration. The committee was established to
ensure that remuneration arrangements support the strategic
aims of the business and enable the recruitment, motivation
and retention of executives and employees at all levels, while
complying with all requirements of law and regulation.
The composition and scope of the committee are set out in
written terms of reference which have been approved by
the board.
REMUNERATION OVERVIEW
▶▶ To ensure that remuneration structures are equitable
and aligned with the long-term interests of the group and
its stakeholders
▶▶ The purpose of our total rewards package is to attract,
retain, motivate and reward staff, in a very competitive
environment, to achieve the group’s objectives.
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MEMBERSHIPS
During the 2013 financial year, membership of the committee
comprised two independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director as detailed below:
▶▶ Mr Charles Davies – chairman
▶▶ Dr Claudia Manning
▶▶ Mr Thabiso Tlelai
In addition, the executive director: human resources, group
remuneration and services manager and executive director:
subsidiaries, are permanent invitees to the meeting.
SCOPE
For the year under review, the remuneration committee:
▶▶ Proposed an amended short-term incentive structure for
the chief executive officer to the board for approval and
implementation effective from January 2014
▶▶ Proposed a short-term incentive for subsidiary/business
unit management
▶▶ Reviewed and recommended executive remuneration for
board approval
▶▶ Reviewed and recommended non-executive directors’ fees
for board and finally AGM approval

As a result, the group’s remuneration philosophy needs to
ensure that it:
▶▶ Retains, develops and continues to attract people with the
required skills necessary to enable the business to meet its
current and future demands
▶▶ Develops a collaborative and single focused spirit among
different business units that is directed towards attaining the
group’s objectives and strategy rather than just individual or
departmental success
▶▶ Clearly differentiates and rewards performance excellence
while discouraging and dealing with mediocrity;
▶▶ Achieves the appropriate balance between short and
long-term rewards
▶▶ Enables the payment of rewards and incentives out of a
portion of the shareholder value created during any financial
year cycle
▶▶ Creates a sustainable leadership structure with the
succession pool necessary for continuity and growth and
one that continuously strives to be more representative
of the demographic of South Africa.

Basic salary

▶▶ Attraction and retention of key
employees
▶▶ Internal and external equity
▶▶ Rewarding of individual performance

Benefits

▶▶ External market competitiveness
▶▶ Integrated approach towards wellness
driving employee effectiveness and
engagement

Allowances

▶▶ Compliance with legislative, negotiated
and contractual commitments

Short-term
incentive plan
(<12 months)

▶▶ Alignment with group/business unit/
functional performance in terms of
financial targets
▶▶ Safety performance (against internal and
external targets)
▶▶ Reward of performance against targets
set at group, business unit/group
functional and individual levels

Basil Read share
scheme

▶▶ Attraction and retention of senior
employees with the majority of awards
linked to corporate performance targets
▶▶ Direct alignment with shareholders’
interests by linking the level of rewards
to the achievement of corporate
performance targets

CURRENT COMPONENTS OF REMUNERATION
The remuneration committee ensures that the components
of proper remuneration, inclusive of annual guaranteed
remuneration, short-term incentives and long-term
incentives are linked in such a way as to achieve the group’s
strategic objectives.
Guaranteed remuneration
The group makes reference to a total guaranteed
package (TGP) approach which encompasses a cash
component, fixed car allowance, retirement funding
and healthcare contributions.
The company makes reference to the Paterson “job grading”
system and participates, as well as subscribes, to external
online benchmarking remuneration surveys which enable
reliable comparisons of remuneration for executive job
descriptions and across the group.
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Group overview
Management review

Strategic intent and drivers

Divisional review

Remuneration
component

Corporate
governance

Basil Read’s total remuneration policy strives to reward
corporate and individual performance through an appropriate
balance of fixed pay and both short and long-term variable
components. The policy is designed to provide incentives to
employees to meet the company’s key objectives, such that
a significant portion of total remuneration is performancerelated, based on a mixture of internal and external targets
linked to key corporate performance indicators.

The key components and drivers of Basil Read’s remuneration
structure which applies to all members of senior management
are set out in the table below.

Sustainability

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY AND POLICY
Basil Read’s philosophy is to encourage sustainable long-term
performance across all subsidiaries and business units. The
committee reviews the remuneration policy each year to
ensure that the remuneration framework remains effective in
supporting the achievement of the group’s business objectives,
aligned with best practice, and fairly rewards employees for
their contribution to the business, having regard to the size
and complexity of the group’s operations. The purpose of
our total rewards package is to attract, retain, motivate and
reward staff, in a very competitive environment, to achieve
the group’s objectives. The group is acutely aware of its
dependence on appropriately qualified, trained and
experienced specialists to achieve its goals. Furthermore, with
the emphasis on international exposure, the demand, both
locally and internationally, for scarce skills is ever-increasing.

The group’s remuneration philosophy, policies and structures
have been developed around these core principles and
conform to the best practice guidelines contained in the King
III report for South Africa.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

▶▶ Considered and recommended an annual increase in salary
bill for approval by the board
▶▶ Received feedback on the analysis of the annual salary
review process for monitoring purposes
▶▶ Monitored the organisation’s transformation and
employment equity targets
▶▶ Reviewed group employee retirement funding as well as
healthcare benefits
▶▶ Received feedback relative to executive succession planning
▶▶ Monitored and commented on the internal talent
audit process.

Remuneration committee report continued

Our policy is to remunerate all competent performing
employees between the 50th and 75th percentiles
ensuring they are properly benchmarked within their
respective disciplines.
Employee benefits
Basil Read makes provision for employee retirement funding
by means of a defined contribution fund, which is compulsory
for all salaried construction and mining employees. It is also
compulsory for all new salaried employees to belong to the
group medical aid scheme. Where applicable, an employee
can remain on their spouse’s medical aid and provide proof
of membership.
Variable remuneration
Short-term incentives (STI)
The objectives of the short-term incentive policy are:
▶▶ To ensure that the Basil Read group is able to attract
and retain highly qualified and motivated executives
▶▶ To motivate executives to manage and lead the business
successfully and to drive strong long-term organisational
growth in line with strategy and business objectives
▶▶ To provide competitive and balanced, performance-related
remuneration, consisting of both fixed and variable
components
▶▶ To ensure that the interests of the executives are aligned
with those of shareholders by linking remuneration directly
to company performance
▶▶ To ensure there is transparency and fairness in the
executive remuneration policies and practices, and at the
same time recognise that remuneration is a critical aspect
of human resource management.
Long-term incentives
Long-term incentives will be implemented to achieve the
following objectives:
▶▶ To drive longer-term sustainable performance in the group
▶▶ To align management and shareholder interests over the
long term
▶▶ To manage retention of executives and key positions within
the group.
Chief executive officer
The short-term incentive bonus for the chief executive officer
for the 2013 financial year will be calculated based on net
profit after tax on a sliding scale as detailed below.
In summary, remuneration for 2013:
A: Guaranteed annual package 2013
This component of remuneration remained unchanged
from the 2012 financial year, at R3,5 million (inclusive
of a 13th cheque).
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B: Short-term incentive performance bonus 2013
STI bonus will be based on net profit after tax against a sliding
scale as follows:
Profit after tax

Bonus
percentage

<R100 million

0%

R100 – R200 million

2%

R200 – R300 million

4%

>R300 million with a cap at
R500 million

5%

With reference to the above sliding scale, STI bonus for the
2013 financial year was calculated as follows:
Audited net profit after tax

R281 470 000

Applicable percentage
Calculated bonus amount

4%
R11 258 800

Due to certain predetermined transformation targets not
being fully achieved, the short-term incentive was reduced
by 3%.
Adjusted bonus amount

R10 921 036

This results in the total guaranteed remuneration paid to the
chief executive officer for the 2013 financial year being an
amount of R14 421 036, which comprises the guaranteed
annual package of R3,5 million and the short-term incentive
of R10,9 million, as calculated above.
The STI bonus was paid following publication of the group’s
financial results and is subject to income tax.
C: Long-term incentive
Refer to the directors’ report on page 130 for information
regarding the chief executive officer’s long-term incentive.
Executive directors, group executive management and
divisional executive management
The payment of annual performance bonuses under the
Basil Read short-term incentive scheme is structured to
ensure that the shareholders receive the targeted return on
their investment and is contingent on the achievement of
certain measures relating to the following:
▶▶ Group performance
▶▶ Business unit performance
▶▶ Individual performance.

Individual performance will be measured against a set of
individual and job-specific criteria. Executive directors and
group executive management can earn up to a maximum of
200% of their annual guaranteed cost to company. Divisional
executive management can earn up to a maximum of 100% of
their annual guaranteed cost to company.
In all cases, the payment of awarded bonuses to executive
directors, group executive management and divisional
executive management will only be made if, and when, there is
sufficient cash available to do so. For this purpose, guidance
will be taken from the liquidity and solvency calculations
performed for each division and for the group.

When determining the level of non-executive directors’ fees
to be proposed, the committee takes cognisance of market
practices and norms as well as the additional responsibilities
placed on board members by new legislation and corporate
governance principles. The group’s policy on fees for nonexecutive directors is that they should be fee-based and
market-related but not linked to share performance. No
bonuses or share incentives are awarded as these can create
a potential conflict of interest.
Non-executive directors qualify for reimbursement of
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties on behalf
of the company.

Group overview
Management review

Non-executive directors
The board applies principles of good corporate governance
relating to directors’ remuneration and also keeps abreast of
changing trends. Non-executive directors’ fees are
recommended to the board by the remuneration committee,
and then proposed to shareholders for approval at the AGM.

Divisional review

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Executive directors
The tables reflecting the breakdown of the annual
remuneration for executive directors for the years ended
December 2013 and December 2012 are set out in the
directors’ report on page 130.

Corporate
governance

The divisional/company bonus pool determined in terms of
the formula above will be further adjusted based on group
performance as follows:
▶▶ Group ROE of <15% – divisional/company bonus pool of
the business unit to be reduced by 30%
▶▶ Group ROE of between 15% and 20% – divisional/company
bonus pool of the business unit to be reduced by 15%
▶▶ ROE of >20% – no reduction of the divisional/company
bonus pool.

Schedule of executive remuneration
A schedule of remuneration and bonuses paid to executives
is maintained by the executive director for human resources.

Sustainability

The threshold for determining the maximum
divisional/company bonus pool to be allocated to each
business unit for all levels of staff will be determined on a
sliding scale based on a return on equity calculation as follows:
▶▶ Business unit ROE of <15% – no divisional/company bonus
pool to be allocated
▶▶ Business unit ROE of between 15% and 17,5% –
divisional/company bonus pool of 5% of net profit after tax
of the business unit
▶▶ Business unit ROE of between 17,6% and 20% –
divisional/company bonus pool of 7,5% of net profit after
tax of the business unit
▶▶ Business unit ROE of >20% – divisional/company bonus pool
of 10% of net profit after tax of the business unit.

In exceptional circumstances, the remuneration committee,
on recommendation from the chief executive officer, may
consider external and internal factors that may have
contributed to the thresholds not being met and may award
purely discretionary short-term bonuses on an individual and
business unit basis.

Charles Davies
Chairman of the remuneration committee

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

The threshold for determining the maximum executive bonus
pool to be allocated will be determined on a sliding scale
based on a return on equity (ROE) calculation as follows:
▶▶ Group ROE of <15% – no executive bonus pool to
be allocated
▶▶ Group ROE of between 15% and 17,5% – executive bonus
pool of 3,5% of net profit after tax of the group
▶▶ Group ROE of between 17,6% and 20% – executive bonus
pool of 4,25% of net profit after tax of the group
▶▶ Group ROE of >20% – executive bonus pool of 5% of net
profit after tax of the group.
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Social, ethics and transformation committee report

Although only formally constituted in 2013, the social,
ethics and transformation committee has made solid
progress during the year, both in meeting regulatory
requirements and initiating the development of a
holistic group policy on corporate social investment.
Thabiso Tlelai – Chairman of the social, ethics and transformation committee
The social, ethics and transformation committee is
constituted in terms of the relevant sections of the Companies
Act, Basil Read’s memorandum of incorporation and the
JSE listings requirements. Formal terms of reference were
approved by the board on 30 May 2013.
SCOPE
Under its terms of reference, the committee has the
necessary resources and access to all information to fulfil
its responsibilities, which are set out in the corporate
governance report.
Specifically, during the year, the committee:
▶▶ Approved a baseline survey of Basil Read’s ethics profile to
benchmark the company’s culture, policies and procedures
against peers and JSE-listed companies, and made
recommendations on how to address any identified gaps.
Given the delay in finalising the Competition Commission
inquiry, this survey was postponed to 2014 when its scope
will include particular risk areas, such as site level and
procurement risks. Results are expected by the second
quarter of the new financial year
▶▶ Appointed an internal resource to attend to the
implementation of the committee’s duties and
responsibilities. Adv du Rand is the legal adviser in the
commercial department of the group and has the required
qualifications and skills to adequately assist the committee.
This position may be re-evaluated if the committee believes
a full-time resource is required
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▶▶ Commissioned the development of a compliance matrix for
the group that reflects South African requirements as well
as appropriate global standards
▶▶ Initiated development of a policy on centralised and
holistic corporate social investment (CSI), aligned with
corporate strategy, to ensure a lasting beneficial impact.
With multiple and varying stakeholder groups in each
subsidiary, this is proving more complex than initially
envisioned. At its last meeting for the year, the committee
agreed that management should address key issues in
determining the CSI strategy:
– Mapping out stakeholders and defining relationships
for each grouping
– Ensuring CSI contributes to the sustainability of
Basil Read’s stakeholder groups
– Developing separate policies for CSI, enterprise
development and employee assistance
– Developing an enterprise development strategy.
The committee also established an appropriate timeline
for these activities, underscoring their importance to the
sustainability of the group.
Other key issues considered by the committee during the year
included:
▶▶ Considered Basil Read’s compliance against the 2014
B-BEEE changes to construction sector codes. Based on
new thresholds for the industry, work is under way to
maintain the group’s level 2 status

Group overview

▶▶ Recommended a revised policy on bribery, corruption
and gifts, developed using global best practice, to the board
for approval.
Overall, the committee made considerable progress in its first
year, benefiting from the expertise and experience of its
members. While much work is under way, we are satisfied
that we have identified key issues for the group and that these
are receiving the required level of management attention.

Divisional review

Management review

MEMBERSHIPS
During the review period, committee members and
appropriate invitees met four times. Membership of the
committee comprised one independent non-executive
director, two non-executive directors and two members
of executive management as detailed below:
▶▶ Mr Thabiso Tlelai – chairman
▶▶ Dr Claudia Manning
▶▶ Mr Connie Molusi
▶▶ Mr Marius Heyns
▶▶ Mr Guenther Hellhoff
In addition, the head: group risk and compliance, group legal
adviser, director: group SHERQ and group remuneration and
services manager are permanent invitees to the meeting.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

Thabiso Tlelai
Chairman of the social, ethics and transformation committee
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SUSTAIN
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Group overview

NABILITY

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Our business is about building legacies –
roads, hospitals, schools – that enhance
quality of life for thousands of people. Our
approach is to ensure that lasting benefits
reach all stakeholders touched by our
activities, while minimising our impact on
the natural environment.
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Sustainability review – our people

We remain committed to embedding
sustainability into every facet of our
business and the communities where we
operate, in line with our international
peers and best practice.

During the year, Basil Read’s expanding footprint across
Africa and further afield has presented challenges in managing
our human resources, both in the availability of suitably
qualified people and managing across increasingly complex
and diverse environments.
In line with Basil Read’s strategy to review and upgrade all
core business processes to improve efficiencies and controls,
we reviewed our human resources (HR) systems and
procedures over the past year, and initiated a process
improvement programme covering all our related systems,
policies and practices. This initiative is already delivering
significant benefits in the way Basil Read manages its people.
An independent ISO audit report (November 2013) concluded
that, “The evidence available confirms that the human
resource system as developed and maintained was an effective
tool for managing the competence of personnel working for
Basil Read”. The auditor concluded that best practice was
consistently being applied and implemented and that significant
improvements to this process had been realised as planned.
Importantly, systems improvements to the group’s HR
information management platform are facilitating greater
integration with other platforms used by the group’s
operations as well as the reliability of real-time data. Given
the increasingly complex operating environment among
the group’s divisions, these enhancements have improved
governance and audit trails, increased competitiveness and
improved decision making. Improvements to HR systems
and practices will continue to take priority in the next
financial year.

108

Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

The construction industry is very labour-intensive, and the
availability of suitably qualified and experienced people remains
an ongoing challenge. Accordingly, Basil Read invests heavily in
skills development, and a significant portion of training
expenditure is focused on bursaries and learnerships. These
initiatives are also integral to Basil Read’s longer-term
transformation strategies.
We also recognise that the construction industry plays a
significant role in creating employment, especially in more
rural regions. Where possible, the group makes every attempt
to employ and develop skills for its projects from communities
near its construction projects. Locally, the Olifants River
water resources development project and, internationally,
the St Helena airport project are prime examples of our
commitment to employing and developing local resources.
While finding and developing the skills necessary for the
St Helena airport project has required much planning and
logistics, we never needed to halt operations because of
human resources not being provided on time. This is a
particularly commendable achievement by our HR teams.
Despite the significant downturn in the construction sector
since 2010, Basil Read has largely maintained its skills base by
investigating every option to redeploy project teams into
other areas to avoid possible retrenchment. Equally, in the
face of a relatively volatile labour environment across the
industry over the past year, Basil Read has maintained a sound
employee relations climate.

Group overview
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Organisational development was a major focus in 2013. To
raise the standard on human capital performance in Basil Read,
a new job analysis initiative was implemented to improve
effectiveness within working disciplines. Comprehensive job
profiles were developed and standardised for the production
function that will, in turn, optimise recruitment, succession,
performance management and training strategies. Core HR
systems and procedures were redesigned and implemented
to ensure human excellence in Basil Read.

Employee relations proved challenging in 2013, especially
at the Kusile and Medupi power station projects. Industrial
action affecting Basil Read was mainly due to unprotected
strikes aimed at these projects in general and not Basil Read
specifically. Our employee relations remain essentially sound,
with no major issues raised or pending.
Training on employee relations-related matters, particularly
managing disciplinary processes in a procedurally and
substantively fair way, has remained a focus area for the group
employee relations manager. Both site management and union
shop stewards were trained, resulting in improved work
relationships and a declining number of cases referred to
external institutions for litigation. In addition, as a direct
consequence of improved skills, referred cases were mostly
successfully defended by the employee relations team.
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Management review
Further detail of our strategic human resource initiatives is
provided on the following pages.

OPERATIONS AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Our capacity for managing both the operations’ HR and
employee relations functions was reviewed and restructured
to ensure effective and efficient service delivery. Administrative
capacity was increased to successfully facilitate the logistics
of staffing large undertakings such as the St Helena airport
project, Olifants River water resources development project
and the Medupi and Kusile power stations projects.

Sustainability

Basil Read also continues to address the strategic
transformation of its business through broad-based black
economic empowerment (B-BBEE), employment equity and
enterprise development initiatives. Basil Read (Pty) Ltd has
retained its status as a level 2 value-added (125%) contributor
over the past year and is actively taking the necessary steps
to meet amended B-BBEE scorecard requirements for 2014.
Despite the challenges, we continue to make steady progress
with transformation.

Going forward, the focus of organisational development
will be on succession and performance management. A
comprehensive succession plan will be deployed in Basil Read
in which key risk positions will be identified and potential
successors evaluated and developed. We also plan to
implement an improved performance management strategy
and system to effectively monitor, evaluate and reward good
work performance.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

In line with our focus on taking care of our people, Basil Read
ensures employees have access to an extensive range of health
and wellness services. In the construction industry, employee
health and safety is a continual challenge. The group’s HR
and SHEQ functions work closely together to ensure
employee health and safety is not compromised. During the
year, we established an in-house occupational health clinic to
identify and assist in the case management of employee health
and wellness.

Sustainability review – our people continued

Basil Read remained involved in industry initiatives, and formed part of the negotiations team representing employers at the
SAFCEC (South Africa Federation of Civil Engineering Contractors) national wage negotiations. We also participated directly in
negotiations at the Gauteng buildings voluntary bargaining forum. Human resources managers participate in a number of SAFCEC
committees, ensuring Basil Read is represented and heard on industry matters.
TRANSFORMATION
Basil Read is actively involved with South African transformation and broad-based black economic empowerment. Through our
transformation objectives, we are addressing three focus areas: B-BBEE, employment equity and enterprise development.
Employment equity
Basil Read is actively addressing employment equity targets through developmental change, transitional change and transformation
change. We have made great progress in improving the percentage of designated groups in management levels.
Employment equity profile for Basil Read (Pty) Ltd
Male

Foreign
nationals

Female

Occupational levels

B

C

I

W

B

C

I

W

Male

Female

Total

Top management

3

–

4

8

–

–

–

–

–

–

15

6

–

2

25

4

–

–

1

1

–

39

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and
mid-management

22

6

15

107

7

–

5

10

7

–

179

Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior
management, supervisors,
foremen and
superintendents

844

29

6

160

49

7

5

70

19

1

1 190

Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making

504

3

2

13

30

1

2

6

3

–

564

Unskilled and defined
decision making

795

29

1

6

130

7

–

2

2

–

972

Total permanent

2 174

67

30

319

220

15

12

89

32

1

2 959

Temporary employees

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

2 174

67

30

319

220

15

12

89

32

1

2 959

Senior management

Grand total

B – Black    C – Coloured    I – Indian     W – White

Broad-based black economic empowerment
Basil Read fully supports the objectives of South Africa’s Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act 53 of 2003 and associated
codes of good practice. Since 2009, the group has reported under the construction sector code, and shows solid progress in most
areas. The company is a level 2 125% B-BBEE contributor and value-adding supplier, which provides 25% bonus points which means
that the company is a 156% total B-BBEE contributor.
As one of the major construction companies in South Africa, with 53% black ownership, Basil Read continues to hold the
importance of transformation and B-BBEE under the construction sector code in high regard. The group has achieved full points on
the preferential procurement, enterprise development and socio-economic development elements. This, coupled with our black
ownership, management control, employment equity and skills development, makes Basil Read one of the most empowered
construction companies in South Africa in terms of overall scorecard.
Enterprise development
Basil Read recognises enterprise development as a key contributor to national economic prosperity given its impact on job
creation, skills development and the multiplier effects on socio-economic development. Our main objective with enterprise
development is to support businesses to be financially and operationally stable. Enterprise development initiatives range from
providing business skills development through mentoring to financial assistance for established enterprises.
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Level 3

Basil Read support
Construction and operational mentorship,
interest-free loan with no security (short
and long term)

65

15

Level 2

Construction and operational mentorship

Triple E Construction

100

50

Level 3

Construction and operational mentorship

Makgetsi Construction Enterprise

100

60

Level 5

Construction and operational mentorship

Anquet Construction Solution

100

10

Level 1

Construction and operational mentorship

Makali Plant and Construction

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
The focus of training and development in 2013 was to enhance
operational excellence and raise the bar on human capital
performance. Basil Read invested around R13 million in
training and development initiatives to develop both its own
employees and unemployed members of the public.
Several initiatives were also implemented to enhance
effectiveness in the training department. These included:
▶▶ Redesigning training procedures
▶▶ Developing a comprehensive training policy
▶▶ Implementing a training management system
▶▶ Restructuring the training department.
A training needs analysis has identified competency gaps in the
company, which formed the basis for a 2014 group training
budget and training matrix.
Due to the rapid growth of the company in the past 10 years,
it was important to align employee competence to the needs
of our business. Our operational development programmes
played a significant role in achieving this goal. Around
R4 million was invested in operational development
programmes, aligned with our transformation targets,
that focused on six key development needs:
▶▶ Foreman development
▶▶ Carpenter training
▶▶ Managerial development
▶▶ Health and safety training
▶▶ Diesel mechanic training
▶▶ Blaster training.

Foreman development programme
This customised programme focuses on developing foremen
to obtain an NQF 4 (National Qualifications Framework
level 4 qualification) in supervising construction processes.
In 2010, 60 learners enrolled for the programme and 44 of
these (73%) have successfully completed it to date. The
remaining learners will qualify in 2014, and 15 additional
employees will start this programme.
Carpenter apprentice programme
Basil Read initiated a carpenter apprenticeship programme
in 2010 in which 15 external learners (unemployed members
of the public) were carefully selected and enrolled to
become qualified carpenters after completing a three-year
apprenticeship. The 15 learners will qualify early in 2014.
Construction management programme
The programme targets junior and middle managers to
complete an NQF 5 diploma in managing civil construction
processes. It was initiated to improve the competence levels
of site agents and general foremen, and a three-year
programme was customised to Basil Read’s needs and
standards. Currently 10 learners are enrolled on this
programme and will qualify early in 2014. In 2014, 15 more
employees will start this programme.
Health and safety programme
As a company with family-value traditions, Basil Read strives
to protect its family members (our employees) from injuries
at work. One way of doing this is to ensure health and safety
practitioners are properly trained according to Basil Read’s
standards. A health and safety training programme was
customised for the group and implemented in 2011 to give
employees the opportunity to complete a national certificate
in health and safety (NQF level 3). Twelve employees were
enrolled and will complete this programme in 2014.
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Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Beneficiary
BR-Tsima Construction

Black
ownership
%

Group overview

Basil Read enterprise development beneficiaries

Sustainability review – our people continued

Diesel mechanic programme
Due to the scarcity of quality diesel mechanics in our mining division, Basil Read initiated a programme in 2012 to train
14 new diesel mechanics (with four learners being unemployed members of the public). This two-year programme includes
theoretical training at an accredited institution, and practical training with learners working on several group mining sites to gain
experience on earthmoving machines. The return on investment from this programme will be evident in 2014 after learners pass a
trade test. The programme will then be repeated in a three-year cycle.
Learner blaster programme
Basil Read identified a need to train new blasters given the shortage of this skill across the industry. The programme aims to train
20 employees to become qualified civil and opencast blasters to support operations effectively. Nine learners qualified in 2013 and
the rest will qualify end-2014.
Breakdown of learners in technical training programmes
Gender
Training programme

Male

Race

Female

Black

Indian Coloured

Total
learners

White

Foreman development

50

6

38

0

2

16

56

Carpenter apprentice

10

3

10

0

2

1

13

9

0

2

0

0

7

9

Construction management

7

1

8

0

0

0

8

Diesel mechanic

12

1

8

0

1

4

13

Learner blaster

12

2

1

0

2

11

14

100

13

67

0

7

39

113

Health and safety

Total

BASIL READ BURSARY SCHEME
To ensure we address scarce skills in the company and the industry, Basil Read invested R1,1 million in 2013 to give unemployed
members of the public a bursary to study civil engineering or quantity surveying. Nine bursars completed their studies in 2013 and
were employed by Basil Read. Five new bursars were selected after an intensive procedure. Additional training initiatives will be
implemented in 2014 to effectively prepare bursars for the working environment.
Breakdown of current bursars
Gender
Study field

Race

Male

Female

Black

Civil engineering

5

3

3

4

Quantity surveying

3

1

3

1

Indian

Total
bursars

0

1

8

0

0

4

White Coloured

Construction management

2

2

3

1

0

0

4

Building science

0

1

1

0

0

0

1

Architecture

0

1

0

1

0

0

1

Industrial engineering

1

0

0

1

0

0

1

Law

0

1

0

0

0

1

1

11

9

10

8

0

2

20

Total
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Management review

Group overview

In 2014 we will implement further value-added training
programmes focused on identified needs:
▶▶ The management development programme will focus on
developing managers in the company in core managerial
competencies
▶▶ The future leadership programme will identify and
accelerate the development of future leaders in Basil Read
▶▶ The professional registration programme aims to get
employees professionally registered at the Engineering
Council of South Africa, the South African Council for the
Quantity Surveying Profession, and the South African
Council for Project and Construction Management
Professionals either as a professional engineer, quantity
surveyor, or construction manager.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

Divisional review

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS
Our employees are vulnerable to all the typical lifestyle risks
associated with societal and work pressures. As part of our
corporate social responsibility towards employees, Basil Read
provides assistance and support in a number of areas. This
includes various types of employee assistance schemes,
professional healthcare services, counselling services for
employees as well as on-site canteen and gym facilities at our
Basil Read campus. Site and project visits are also regularly
undertaken by the employee wellness team to provide support
and assistance to operations personnel.
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Our business depends as much on
the skill of our people as it does on
the equipment we use. Our primary
focus, therefore, is ensuring a safe
and healthy workplace.Training is an
integral part of this focus.
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Our SHEQ (safety, health, environmental and quality) system
is an ongoing measurement tool to ensure effective
management of priority items identified through our risk
assessments and ongoing SHEQ trend analyses to identify and
highlight problem areas.

Disabling injury frequency rates for the Basil Read
group between January 2013 and December 2013

201
3

At Basil Read, our degree of excellence is defined in our
ISO 9001 quality, OHSAS 18001 occupational health and
safety and ISO 14001 environmental implementation.

We proactively reduce the frequency and severity of injuries
by reviewing our SHEQ objectives yearly. The group DIFR
(disabling injury frequency rate) has been reduced from 2,3 in
2006 to 0,12 for 2013, which clearly indicates the management
commitment throughout the group. The constituent DIFRs at
31 December 2013 were construction 0,12, mining 0,12,
special projects 0,41 and corporate 0,00.

Feb

At executive committee and all management levels, we are
personally committed to achieving excellence and ensuring
all employees commit to achieving their set objectives. We
implement an annual plan for improvement which is consistent
with our business strategy and ensures the continuous
improvement of the system.

SAFETY
We promote an environment where all employees accept
responsibility for their own health and safety and that of
everyone engaged in our core business.

Frequency rate

SUMMARY
▶▶ Basil Read’s safety, health, environment, risk and quality
practices are incorporated into a group SHERQ division
▶▶ Our management system provides the framework for
integrating hazard identification, risk analysis and risk
management into all our activities
▶▶ Basil Read maintains and continually improves its quality
assurance and quality control systems to ensure the delivery
of a quality product to clients.

(0,12) DIFR Group – Basil Read group

Regrettably, we had one fatality in June 2013 when an
employee of our subsidiary company, Valente, died while
exiting an excavation when mechanical failure of equipment
caused fatal injuries. All incidents are investigated and lessons
learnt are distributed to all sites across the group to prevent
similar events from recurring.
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Group overview
26 Organisational
factor types – 3%

26 Job factor
– 8%

13 Non-existence
of procedures
and processes
– 1%

82 Lack of control
– 17%

Once risk areas have been identified, awareness programmes
and posters are distributed monthly to ensure all employees
are aware of their SHEQ responsibilities and all work
towards the common goal of doing things right the first time.
Basil Read is committed to ensuring all employees are
competent and better equipped with both technical and
practical skills to perform in their work.
Division/project safety achievements for 2013
Basil Read Buildings
▶▶ Our joint venture at Kusile achieved 2,5 million hours
without a lost-time injury and achieved first place in the
national Master Builders Association (MBA) competition
▶▶ Trompsburg Hospital site received first prize in the Master
Builders’ Association – Free State safety competition
▶▶ The Melrose Arch TWP project was awarded second place
in the Master Builders’ Association north regionals (five-star
gradings)
▶▶ The Basil Read buildings division achieved 2,7 million
lost-time injury (LTI) free hours.

Basil Read Roads
▶▶ The division achieved 1 million LTI-free hours
▶▶ Sladden International achieved 3,4 million LTI-free hours.

Divisional review

Management review
38 Quality – 5%

41 Failed defences
– 5%
162 Individual/team
actions
– 22%

Corporate
governance

175 Sub-standard
act – 21%

4 Activity type
– 2%
22 Assurance
– 3%

Basil Read plant department
▶▶ 1,5 million hours without a lost-time injury.
Special projects
▶▶ St Helena airport project achieved 500 000 LTI-free hours
▶▶ Olifants River water resources development project
achieved 500 000 LTI-free hours.
Basil Read Mining/Blasting & Excavating
▶▶ Sites above 500 000 LTI-free hours
– B&E Venetia
770 028
– Basil Read Mining Venetia 951 815
– Beeshoek
690 284
– B&E Workshop
551 159
▶▶ Sites above 1 million LTI-free hours
– Jwaneng
1 323 124
2014 objectives
▶▶ Further reduction in incident/accident occurrences
▶▶ Continued training, communication, monitoring, as well
as staff and management involvement as part of the
programme to achieve a safe work environment for all
and ensure legal/contractual SHEQ compliance.
Basil Read integrated
annual report 2013

Sustainability

132 Task/
environmental
conditions – 10%
65 Sub-standard
condition – 3%

Basil Read Civils
▶▶ The Basil Read civils division achieved 5,98 million LTI-free
hours at the end of December 2013. The division is
currently well on its way to achieving the company target of
10 million LTI-free hours
▶▶ Medupi project achieved 2 million LTI-free hours awarded
by Eskom
▶▶ Medupi primary and secondary clarifiers project passed
500 000 LTI-free hours.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Managing risks
Basil Read is one of the leading construction companies in
terms of electronic SHEQ management reporting systems,
which provides the framework for real-time trend analysis
and a proactive approach as shown below:
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
The health of our employees is just as important as their
safety, and just as important to our sustainability as a business.
To ensure our people remain healthy, we established an
in-house occupational health department during the review
period, which is responsible for the continuous monitoring
and analysis of all occupational health and safety issues in the
group. It will also be responsible for implementing related
projects in pursuit of continuous improvement.

QUALITY
Basil Read maintains and continually improves its quality
assurance and control systems to ensure we deliver a quality
product to all our clients. The performance of the
management system is evaluated during group audits and
results are presented to senior management during regular
management review meetings. We also carefully evaluate and
select our suppliers, subcontractors and partners, striving for
mutually beneficial relationships.

In addition to a full-time clinic at head office, we also have a
mobile clinic for the various sites. This will assist in improving
the occupational health of employees in a number of ways:
▶▶ Early detection of health hazards
▶▶ Rectifying work exposure and reducing absenteeism.

The annual surveillance assessment audits were carried
out successfully in 2013, resulting in Basil Read (Pty) Ltd
retaining its certification in ISO 9001, OHSAS 18001 and
ISO 14001. In addition, Roadcrete Africa (Pty) Ltd achieved
ISO 9001 and OHSAS 18001 certification, while SprayPave
(Pty) Ltd achieved ISO 9001 certification.
Basil Read Mining/Blasting & Excavating has completed stage 1
of the ISO 14001 assessment and passed both ISO 9001 and
OHSAS 18001 second assessment audits.

By conducting pre-employment, annual and exit medicals,
we are able to detect the start of an occupational health
disease and alert the responsible managers to take the
necessary steps.

CASE STUDY: SAFETY AT ST HELENA AIRPORT PROJECT IN 2013
Building an airport with related infrastructure is not unique in the world and therefore, the industry has a database of related
knowledge and experience on safety hazards and risk management in such a project. The uniqueness of the Basil Read project
lies in the remoteness of St Helena island and the island itself, which presents identified high-risk areas including:
▶ Design, condition and maintenance of existing public roads
▶ Mountainous terrain
▶ Fast-changing adverse weather
▶ Remoteness – availability of resources and support, ie construction-related and medical
▶ Staff safety and health – keep workforce motivated and focused.
In April 2013, we had to reset our LTI-free hours back to zero after a sprained ankle, the most serious personal injury recorded
for the year. Since then, the project has accumulated 838 232 LTI-free hours. Most reported incidents were of a near-miss and
minor rating. In June 2013, the SHEQ department had a change in management and its structure was reviewed, resulting in a
36% reduction in incident/accident occurrences in the second half of the period.
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Define significant
aspects/hazards or risks

Define project delivery
requirements

Define legal and other
requirements

Group overview

The model below summarises the Basil Read SHEQ operating system and confirms its alignment with OHSAS 18001:2007,
ISO 14001:2004 and ISO 9001:2008. Continual improvement is facilitated both at corporate and project-specific level.
Define SHEQ objectives
and targets
Define roles, authority
and responsibility
Operational control
business development:
construction phase and
customer focus

SHEQ management
programme

Define training awareness
and competence
requirements

Management review

▶ Safety
▶ Health
▶ Environment
▶ Quality

Monitoring

Emergency preparedness and response shortcomings

Incident reporting (non-conformance)

Divisional review

SHEQ
policy
defines
direction

Audits internal and external

Management review (measurement, analysis, continuous improvement)

SHEQ policy

Notice boards; induction,
SHEQ talks; SHEQ manual

DOCUMENTATION

COMMUNICATION

SHEQ management system

SHEQ meetings

Training matrix

SHEQ meetings;
management review
meetings

Audit reports

Email; fax

Legal and compliance
register

Awareness; management
review; compliance report

Monitoring records

SHEQ meetings

Project delivery records

Meetings; reports; SHEQ
manual

Incident reports

SHEQ meetings; email

Task risk assessments

Management meetings;
SHEQ meetings

Management review

Representation at each level
and function

Emergency drill records

SHEQ meetings; register

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Customer evaluation
record

Document sent to relevant
people; meetings; request
for information; site
instructions
Meetings; filed in customer
file

Operational control
procedures

Corporate
governance

COMMUNICATION

Sustainability

DOCUMENTATION
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Respecting the environment is a crucial
element of our approach to business.
We strive to protect and sustain the
environment, and to manage our
impacts effectively, when these are
unavoidable. Equally, striving for
accurate carbon footprint reporting will
help us to reduce our natural resource
consumption.

OVERVIEW OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
Respect for the environment is crucial for our business. At
Basil Read, we strive to manage our impacts effectively where
impact is unavoidable. In understanding the impacts of our
construction activities, we are committed to protecting and
sustaining the environment. The group’s SHEQ (safety, health,
environment and quality) system is a tool to measure our
environmental performance against our key performance
indicators (KPIs). The group’s environmental objectives are to:
▶▶ Prevent pollution
▶▶ Comply with relevant environmental legislation and
other requirements
▶▶ Continuous improvement in achieving our KPIs to ensure
an effective management system.
HIGHLIGHTS
▶▶ Being part of developing a 27 MW renewable energy facility
(MetroWind van Stadens wind farm)
▶▶ Retaining our ISO 14001 certification in 2013
▶▶ Group carbon footprint 2013 determined
▶▶ Member of the Green Building Council of South Africa
▶▶ Implementing an enhanced system for better environmental
data reporting.
Basil Read’s head office in Boksburg demonstrates its
commitment to green building through intelligent design:
▶▶ Natural light is maximised by the building’s north-south
orientation
▶▶ Solar heaters are used on all buildings for hot water supply
▶▶ Energy-efficient lighting and motion-operated light sensors
reduce energy consumption.
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Basil Read Energy is one of the primary shareholders in the
world-class MetroWind van Stadens wind farm. Due to
growing global environmental crises and our commitment to
reducing our carbon footprint, Basil Read Energy took up a
23% stake in developing the 27 MW renewable energy facility.
To put this investment in context, every megawatt/hour
(MWh) of electricity generated in South Africa currently
releases one tonne of carbon dioxide (CO2) and other harmful
gases into the atmosphere. Wind farms release no CO2 or
harmful gases into the atmosphere. As such, the MetroWind
van Stadens wind farm will displace 80 000 tonnes of CO2
emissions each year. Similarly, as about 1 000 litres of water
are used to generate 1 MWh of electricity from a coal-fired
power station, this wind farm will save 80 million litres of
water per annum.
Creating sustainable livelihoods through enterprise
development and socio-economic development projects for
communities living within 20 km of the wind farm is a priority
for Basil Read Energy. Accordingly, 1,5% of total project
revenues have been dedicated for this purpose and the
MetroWind Community Trust, a 5% shareholder in the wind
farm, is committed to ensuring the local community benefits
from this development for the next 20 years.

Group overview
While the boundaries of scope 1 and 2 emissions are clearly
defined, scope 3 presents more of a challenge. This additional
voluntary disclosure requires surveying an organisation’s
entire supply chain, as well as those of its suppliers. Basil Read
elected to include scope 3 emissions in its carbon footprint in
the interests of transparent reporting.
Our carbon footprint quantifies and reports emissions
associated with the following activities:
▶▶ Scope 1: fossil fuel consumption – diesel and petrol
▶▶ Scope 2: use of national grid electricity
▶▶ Scope 3: business travel (road and air).
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Divisional review

Management review
At Basil Read, we believe environmental incidents can be
minimised. In addition to an advanced system that monitors
environmental incidents and allows us to manage this aspect
effectively, training and awareness play an integral part in
our performance.

In line with international best practice, data was collected on
direct emissions (scope 1), indirect emissions (scope 2) and
other indirect emissions (scope 3):
▶▶ Direct emissions (scope 1) are those from sources owned
or controlled by the company
▶▶ An indirect emission (scope 2) is the result of a company’s
activities, but occurs at sources owned or controlled by
another company.

Sustainability

Through the principle of continuous improvement, Basil Read
monitors its activities in line with ISO 14001, ISO 14064:1 and
environmental legislation. This ensures alignment between the
requirements of ISO, legislation and the client’s environmental
specifications. These are then supplemented with our own
stringent framework to ensure the best possible
environmental practices are implemented on sites.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Carbon emissions
Carbon emission data was compiled according to ISO 14064:1,
the European Network of Construction Companies for
Research and Development (ENCORD), as well as the
greenhouse gas protocol guidelines, and covered only activities
over which Basil Read has control. By applying these
principles, the greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory fairly
represents the company’s emissions.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

KEY ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR
The group has purchased sophisticated environmental
software to improve the collection and reporting of
environmental data. While there has been ongoing
improvement in reporting environmental KPIs in recent
years, the group continues to train relevant staff to improve
accuracy and completeness in reporting.
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36 136,3

Operations – scope 1 and 2
40 000

27 455,9

35 000
30 000

2012 tonnes CO2-e

14 055,7

Mining

587,3

1 119,5

Civils

Roads

1 016,2

Roadcrete

634,8
2 077,3

Spraypave

0

BR HO and
Warehouse

5 000

1 449,72
2 840,83

10 000

Buildings

6 602,1

15 000

3 638,1

12 895,1

20 000

14 966,2

25 000

2013 tonnes CO2-e

Basil Read’s 2013 carbon emissions (scope 1 and 2)
Electricity
– 6,9%
Petrol – 0,3%

Diesel – 92,8%

All emissions – scope 1, 2 and 3
Scope 3
– 11,6%
Scope 2 – 6,1%

Scope 1 – 82,3%

The 2013 carbon footprint has decreased to 72 928 tonnes
CO2-e from 96 584 in 2012, primarily due to the decrease in
number of operations.
Emission intensity

2012

2013

Employee intensity

14,77

11,54

Financial intensity

0,014

0,012
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Water
Water affects the triple bottom-line of many businesses.
Its availability has an impact on economic development,
social upliftment and the wellbeing of the environment. As
a business, our risk lies in stricter controls on water access
for use.
Basil Read monitors water consumption at its operations.
The group used 263 196 kl of water in its activities for 2013
(2012: 300 324 kl). We continue to monitor our water
consumption to manage it better and conserve it in the best
possible way.
At our head office, to save water, toilets are fitted with
dual-flush systems; and taps are electronically operated to
supply required amounts. Rainwater from the roof and
groundwater from the subsoil drainage system are collected
in storage tanks in the basement and used for irrigation,
alleviating pressure on the municipal water supply. This is in
an attempt to conserve what brings life to our country.
Waste
Basil Read’s waste management plan ensures that waste
management is properly implemented. We continue to
separate our waste to comply with legislation, and to reduce
our impact on the environment. In managing our waste, we
follow the waste hierarchy, namely:
▶▶ Prevention (highly favoured option)
▶▶ Minimisation
▶▶ Reuse
▶▶ Reduce
▶▶ Recycle
▶▶ Energy recovery
▶▶ Disposal (least favoured option).
KEY CHALLENGES
Climate change
Global climate change (caused by GHG) has been identified as
a risk where detrimental weather and temperature extremes
will have a direct effect on our construction operations,
rendering sites unworkable (floods) and affecting the health
and safety of our workforce. Our operations in the civil, roads
and buildings divisions particularly are highly vulnerable to the
short and long-term effects of climate change.
The group has acknowledged this risk; monitoring our carbon
emissions is the first step to reaching our carbon emission
reduction target. Our climate change-related risks include:
▶▶ Carbon tax – driven by changes in regulation
▶▶ Delays in projects, damage to sites, concrete pouring
hampered by extreme temperatures – driven by physical
climate parameters
▶▶ Irreversible damage to projects, lack of available water –
driven by extreme changes in precipitation (flash flooding,
drought).

We have also trained about 30 residents in urban farming in
our endeavour to build a sustainable community.
Eco-friendly and green-building technologies
In investigating eco-friendly and green-building technologies,
we initiated a number of projects. One of our innovations is
using waste material to create building panels for houses or
any market. This was the first green technique used in the
affordable housing market for Cosmo City extension 8. These
houses were built in partnership with Enviroserv, Tower
Technologies and FNB using waste steams as a primary source
of raw materials.

LOOKING AHEAD
▶▶ Continue environmental training and awareness
programmes to keep abreast of best practices in the
industry and legislation
▶▶ Basil Read Energy will use the MetroWind van Stadens wind
farm as a solid foundation for building a clean energy
company with a number of solar voltaic, hydro and biomass
projects already under way
▶▶ Basil Read Developments and Reel Gardening are
establishing urban agriculture at Malibongwe Ridge that
will cater for about 12 people. This project will also have a
chicken farm that will produce eggs, chickens and manure
for the garden.
At Basil Read we strive to use natural resources
conservatively and protect the environment to the best
of our ability.

Group overview
Management review

Basil Read Developments started an earthworm farm to
produce its own environmentally friendly organic fertiliser,
and established a nursery at Cosmo City to propagate trees.
It is also planting these trees in other projects, eg Klipriver
Business Park, Savanna City, Rolling Hills Leisure Estate and
Malibongwe Ridge.

Divisional review

Community involvement
When the first beneficiaries of Cosmo City took occupation
of their houses, we introduced a garden competition aimed at:
▶▶ Mobilising communities and stakeholders in protecting and
improving the environment
▶▶ Creating awareness and deepening the understanding
of environmental issues and their implications for
the community
▶▶ Promoting sustainable living practices by encouraging the
community to initiate environmental projects
▶▶ Mitigating the effects of global warming and climate change
through individual participation.

In 2012, Basil Read Developments facilitated and managed the
construction of a 550 m2 early childhood development centre,
built by Cornell University Sustainable Design (CUSD). The
building has zero environmental impact, no electricity is
needed for heating and cooling the solar passive building, and
high-performance double-glazed windows provide natural
ventilation and insulation. An earth bag wall system used sand
taken directly from excavating the building’s foundations for
insulation and thermal mass.

Corporate
governance

Sustainability (Basil Read Developments)
As part of our commitment to sustainable development,
Basil Read Developments engaged communities on
environmental sustainability when Cosmo City started. Given
that planting trees is one of the most practical ways to
preserve South Africa’s natural heritage, it was critical that we
optimised environmental awareness in the community of
Cosmo City and other developments. In partnership with
Food and Trees for Africa, a non-governmental organisation,
and Johannesburg City Parks, we have planted and distributed
over 80 000 trees in Cosmo City, both street and fruit trees.

Sustainability

There are also houses run entirely on solar power, generated
by 14 roof-mounted solar panels and 12 batteries for storing
generated power. This was done in partnership with Sun
Concept Renewable Energy Systems as a pilot project.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

In partnership with the City of Johannesburg’s environmental
department and the Danish Embassy, we fitted 700 low-cost
houses with solar water heaters and insulated ceilings.
Eskom participated by supplying all households with energysaving lights.
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Sustainability review – corporate social investment

Although most of our business activities
are projects with specified durations,
our aim is to leave a legacy wherever
we operate by contributing to initiatives
that enhance infrastructure or skills
with lasting benefits for the community.

Basil Read’s corporate social investment (CSI) strategy strives
to engage with meaningful initiatives that contribute to the
transformation of people and communities. We are currently
reassessing some of our existing CSI initiatives as part of an
ongoing development process to comply with the mandate
from the social and ethics committee which oversees the
CSI process for the group.
A CSI subcommittee was established during the year to ensure
that this philosophy and any supporting initiatives are both
met and further developed.
In 2013, Basil Read contributed almost R3 million towards
specific projects, organisations and NGOs focused on
education, enterprise development and upliftment.
One of our more significant CSI projects is in partnership with
Eskom on the Medupi power station to develop communities
affected by the project in the Lephalale area in Limpopo.
Our other CSI focus areas include:
▶▶ Through a partnership with Khuthaza (a non-profit agency),
we provide focused training and development to develop
the entrepreneurial skills of women and enable them to
participate more effectively in economic opportunities in
the construction industry
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▶▶ Through Ambassadors in Sport, a non-profit public-benefit
organisation, we help develop young people through sport.
The programme endeavours to uplift and develop young
people from disadvantaged communities, counter crime
and addictions, and inspire players of all ages to make a
difference in their communities
▶▶ We made a substantial contribution towards building
materials to assist the Mpumalanga provincial government
in building houses in rural areas
▶▶ We supported a road-safety project for four schools in
Standerton through Active Education, which initiates
scholar-patrols so that children are trained and educated
to ensure safe road-crossing in rural areas
▶▶ A successful project in the Eastern Cape is providing
solar lighting in township areas to make communities safer
and contribute to the development of residents through
work opportunities.
We also encourage our employees to contribute to CSI
initiatives in their personal capacities and make a difference
in people’s lives outside of the company.
Through events like Mandela Day, Basil Read employees
participated in a number of initiatives in and around
communities where we operate. Employees collect food,
clothing and equipment for various shelters and help
with distribution.

Group overview
Divisional review

Management review
Basil Read integrated
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In 2013, our people again made a real difference in the lives of many others. Notable initiatives included:
▶ For Mandela Day, a head office finance employee involved her divisional and subsidiary peers in making that difference to the
Siyabonga Children’s Cottages in Alberton. While the children enjoyed a fun day, Siyabonga benefited from much-needed
equipment, including an industrial clothing press, a DVD player, and food, toiletries and bedding for the home. At present,
the home is a haven for 12 children, but is looking to expand to cater for more.
▶ Knowing that winters in Gauteng are short but brutal, Basil Read Mining and its subsidiary, Blasting & Excavating, supported
radio station Jacaranda 94.2’s Winter Warmer challenge to collect blankets for the needy. By the end of the challenge,
450 new blankets were donated by employees, with a matching corporate donation, to supply almost 1 000 blankets to
Jacaranda 94.2 to distribute to communities that really needed them.
▶ As a group, Basil Read took on an exciting but gruelling corporate social responsibility challenge by entering a group of
enthusiastic cyclists in the Momentum 94.7 Cycle Challenge. The challenge – with our seven cyclists among 300 dressed in
cow cycling gear – was to raise R4 million for the Childhood Cancer Foundation SA (CHOC) to build a house in the Eastern
Cape that will act as a home away from home for children and their families while children undergo treatment. The “cow”
cyclists made a significant dent in the required funds (R3,2 million raised) and Basil Read was recognised among the top-three
corporate donors.
▶ Basil Read experts are contributing professional skills and time in developing a community education campus in Devland,
Soweto. This 2 000 m2 multi-purpose building was designed to encourage residents to participate in their community and
foster a social and stable environment. The education training classrooms provide a safe and nurturing environment for
collaborative and individual learning and growth in an area challenged by racial tensions, extreme inequality and lack of
infrastructure projects.
▶ We are also taking the concept of volunteerism a step further by encouraging youths to embrace the concept of giving back.
During the year, we awarded a trophy for best learner in civil technology at Kensington Secondary School, which falls under
phase one of the school replacement programme. The trophy was donated at a function attended by Trevor Manuel, a former
learner of the school.
▶ Traditionally, Basil Read’s ladies have been involved with the Santa Shoebox project, but in 2013 everyone took part. This is
an inspiring community initiative by the Kidz2Kidz Trust that coordinates the donation, collection and distribution of
personalised gifts at Christmas time to underprivileged children across South Africa and Namibia. Participation is a valuable
and personal experience, with donors selecting the child who will receive their Santa Shoebox by name, gender and age.

Sustainability

Basil Read is about building legacies, but we want to go beyond that to building lives – even if it is just one life, or
one community.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

CASE STUDY – VOLUNTEERS MAKE THE DIFFERENCE
Corporate citizenship gains new depth and traction when staff members are actively involved. Shared activities boost morale,
encourage teamwork and introduce a significant multiplier effect through word of mouth among peers. At Basil Read, our
approach also includes matching the result of individual initiatives with a corporate contribution for greater impact.

Value added statement
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The value added statement measures performance in terms of value added by the group through the collective efforts of
management, employees and the providers of capital. The statement shows how value added has been distributed to those
contributing to its creation.
2013
R'000
VALUE ADDED DURING THE YEAR
Total revenue
Contract revenue
Other revenue
Cost of materials, subcontractors and other services

%

6 304 580
6 086 729
217 851
(4 332 503)

2012
R'000

%

6 834 146
6 608 258
225 888
(4 706 887)

Value added from trading operations
Interest income

1 972 077
45 701

97,74
2,26

2 127 259
30 081

98,61
1,39

Total value added

2 017 778

100,00

2 157 340

100,00

DISTRIBUTIONS DURING THE YEAR
Management
Salaries, retirement and other benefits
Employees
Salaries, retirement and other benefits
Providers of capital
Interest on borrowings and dividends paid
Government
Taxation

24 670

1,22

13 987

0,65

1 231 886

61,06

1 884 663

87,37

295 868

14,66

104 068

4,82

90 055

4,46

16 235

0,75

Total distributions
Retained for reinvestment
Depreciation
Income retained in the business

1 642 479
375 299
324 292
51 007

81,40
18,60

2 018 953
138 387
307 488
(169 101)

93,59
6,41

Total distributions

2 017 778

100,00

2 157 340

100,00

NOTES
Income retained in the business
Breakdown of income retained in the business is as follows:
Controlled income from operations
Share of profit of associates after taxation
Non-controlling interests

Providers of
capital – 15%
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(219 481)
49 097
1 283

51 007

(169 101)

VALUE ADDED 2012

VALUE ADDED 2013
Retained for
reinvestment – 19%

34 657
45 622
(29 272)

Management – 1%
Government – 4%
Employees – 61%

Retained for
reinvestment – 6%

Management – 1%

Providers of
capital – 5%

Government – 1%
Employees – 87%
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors have pleasure in presenting the summarised consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the complete consolidated and company annual financial statements for the same period (included in the 2013 financial report)
(collectively the financial statements). The consolidated and company annual financial statements were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc, who expressed an unmodified opinion thereon. The audited consolidated and company annual
financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon are available on the group’s website, www.basilread.co.za, or are available for
inspection at the company’s registered office. The summarised consolidated financial statements are extracted from audited
information, but are not themselves audited.
The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements of Basil Read
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), and include amounts based upon judgements and estimates made by management.
The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements they have used the most appropriate accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all IFRS that they consider to be
applicable have been followed. The directors are satisfied that the information contained in the financial statements fairly presents
the results of operations for the year and the financial position of the group at year-end. The directors also prepared the other
information included in the annual report and are responsible for both its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements.
The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept. The accounting records should disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the group companies to enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the relevant legislation.
Basil Read Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries operate in a well-established control environment, which is well documented and
regularly reviewed. This incorporates risk management and internal control procedures, which are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risks facing the business are being controlled.
The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis, since the directors have no reason to believe that the
group will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future, based on forecasts and available cash resources. These financial
statements support the viability of the company and the group.
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 May 2014 and are signed on their behalf by:

SLL Peteni
Chairman
26 May 2014

ML Heyns
Chief executive officer
26 May 2014

Certificate by company secretary
In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (as amended), I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
Basil Read Holdings Limited has, in respect of the financial year reported upon, lodged with the Registrar of Companies all returns
required of a public company in terms of the above mentioned Act and that all such returns are true and up to date.

A Ndoni
Company secretary
26 May 2014
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Summarised consolidated annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

The summarised consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain items,
including derivatives and investment property that are stated at fair value, and are presented in South African Rand, which is the
parent company’s presentation currency.
The significant accounting policies and methods of computation are consistent in all material respects with those applied in the
previous period. The summarised consolidated annual financial statements should be read with the full set of annual financial
statements as available on the company’s website.

Management review

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The summarised consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the JSE Limited’s (JSE) requirements
for summarised financial statements, and the requirements of the Companies Act applicable to summarised financial statements.
The JSE requires summarised financial statements to be prepared in accordance with the framework concepts and the
measurement and recognition requirements of IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee and Financial Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, and to also, as a minimum,
contain the information required by IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, from which the summarised consolidated financial statements were derived, are in terms of IFRS
and are consistent with the accounting policies applied in the preparation of the previous consolidated annual financial statements.

Divisional review

The summarised consolidated annual financial statements are not the group’s statutory accounts and do not contain all the
disclosures required by IFRS. Reading the summarised consolidated annual financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for
reading the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the group, as they do not contain sufficient information to allow for
a complete understanding of the results and state of affairs of the group. The audited consolidated annual financial statements are
available online at www.basilread.co.za, or are available for inspection at the company’s registered office. The annual financial
statements have been audited by the group’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. The summarised consolidated financial
statements are extracted from audited information, but are not themselves audited.

Group overview

These consolidated annual financial statements comprise a summary of the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the
group for the year ended 31 December 2013 that were approved by the board on 26 May 2014.

Sustainability

ML Heyns
Chief executive officer
26 May 2014

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

SLL Peteni
Chairman
26 May 2014

Corporate
governance

The financial statements were prepared by the interim chief financial officer, Amanda Wightman CA(SA), and approved by the
board of directors on 26 May 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:
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Directors’ report

for the year ended 31 December 2013

The directors present their 29th integrated annual report, which forms part of the audited financial statements of the company and
of the group for the year ended 31 December 2013.
NATURE OF BUSINESS
Basil Read is one of the top construction companies in South Africa. The company is listed on the JSE Limited and its subsidiary
companies are active in the areas of civil engineering, road construction, building, mixed integrated housing developments, property
development, bitumen distribution, opencast mining, blasting and engineering and project management solutions. These subsidiaries
operate throughout Africa and internationally.
DIVIDENDS
A special dividend of 175 cents per share was declared on 14 March 2013 following the completion of the disposal of
TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd. The dividend was paid to shareholders on 24 June 2013.
No dividend was declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.
SHARE CAPITAL
There was no change to the issued share capital of the company in the 2013 financial year.
During the 2012 financial year the group issued 7 883 243 ordinary shares for a cash consideration of R12,56 per share and
33 607 507 “A” ordinary shares for a cash consideration of R0,01 cents per share in terms of a B-BBEE transaction concluded
with SIOC CDT Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd, thereby giving them an effective 25,1% holding.
OPERATING RESULTS
The summarised financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out on pages 136 to 149.
The group made a profit after taxation from continuing operations of R101 million (2012: loss of R196 million) during the year
under review.
The group made a profit after taxation from discontinued operations of R181 million (2012: R27 million) during the year
under review.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The group acquired property, plant and equipment to the amount of R255 million (2012: R502 million) during the year.
INVESTMENTS
Subsidiaries
On 31 March 2013, the group disposed of 100% of its stake in TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd to WorleyParsons Ltd for a cash
consideration of R877 million, resulting in the recognition of a profit on disposal of discontinued operations of R181 million.
Joint ventures
During the year, the group entered into a joint venture arrangement with Isolux Corsan, a company incorporated in Spain. The
primary business of the joint venture, Siascan (Pty) Ltd, is the development of renewable energy projects.
Associates
During the year, the group acquired a 25% interest in 3Energy Renewables (Pty) Ltd for a purchase consideration of R100.
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EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
No material events have occurred between the statement of financial position date and the date of these results that would have a
material effect on the financial statements of the group.

Management review

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD
Details of shareholder categories are set out on page 150 of this report.
DIRECTORATE
The following were directors of the company during the year under review:
Sindile Lester Leslie Peteni

Independent non-executive director, chairman

Marius Lodewucus Heyns

Chief executive officer, managing director
Chief financial officer, financial director, deputy chief executive officer

Pieter Jacob Marais

Chief financial officer, financial director

#
†

Executive director

Andrew Conway Gaorekwe Molusi

Non-executive director

Sango Siviwe Ntsaluba

Non-executive director

Thabiso Alexander Tlelai

Non-executive director

Paul Cambo Baloyi

Independent non-executive director

Charles Peter Davies

Independent non-executive director

Nopasika Vuyelwa Lila

Independent non-executive director

Claudia Estelle Manning

Independent non-executive director

^

†

^

Resigned 30 May 2013
Appointed 30 May 2013; resigned 22 November 2013
Resigned 12 March 2013
Appointed 14 March 2013

Sustainability

#

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

*
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Nigel John Townshend

Divisional review

Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia

*

Group overview

BORROWINGS
Interest-bearing borrowings comprise instalment sale agreements and a domestic medium-term note programme. Other
borrowings comprise the amount due to former shareholders of the companies that the group has acquired over the last few years.
During the year borrowings decreased due to the repayment of instalment sale agreements and the domestic medium-term note
programme. The decrease in borrowings was partly offset by increases in new instalment sale agreements entered into to fund
capital expenditure.
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Directors’ report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

DIRECTORS’ AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

Executive directors
2013
Paid by Basil Read (Pty) Ltd
Marius Lodewucus Heyns#
§
Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
†
Pieter Jacob Marais
Paid by TWP Projects (Pty) Ltd
Nigel John Townshend^
2012
Paid by Basil Read (Pty) Ltd
Marius Lodewucus Heyns
Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
Paid by TWP Projects (Pty) Ltd
Nigel John Townshend

Cash portion
of package
R

3 099 397
1 206 521
1 196 214
5 502 132

Benefits*
R

470 925
216 450
189 926
877 301

Gain on
Incentive share options
exercised
bonus
R
R

10 921 036
2 000 000
–
12 921 036

–
–
–
–

Total
R

14 491 358
3 422 971
1 386 140
19 300 469

548 716

86 106

–

–

634 822

6 050 848

963 407

12 921 036

–

19 935 291

3 096 604
2 078 040
5 174 644

467 824
343 595
811 419

–
–
–

–
–
–

3 564 428
2 421 635
5 986 063

2 800 954

451 783

1 500 000

–

4 752 737

7 975 598

1 263 202

1 500 000

–

10 738 800

Benefits include the group’s contribution towards medical aid and provident fund
	
The short-term incentive bonus for Marius Lodewucus Heyns has been calculated in terms of the remuneration policy as disclosed in the 2012 integrated
annual report, included on page 102 for reference
§
Resigned 30 May 2013
†
Appointed 30 May 2013, resigned 22 November 2013
^
Resigned 12 March 2013
*

#

In addition to the above remuneration, Marius Lodewucus Heyns has an agreement with the group that, should he meet certain
annual criteria, an additional deferred bonus will accrue to him.
In accordance with the terms of the deferred bonus, an amount of R10 million plus interest of R2,3 million will be paid to
Marius Lodewucus Heyns in May 2014, being the full and final payment relating to this incentive. This bonus was calculated in
accordance with the criteria below.
The aggregate base amount of the deferred bonus which accrued and will be paid on 31 May 2014 will be R50 million plus accrued
interest and shall be calculated by the group’s remuneration committee in five equal annual tranches in accordance with the
following criteria, applied annually:
▶▶ Headline earnings per share increasing by at least a percentage equal to the spot rate as at 30 September of each year of the
RSA Five-Year Retail Bond rate plus 50%. The spot rate applicable to the 2013 results was 7%.
▶▶ Cash flow from operating activities to be cash generative in each year.
▶▶ The criteria will carry equal weight in the determination of the amount of the deferred bonus.
▶▶ Should the criteria not be met in any one financial year, the deferred bonus will be reduced by an amount equal to that year’s
tranche.
▶▶ The remuneration committee may recommend to the board and the board may, in their discretion, relax the criteria in any given
year should they deem it necessary and appropriate.
▶▶ Marius Lodewucus Heyns must remain in the employ of the group for the five-year period covered by the deferred bonus. If he
leaves, unless for reasons of ill health, at any time during this period, none of the deferred bonus becomes due and payable.
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Marius Lodewucus Heyns did not meet the criteria for the 2012 financial year and accordingly no provision was created in the 2012
financial year for payment of this deferred bonus.
Marius Lodewucus Heyns did not meet the criteria for the 2011 financial year and accordingly no provision was created in the 2011
financial year for payment of this deferred bonus.

Group overview

Marius Lodewucus Heyns did not meet the criteria for the 2013 financial year and accordingly no provision was created in the 2013
financial year for payment of this deferred bonus.

2012
Sindile Lester Leslie Peteni
Sango Siviwe Ntsaluba#
Thabiso Alexander Tlelai#
§
Paul Cambo Baloyi
Charles Peter Davies
Nopasika Vuyelwa Lila^
Claudia Estelle Manning^
Given Refilwe Sibiya*

#
§
^
*

956 000
424 667
381 500
599 000
540 833
768 500
570 500
493 500

4 734 500

4 734 500

1 012 000
434 000
365 000
40 833
679 500
161 000
122 500
432 833

1 012 000
434 000
365 000
40 833
679 500
161 000
122 500
432 833

3 247 666

3 247 666

Appointed 14 March 2013
Paid to the companies that these directors represent
Appointed 2 November 2012
Appointed 23 August 2012
Resigned 31 August 2012

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

†

956 000
424 667
381 500
599 000
540 833
768 500
570 500
493 500

Divisional review

2013
Sindile Lester Leslie Peteni
†
Andrew Conway Gaorekwe Molusi
#
Sango Siviwe Ntsaluba
Thabiso Alexander Tlelai#
Paul Cambo Baloyi
Charles Peter Davies
Nopasika Vuyelwa Lila
Claudia Estelle Manning

Total
R

Sustainability

Non-executive directors

Services
as director
R

Corporate
governance

Marius Lodewucus Heyns met the criteria for the 2009 financial year and accordingly a R10 million provision was raised in the 2009
financial year for payment of this deferred bonus.

Management review

Marius Lodewucus Heyns did not meet the criteria for the 2010 financial year and accordingly no provision was created in the 2010
financial year for payment of this deferred bonus.
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Directors’ report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors’ fees for the 2013 financial year were paid according to the following table:
With effect from 1 January 2013
Board – retainer
Board – per meeting
Audit committee – retainer
Audit committee – per meeting
Risk committee – retainer
Risk committee – per meeting
Remuneration committee – retainer
Remuneration committee – per meeting
Social, ethics and transformation committee – retainer
Social, ethics and transformation committee – per meeting
Chairman’s committee – per meeting
Ad hoc meetings – per meeting

Member

Chairman

140 000
17 500
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
7 000
7 000

500 000
33 000
140 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
14 000
14 000

Member

Chairman

140 000
17 500
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
70 000
7 000
7 000
7 000

500 000
33 000
140 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
130 000
14 000
14 000
14 000

Total
R

Directors’ fees are reviewed annually. It it proposed that directors’ fees remain unchanged as follows:
With effect from 1 January 2014
Board – retainer
Board – per meeting
Audit committee – retainer
Audit committee – per meeting
Risk committee – retainer
Risk committee – per meeting
Remuneration committee – retainer
Remuneration committee – per meeting
Social, ethics and transformation committee – retainer
Social, ethics and transformation committee – per meeting
Chairman’s committee – per meeting
Ad hoc meetings – per meeting
These fees have been waived by the executive directors. Fees are paid quarterly in arrears.

Highest earners including
prescribed officers
2013
Christopher John Erasmus#
Antonie Fourie#
§
Digby John Glover#
#
Guenther Hellhoff
Avinash Naidoo#
Amanda Claire Wightman#^
Two next highest earners
2012
Christopher John Erasmus#
Antonie Fourie#
Digby John Glover#
Two next highest earners
*
#
§
^

Cash portion
of package
R

Benefits*
R

Gain on
Incentive share options
exercised
bonus
R
R

2 077 619
1 938 497
466 630
1 631 851
1 059 034
353 769
4 146 031

352 593
235 959
67 972
223 446
138 482
43 866
374 611

–
2 000 000
–
500 000
–
83 333
1 500 000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

2 430 212
4 174 456
534 602
2 355 297
1 197 516
480 968
6 020 642

11 673 431

1 436 929

4 083 333

–

17 193 693

2 069 613
1 741 180
2 127 669
5 454 837

330 453
209 931
324 941
88 289

–
1 000 000
2 000 000
2 250 000

–
–
–
–

2 400 066
2 951 111
4 452 610
7 793 126

11 393 299

953 614

5 250 000

–

17 596 913

Benefits include the group’s contribution towards medical aid, provident fund and expatriate costs
Paid by group subsidiary companies
Until 12 March 2013
From 22 November 2013
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13,95
–
–

–
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013

380 000

13,95

105 000
–
–
(105 000)

13,95
–
–
–

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2013.
Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2013
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year
Equity-settled instruments lapsed during the year due to resignation

–
–
–
–

–

13,95

Number

Average
strike
price
R

Average
exercise
price
R

Marius Lodewucus Heyns
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2012
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

380 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

–
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2012

380 000

13,95

Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2012
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

105 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2012

105 000

13,95

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013
The directors held the following equity settled instruments at 31 December 2012:

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2012.
–
–
–

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2012.

Group overview

380 000
–
–

Management review

Marius Lodewucus Heyns
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2013
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

Divisional review

Average
exercise
price
R

Corporate
governance

Number

Average
strike
price
R

Sustainability

DIRECTORS’ AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ EQUITY-SETTLED INSTRUMENTS
Executive directors
The directors held the following equity settled instruments at 31 December 2013:
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Directors’ report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Prescribed officers
The following prescribed officers held the following equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013:

Number

Average
strike
price
R

Average
exercise
price
R

Christopher John Erasmus
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2013
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

145 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

–
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013

145 000

13,95

Antonie Fourie
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2013
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

90 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013

90 000

13,95

Amanda Claire Wightman
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2013
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

32 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2013

32 000

13,95

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2013.
–
–
–

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2013.
–
–
–

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2013.
The following prescribed officers held the following equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2012:

Number

Average
strike
price
R

Average
exercise
price
R

Christopher John Erasmus
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2012
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

145 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

–
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2012

145 000

13,95

Antonie Fourie
Equity-settled instruments at 1 January 2012
Equity-settled instruments granted during the year
Equity-settled instruments exercised during the year

90 000
–
–

13,95
–
–

Equity-settled instruments at 31 December 2012

90 000

13,95

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2012.

All of these options had vested by 31 December 2012.
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–
–
–

2013
Number

2012
Number

–
–
6 986
–
147 628
–
154 614
–

32 070
–
6 986
–
147 628
–
186 684
–

–
–
2 776 939
2 774 953
–
–
5 551 892
–

–
9 337 047
2 776 939
2 774 953
–
1 282 275
16 171 214
–

154 614

186 684

5 551 892

16 171 214

The company’s directors did not trade in shares between year-end and the date the financial statements were authorised for issue.
INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS IN SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
The direct interests of the directors and officers at the date of this report are as follows:
Number of
unissued
shares
2013
Direct
Marius Lodewucus Heyns
Christopher John Erasmus
Antonie Fourie
Amanda Claire Wightman
2012
Direct
Marius Lodewucus Heyns
Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
Christopher John Erasmus
Antonie Fourie

% of
% held
unissued
once
shares shares issued

380 000
145 000
90 000
32 000

20,52
7,83
4,86
1,73

0,29
0,11
0,07
0,02

380 000
105 000
145 000
90 000

20,52
5,67
7,83
4,86

0,23
0,06
0,09
0,05

Group overview

2012
Number

Management review

Shares held by associates

2013
Number

Divisional review

Beneficial
Manuel Donnell Grota Gouveia
Nigel John Townshend
Sango Siviwe Ntsaluba
Thabiso Alexander Tlelai
Christopher John Erasmus
Digby John Glover

Indirect

Corporate
governance

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS IN SHARE CAPITAL
The interests, direct and indirect, of the directors and officers at the date of this report are as follows:
Direct

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc will continue in office in accordance with section 90(6) of the Companies Act. At the annual general
meeting, shareholders will be requested to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc as the group’s auditors for the 2014 financial year.

REGISTERED OFFICE
The Basil Read Campus
7 Romeo Street
Hughes extension
Boksburg
1459

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

COMPANY SECRETARY
Merchantec Capital (Pty) Ltd resigned as company secretary on 14 March 2013. Andiswa Ndoni was appointed as company
secretary on 14 March 2013.
POSTAL ADDRESS
Private Bag X170
Bedfordview
2008
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The right to the unissued shares are in terms of the Basil Read Share Incentive Scheme.
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Summarised consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
R’000

Notes
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Contracting revenue
Other revenue – development fees
Other revenue – construction materials and services
Contracting and other costs
Other administrative and operating overheads
Depreciation, impairment and amortisation of fixed assets
Other income
Other gains/(losses) – net
Operating profit/(loss)
Interest received
Foreign exchange
Interest paid
Profit/(loss) before share of profit from investments accounted
for using the equity method
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation
Net profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net (loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations
Tax on disposal

1
1
1

2012
R’000

6 304 580
6 086 729
40 086
177 765
(5 398 511)
(520 570)
(325 152)
506
6 701
67 554
45 701
33 374
(65 405)

5 493 465
5 267 577
26 736
199 152
(4 905 931)
(496 298)
(287 329)
546
24 684
(170 863)
20 162
(5 823)
(99 022)

81 224
45 166
126 390
(25 899)
100 491

(255 546)
44 812
(210 734)
14 593
(196 141)

(12 197)
257 332
(64 156)

27 040
–
–

Net profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

281 470

(169 101)

310 742
(29 272)

(170 384)
1 283

Net profit/(loss) for the year

281 470

(169 101)

235,97
235,97
98,54
98,54
137,43
137,43

(136,54)
(136,54)
(158,21)
(158,21)
21,67
21,67

Earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (cents)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (cents)
Earnings per share from discontinued operations (cents)
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations (cents)
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2
2
2
2
2
2

Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Net profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
Movement in fair value adjustment reserve
Deferred tax effect on other comprehensive income

281 470

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

289 370

(173 295)

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year attributable
to the following:
Equity shareholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

314 158
(24 788)

(175 162)
1 867

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

289 370

(173 295)

(4 194)
3 502
(8 788)
1 092

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

Sustainability

Corporate
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Divisional review

7 900
12 003
(5 043)
940

(169 101)

Group overview

2012
R’000

Management review

2013
R’000
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Summarised consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

1 914 321
1 138 147
5 730
411 829
125 566
61 029
120 636
572
50 812
2 804 193
41 958
363 120
974 237
97 408
2 577
66 768
1 258 125
–

2 016 019
1 272 127
–
412 689
71 602
77 967
125 201
5 621
50 812
2 598 877
81 236
402 375
883 617
99 198
–
53 764
1 078 687
773 540

Total assets

4 718 514

5 388 436

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Stated capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves
Non-controlling interests
Total capital and reserves
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings
Loans from investments accounted for using the equity method
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions for other liabilities and charges
Bank overdraft
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale

1 909 465
1 048 025
851 451
9 989
(38 207)
1 871 258
309 768
263 086
–
46 682
2 537 488
2 138 276
38 273
163 314
5 938
1 395
134 651
55 641
–

1 799 554
1 048 025
750 654
875
24 768
1 824 322
376 266
314 187
13 250
48 829
2 992 185
2 199 266
11 970
562 980
20 695
2 506
162 915
31 853
195 663

4 718 514

5 388 436

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Loans to investments accounted for using the equity method
Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Current assets
Inventories
Development land
Contract and trade debtors
Receivables and prepayments
Derivative financial instruments
Current income tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets held for sale

Total equity and liabilities
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3

4

5

5

Summarised consolidated statement of changes in equity

Balance at
31 December 2013

7 319

–

860 499

1 814 820

22 901

1 837 721

7

–

–

–

–

7

–

7

–

–

–

–

–

99 350

–

99 350

–
–

2 918
–

–

–

(7 696)
–
–

–
60 539

(170 384)
–

(60 539)

60 539

(175 162)
60 539
–

750 654 1 799 554

1 867
–

(173 295)
60 539

–

–

(12)

1 252

(377)

–

24 768 1 824 322

–

4 989

709

–

–

5 698

(15 272)

–

–

–

–

20 518

20 518

(20 518)

–
–

7 519
–

(4 103)
–

–
–

310 742
314 158
(230 463) (230 463)

(24 788) 289 370
(2 397) (232 860)

(12)

13 760

(3 771)

–

851 451 1 909 465

(38 207) 1 871 258

(9 574)
–

Sustainability

 he foreign currency translation reserve is the result of exchange differences arising from the translation of the group’s foreign operations to the group’s
T
presentation currency, the rand.

Management review

(1 666)

Total
equity
R’000

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

*

1 048 037

(19)

Total
attriNonbutable to
Retained owners of controlling
interests
earnings the parent
R’000
R’000
R’000

Divisional review

Balance at
1 January 2012
948 687
Movement in shares held
by the trust
–
Issue of shares in terms
of B-BBEE transaction
99 350
Total comprehensive
income for the year
–
Share-based payment
–
Reallocate equity-settled
share-based payment
–
Balance at
31 December 2012 1 048 037
Disposal of
subsidiary
–
Transactions with
minorities
–
Total
comprehensive
income for the year
–
Dividends paid
–

Equitysettled
Fair
sharevalue
based
adjustment payment
reserve reserve
R’000
R’000

Corporate
governance

Foreign
currency
translation
Share Treasury
capital
shares reserve*
R’000
R’000
R’000

Group overview

for the year ended 31 December 2013
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Summarised consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
R’000

Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated by operating activities
Net finance income/(costs)
Dividends paid
Taxation paid
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of subsidiaries
Acquisition of jointly controlled entity
Disposal of jointly controlled entity
Advances made to jointly controlled entities
Advances recovered from jointly controlled entities
Acquisition of associate
Disposal of associate
Advances made to associates
Advances recovered from associates
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial asset
Disposal of available-for-sale financial asset
Acquisition of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings
Repayments of other borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares – net of costs
Effects of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

6

1

(2 715)
284 427
13 670
(232 640)
(68 172)
689 926
(212 283)
93 101
839 214
(1)
–
(15 354)
–
–
–
(20 468)
5 711
–
6
–
(506 682)
125 000
(618 432)
(13 250)
–
(23 767)

2012
R’000
843 106
1 033 498
(77 133)
(38)
(113 221)
(403 415)
(501 693)
54 249
66 324
(1)
4 000
(31 206)
9 695
(3 169)
3 870
(17 466)
285
(3 769)
34 619
(19 153)
(50 781)
329 912
(480 050)
–
99 357
3 059

Movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – at the beginning of the year

156 762
1 045 722

391 969
653 753

Cash and cash equivalents – at the end of the year

1 202 484

1 045 722

Included in cash and cash equivalents as per the balance sheet
Included in the assets of disposal group

1 202 484
–

1 046 834
(1 112)

1 202 484

1 045 722
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Sale consideration:
– cash received
– interest component sale consideration
– cash costs of disposal
Net sale consideration
Carrying value of net assets disposed
Derecognition of non-controlling interest
Derecognition of fair value adjustment reserve
Derecognition of foreign currency translation reserve
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations
Closure of TWP Australia

2.

877 709
(8 112)
(31 495)
838 102
(559 162)
15 272
(709)
(4 989)
288 514
(31 182)

Net loss for the year from discontinued operations

257 332
(12 197)

Net profit on disposal of discontinued operations before tax
Capital gains tax on disposal of discontinued operations

245 135
(64 156)

Net profit on disposal of discontinued operations after tax as per income statement

180 979

Purchase consideration received in cash
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary disposed

838 102
1 112

Cash inflow on disposal

839 214

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated profit after
taxation of R310 741 569 (2012: loss of R170 383 890) and the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Headline earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of headline earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated
headline profit after taxation of R116 096 483 (2012: loss of R163 276 861) and
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904
(2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated profit
after taxation of R310 741 569 (2012: loss of R170 383 890) and the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Diluted headline earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of diluted headline earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated
headline profit after taxation of R116 096 483 (2012: loss of R163 276 861) and the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904
(2012: 124 786 816) shares.

2013
Cents

2012
Cents

235,97

(136,54)

88,16

(130,84)

235,97

(136,54)

88,16

(130,84)
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Management review

R’000

Divisional review

Details of the disposal are as follows:

Corporate
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TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd was included as part of the Engineering segment.

Sustainability

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
During March 2013, the group concluded its disposal of TWP Holdings (Pty) Ltd to WorleyParsons Ltd. The company
is an engineering, procurement and construction management company.

Summarised financial and
shareholder information

1.

Group overview

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Summarised notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 continued

2.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated profit after
taxation of R129 762 586 (2012: loss of R197 423 690) and the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share is based on the consolidated profit
after taxation of R129 762 586 (2012: loss of R197 423 690) and the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Earnings per share
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the consolidated profit after taxation of
R180 979 183 (2012: R27 039 800) and the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the consolidated profit after
taxation of R180 979 183 (2012: R27 039 800) and the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year of 131 685 904 (2012: 124 786 816) shares.
Reconciliation between basic earnings/(loss), diluted earnings/(loss)
and headline earnings/(loss) is as follows:
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
Adjusted by the after tax effect of the following:
(Profit)/loss on sale of subsidiary
Loss on sale of jointly controlled entity
Profit on sale of associate
Profit on sale of available-for-sale financial asset
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

2012
Cents

98,54

(158,21)

98,54

(158,21)

137,43

21,67

137,43

21,67

R’000

R’000

310 742
(193 176)
–
–
–
(1 470)
–

(170 384)
253
3 760
(359)
(4 050)
451
7 052

116 096

(163 277)

Number
’000

Number
’000

Reconciliation between weighted average number of shares and
diluted weighted average number of shares:
Weighted average number of shares
Adjusted by: “A” ordinary shares
Adjusted by: Basil Read Share Incentive Scheme

131 686
–
–

124 787
–
–

Diluted weighted average number of shares

131 686

124 787

Headline earnings/(loss)
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At 1 January 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

35 923
(5 347)

1 957 063
(861 605)

122 523
(82 344)

2 115 509
(949 296)

Net book amount

30 576

1 095 458

40 179

1 166 213

Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Impairment
Exchange differences
Transferred to assets held for sale

30 576
3 523
(3 816)
(1 667)
(300)
27
(4 064)

1 095 458
477 746
(48 670)
(281 426)
(6 752)
(170)
(5 912)

40 179
20 424
(1 876)
(17 343)
–
155
(23 965)

1 166 213
501 693
(54 362)
(300 436)
(7 052)
12
(33 941)

Closing net book amount

24 279

1 230 274

17 574

1 272 127

At 31 December 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

26 599
(2 320)

2 276 385
(1 046 111)

39 912
(22 338)

2 342 896
(1 070 769)

Net book amount

24 279

1 230 274

17 574

1 272 127

Year ended 31 December 2013
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation
Impairment
Exchange differences
Transferred to investment property

24 279
11 841
(571)
(5)
–
14
(2 534)

1 230 274
230 355
(91 543)
(315 626)
–
29 178
–

17 574
12 752
820
(8 661)
–
–
–

1 272 127
254 948
(91 294)
(324 292)
–
29 192
(2 534)

Closing net book amount

33 024

1 082 638

22 485

1 138 147

At 31 December 2013
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

33 499
(475)

2 392 322
(1 309 684)

51 015
(28 530)

2 476 836
(1 338 689)

Net book amount

33 024

1 082 638

22 485

1 138 147

The impairment in the prior year relates to specific items of plant in the engineering division. The recoverable amount of
this plant was externally valued based on fair value less cost to sell which was determined to be higher than value in use.
Due to the specialised nature and age of the plant concerned, a forced sale value was used as the recoverable amount.

Management review

Total
R’000

Divisional review

Furniture
and fittings
R’000

Corporate
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Plant and
equipment
R’000

Sustainability

Land and
buildings
R’000

Group overview

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Summarised notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 continued

3.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Book value of plant and equipment subject to instalment sale agreements (refer to note 5) are as follows:
Land and
buildings
R’000
At 31 December 2013
Instalment sale agreements
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2012
Instalment sale agreements
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Plant and
equipment
R’000

Furniture
and fittings
R’000

Total
R’000

–
–

670 073
(283 371)

–
–

670 073
(283 371)

–

386 702

–

386 702

–
–

797 568
(247 475)

–
–

797 568
(247 475)

–

550 093

–

550 093

A full register of the group’s land and buildings is available for inspection at the registered office.
Assets under construction, included in plant and equipment, amount to R13,3 million (2012: R4,3 million).

4.

CONTRACT AND TRADE DEBTORS
Contract debtors
Contract debtors
Provision for impairment of contract debtors
Trade receivables
Trade receivables
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Retention debtors
Retention debtors
Provision for impairment of retention debtors
Work in progress
Costs incurred to date
Profit recognised to date
Progress payments received and receivable

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

762 562

550 682

771 446
(8 884)

558 307
(7 625)

27 939

40 792

29 278
(1 339)

41 531
(739)

54 045

89 682

58 410
(4 365)

90 650
(968)

129 691
8 667 324
389 159
(8 926 792)
974 237
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202 461
8 115 264
489 636
(8 402 439)
883 617

498 622

125 301

378 545

Less: Current portion transferred to current liabilities

426 400
(163 314)

877 167
(562 980)

Instalment sale agreements
Domestic medium-term note programme

(163 013)
(301)

(184 435)
(378 545)

Total non-current interest-bearing borrowings

263 086

314 187

The present value of future minimum payments on instalment sale agreements
is as follows:
Due within the next 12 months
Due between one and five years
Thereafter

163 013
138 086
–

184 435
314 187
–

301 099

498 622

301
125 000
–

378 545
–
–

125 301

378 545

The instalment sale agreements for plant and equipment bear interest between the
prime overdraft rate plus 3% and prime less 2% per annum and are repayable in
monthly instalments of between R2 846 and R1 966 788 over a period of between
one and five years.
The agreements are secured by plant and equipment with a book value of
R386 702 181 (2012: R550 093 221). Refer to note 3 for further details.

On 28 June 2011, the group raised R150 million under this programme. The note,
BSR05, was listed on the Bond Exchange of South Africa on 30 June 2011 and bore
interest at the three-month ZAR-JIBAR-SAFEX rate plus 2,47%. Interest was
payable quarterly. This bond was fully redeemed on 1 July 2013.

On 4 December 2012, the group raised R100 million under this programme. The
note, BSR10, was listed on the Bond Exchange of South Africa on 7 December 2012
and bore interest at the six-month ZAR-JIBAR-SAFEX rate plus 0,45%. Interest was
payable on maturity. The bond was fully redeemed on 7 June 2013.
On 17 December 2013, the group raised R125 million under this programme. The
unlisted note, BSR11U, was settled on 20 December 2013 and bears interest at
the three-month ZAR-JIBAR-SAFEX rate plus 2,10%. Interest is payable quarterly
and the capital sum is payable on 20 June 2015. The interest rate applicable at
year-end was 7,317%.

The present value of future minimum payments on the domestic medium-term note
programme is as follows:
Due within the next 12 months
Due between one and two years
Thereafter
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On 18 June 2012, the group raised R125 million under this programme. The note,
BSR09, was listed on the Bond Exchange of South Africa on 20 June 2012 and bore
interest at the three-month ZAR-JIBAR-SAFEX rate plus 2,00%. Interest was
payable quarterly. The bond was fully redeemed on 20 December 2013.

Sustainability

Domestic medium-term note programme
Total amount outstanding

Group overview

301 099

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Instalment sale agreements
Total amount outstanding

Management review

2012
R’000
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2013
R’000

Summarised notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 continued

5.

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

301 099
125 301

498 622
378 545

426 400

877 167

349 909
76 491

712 785
164 382

426 400

877 167

324 886
81 884

(120 545)
360 675

Depreciation
Share-based payment
Impairment loss
Write down of development land
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of available-for-sale financial asset
Loss/(profit) on sale of subsidiary
Loss on sale of jointly controlled entity
Profit on sale of associate
Fair value adjustment
Reversal of other borrowings – deferred payment to previous
shareholders of Sladden International (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
Amortisation of intangible assets

324 292
–
–
22 572
(1 807)
–
(288 514)
31 182
–
(6 701)

300 436
60 539
7 052
26 607
113
(4 979)
312
4 622
(441)
(29 177)

Operating cash flow
Movements in working capital:

406 770
(122 343)

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)
The fair value of interest-bearing borrowings is as follows:
Instalment sale agreements
Domestic medium-term note programme
The carrying amounts of interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:
South African rand
Botswana pula
The group has R1,1 billion (2012: R1,0 billion) undrawn borrowing facilities at the
end of the year. These facilities are annual facilities and are subject to review at
various dates during 2014.

6.

CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating profit/(loss)
Adjustment for non-cash items:

–
860

Inventories
Development land
Contract and trade debtors
Receivables and pre-payments
Trade and other payables
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

39 278
16 683
(90 620)
1 790
(61 210)
(28 264)

Cash generated by operating activities

284 427

(6 399)
1 990
240 130
793 368
(38 379)
(30 296)
114 079
19 416
750 609
(22 061)
1 033 498

Excluded from the cash flow statement are additions to fixed assets amounting to R42,7 million (2012: Rnil) which were
funded by instalment sale agreements.
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In terms of revenue and profitability, the construction segment has been further broken down into buildings, civil
engineering and roads to be consistent with the internal reporting reviewed by the committee.
Although the developments segment does not meet the qualitative thresholds required by IFRS 8, management has
concluded that this segment should be reported, as it is closely monitored by the strategic executive committee as a
growth area with a unique risk profile.
Intersegment revenue is charged at market rates prevailing at the time of the transaction. The revenue from external
customers reported to the strategic executive committee is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
income statement.
The amounts provided to the strategic executive committee with respect to assets are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the asset.

Sustainability

Corporate
governance

The amounts provided to the strategic executive committee with respect to liabilities are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Group overview

The committee manages the business in terms of four segments: construction, developments, engineering and mining. Assets
and liabilities are allocated to each of these segments and are managed accordingly.

Management review

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the strategic executive committee
that are used to make strategic decisions.

Divisional review

SEGMENT REPORT
The group mainly operates in South Africa and sub-Saharan Africa. The group’s client base consists mainly of government
and mining institutions.
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Summarised notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 continued

7.

SEGMENT REPORT (continued)
The segment information provided to the strategic executive committee for the reportable segments for the year ended
31 December 2013 is as follows:
Operating
profit
%

Developments
R’000

Engineering
R’000

Mining
R’000

Revenue

4 685 474

69 897

690 154

956 958

(97 903)

6 304 580

Buildings
Civil engineering
Roads
Mining
Developments
Engineering

921 795
1 373 307
2 390 372
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
69 897
–

–
–
–
–
–
690 154

–
–
–
956 958
–
–

–
–
(62 528)
(21 597)
–
(13 778)

921 795
1 373 307
2 327 844
935 361
69 897
676 376

Total
R’000

Operating profit

1,07

12 057

(16 311)

12 944

58 864

–

67 554

Buildings
Civil engineering
Roads
Mining
Developments
Engineering

0,68
(2,40)
1,67
6,29
(23,34)
1,91

6 286
(32 998)
38 769
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
(16 311)
–

–
–
–
–
–
12 944

–
–
–
58 864
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

6 286
(32 998)
38 769
58 864
(16 311)
12 944

(157 441)
–

(117)
–

–
–

(324 292)
–

(24 470)

–

13 670

Depreciation
Impairment
Net finance
income/(costs)
Property, plant
and equipment
Additions to
property, plant
and equipment
Goodwill
Inventories
Cash and cash
equivalents
Interest-bearing
borrowings
Other borrowings
Order book
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(214) (166 520)
–
–

47 111

(13 585)

4 614

614 208

3 018

–

520 921

–

1 138 147

195 080
282 097
19 690

117
–
–

–
90 510
–

59 751
34 779
22 268

–
–
–

254 948
407 386
41 958

1 037 413

2 672

73 813

88 586

–

1 202 484

204 582
–
8 165 000

–
–
100 000

– 221 818
–
–
280 000 3 919 000

–
–
–

426 400
–
12 464 000

Mining
R’000

Revenue

4 169 478

25 028

466 129

1 196 993

(364 163)

5 493 465

Buildings
Civil engineering
Roads
Mining
Developments
Engineering

776 918
1 355 016
2 037 544
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
25 028
–

–
–
–
–
–
466 129

–
–
–
1 196 993
–
–

(24 489)
(59 975)
(103 154)
(176 545)
–
–

752 429
1 295 041
1 934 390
1 020 448
25 028
466 129

Total
R’000

Operating profit

(3,11)

(277 225)

(30 036)

54 008

82 390

–

(170 863)

Buildings
Civil engineering
Roads
Mining
Developments
Engineering

2,94
(1,95)
(14,17)
8,07
(120,01)
11,59

22 109
(25 295)
(274 039)
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
(30 036)
–

–
–
–
–
–
54 008

–
–
–
82 390
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

22 109
(25 295)
(274 039)
82 390
(30 036)
54 008

(109 251)
(300)
(28 744)

(137)
–
(14 785)

–
–
(3 793)

(176 781)
–
(37 361)

–
–
–

(286 169)
(300)
(84 683)

635 835

3 018

8 621

624 653

–

1 272 127

306 107
282 097
41 149

14
–
–

5 041
90 510
–

172 720
34 779
40 087

–
–
–

483 882
407 386
81 236

826 471

5 283

96 562

118 518

–

1 046 834

510 215
13 250
7 645 000

–
–
50 000

–
–
1 050 000

366 952
–
1 500 000

–
–
–

877 167
13 250
10 245 000

Depreciation
Impairment
Net finance costs
Property, plant
and equipment
Additions to
property, plant
and equipment
Goodwill
Inventories
Cash and cash
equivalents
Interest-bearing
borrowings
Other borrowings
Order book

Geographic information
Revenue
South Africa
Rest of Africa
Rest of world

2013
%

2012
%

74
11
15

75
18
7

100

100
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Engineering
R’000

Divisional review

Developments
R’000
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Intersegment
elimination
R’000

Construction
R’000

Sustainability

Operating
profit
%

Group overview

SEGMENT REPORT (continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Summarised financial and
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Shareholders’ information
as at 31 December 2013

SHAREHOLDERS’ ANALYSIS				
The following are the shareholders beneficially holding, directly or indirectly, in excess of 2% of the share capital:
Ordinary shares
Amabubesi Investments (Pty) Ltd
Industrial Development Corporation
SIOC CDT Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Public Investment Commissioners
RMB Morgan Stanley (Pty) Ltd
Pictet et cie Banquiers
“A” ordinary shares
SIOC CDT Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd

Number of
shares held

% of
shares held

11 099 813
9 090 909
7 883 243
6 083 500
4 488 546
3 414 592

6,71
5,50
4,77
3,68
2,72
2,07

Number of
shares held

% of
shares held

33 607 507

20,33

Number of
shares held

% of
shares held

DESCRIPTION OF SHAREHOLDERS
Ordinary shares
Public shareholding
Corporate entities/nominees/trusts/individuals
Non-public shareholding
Share Incentive Scheme
Major black economic empowerment partners
Directors (direct and indirect)
Total ordinary shares
“A” ordinary shares
Public shareholding
Corporate entities/nominees/trusts/individuals

Number of
% of
shareholders shareholders
3 183

99,85

112 684 143

68,18

3 183

99,85

112 684 143

68,18

1
2
1

0,03
0,06
0,03

20 096
18 983 056
6 986

0,01
11,48
–

4

0,12

19 010 138

11,49

3 187

99,97

131 694 281

79,67

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
1
–

–
0,03
–

–
33 607 507
–

–
20,33
–

1

0,03

33 607 507

20,33

1

0,03

33 607 507

20,33

Total shares

3 188

100,00

165 301 788

100,00

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS ACCORDING TO
COUNTRY
South Africa
Switzerland
United States of America
United Kingdom
Namibia
Germany
Swaziland
Lesotho
Luxembourg
Hong Kong
Netherlands
Botswana
Zimbabwe
France
Greece

3 119
3
12
17
16
1
3
1
1
3
1
6
3
1
1

97,86
0,09
0,38
0,53
0,50
0,03
0,09
0,03
0,03
0,09
0,03
0,19
0,09
0,03
0,03

158 408 383
3 445 092
2 152 018
419 524
263 251
223 405
116 352
99 918
64 931
41 659
33 146
18 629
8 280
7 000
200

95,83
2,08
1,30
0,25
0,16
0,14
0,07
0,06
0,04
0,03
0,02
0,01
0,01
–
–

3 188

100,00

165 301 788

100,00

Non-public shareholding
Share Incentive Scheme
Major black economic empowerment partners
Directors (direct and indirect)
Total “A” ordinary shares
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
Presentation of audited annual financial statements
To present the audited annual financial statements of the company and, in accordance with good corporate practices, to
receive and adopt the audited annual financial statements of the company and the group for the year ended 31 December
2013, including the directors’ report, the audit committee report and the report of the independent auditors, and to confirm
all matters and things undertaken and discharged by the directors on behalf of the company. The annual financial statements
are available on the company’s website: www.basilread.co.za.

2.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Reappointment of independent auditors
To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc as independent auditors of the company, and to appoint Mr Faan Lombard as the
individual designated auditor, to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting in terms of section 90(1) of
the Companies Act No 71 of 2008, as amended (the Companies Act) and on recommendation of the audit committee, and to
authorise the directors to determine the auditors’ remuneration.

3.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
Election of directors
To re-elect by way of separate resolutions, non-executive directors in terms of the provisions of article 28.2 of the
memorandum of incorporation (MoI) of the company. The following non-executive directors, each being eligible, offer
themselves for election:
3.1 PC Baloyi
3.2 Dr CE Manning
3.3 ACG Molusi
3.4 SS Ntsaluba
3.5 TA Tlelai
The re-election of the non-executive directors is to be voted on individually. Curricula vitae in respect of each director
offering themselves for re-election as directors of the company are set out on page 23 of the integrated annual report 2013.
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1.

Management review

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
Percentage of voting rights – ordinary resolutions
Ordinary resolutions number 1 to 6, contained in the notice of the AGM, require the approval of a minimum of 50% plus one vote
of the votes exercised on the resolutions by the shareholders present or represented by proxy at the AGM in order for the
resolution to be adopted. Ordinary resolution number 6 is proposed for a non-binding advisory vote only and any failure to pass
this resolution will not have an effect on the company’s existing arrangements, but the outcome of the vote will be taken into
consideration when considering the company’s remuneration policy.

Divisional review

If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take in respect of the following resolutions, please consult your Central
Securities Depository Participant (CSDP), broker, banker, attorney, accountant or other professional adviser immediately. Notice
is hereby given that the 29th annual general meeting (AGM) of shareholders of Basil Read will be held at 10:00 on Thursday,
26 June 2014 at Basil Read Campus, 7 Romeo Street, Hughes Extension, Boksburg, for the purpose of considering, and, if deemed
fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions set out hereafter. The board of directors of the company (the board) has
determined that, in terms of section 62(3)(a), as read with section 59 of the Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008), as amended,
the record date for the purposes of determining which shareholders of the company are entitled to participate in and vote at the
annual general meeting is Wednesday, 18 June 2014. Accordingly, the last day to trade in Basil Read shares in order to be recorded
in the register to be entitled to vote will be Wednesday, 11 June 2014.

Corporate
governance

BASIL READ HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
(Registration number: 1984/007758/06)
Share code: BSR ISIN: ZAE000029781
(“Basil Read” or “the company” or “the group”)

Group overview

Notice of annual general meeting

Notice of annual general meeting continued
4.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
Rotation of directors
To elect by way of separate resolution, non-executive directors retiring by rotation in terms of the provisions of article 28.8 of
the MoI of the company. The following non-executive directors retire by rotation:
4.1 SLL Peteni
4.2 CP Davies
4.3 NV Lila
SLL Peteni, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.
The re-election of the non-executive directors is to be voted on individually. Curricula vitae in respect of each director
offering themselves for re-election as directors of the company are set out on page 23 of the integrated annual report 2013.

5.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
Election of audit committee members
To elect, by way of separate resolutions, directors as members of the audit committee in terms of section 94 of the
Companies Act. The board has determined that each of the members standing for appointment possess the required
qualifications and experience as determined by the board. The following non-executive directors, each being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election:
5.1 SS Ntsaluba
5.2 PC Baloyi
The re-election of the non-executive directors is to be voted on individually. Curricula vitae in respect of each director
offering themselves for re-election as directors of the company are set out on page 23 of the integrated annual report 2013.

6.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6
Approval of remuneration policy
In accordance with Principle 2.27 of the King Code of Governance Principles for South Africa 2009 (King III), shareholder
approval is sought for the company’s remuneration policy by way of a non-binding advisory note. The non-binding vote enables
shareholders to express their views on the remuneration policy adopted by the company and on its implementation.
The detailed remuneration policy, for which approval is sought, is contained in the remuneration report on pages 100 to 103
of the integrated annual report to which this notice is attached.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Percentage of voting rights
Special resolutions number 1 to 2 contained in this notice of the AGM, require approval of a minimum of 75% of the votes
exercised on the resolution by the shareholders present or represented by proxy at the AGM in order for the resolution to be
adopted.
7.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
Remuneration of non-executive directors
Resolved that, in terms of the provisions of sections 66(8) and (9) of the Companies Act No 71 of 2008, as amended, and on
the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the company, the annual remuneration payable to the non-executive
directors of Basil Read Holdings Limited (the company) for their services as directors of the company for the financial year
ending 31 December 2014, be and is hereby approved as set out on page 132 of the integrated annual report to which this
notice is attached.
Reason and effect
The reason for special resolution number 1 is for the company to obtain approval of shareholders by way of special
resolution for the payment of remuneration to its non-executive directors in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act. The effect of special resolution number 1 is that the company will be able to pay its non-executive directors
for the services they render to the company as directors without requiring further shareholder approval until the annual
general meeting in 2015.
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OTHER BUSINESS
To transact such other business as may be transacted at the annual general meeting of the company.
Voting and proxies
Special resolutions to be adopted at this annual general meeting require approval from at least 75% (seventy-five percent) of
the votes exercised on such resolutions by shareholders present or represented by proxy at the meeting. Ordinary resolutions
to be adopted at this annual general meeting require approval from a simple majority, which is more than 50% (fifty percent),
unless specifically stated otherwise, of the votes exercised on such resolutions by shareholders present or represented by
proxy at the meeting.
A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and
act in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a member of the company. For the convenience of registered members of the
company, a form of proxy is attached hereto.
The attached form of proxy is only to be completed by those ordinary shareholders who:
▶▶ hold ordinary shares in certificated form; or
▶▶ are recorded on the sub-register in “own name” dematerialised form.

Group overview
Summarised financial and
shareholder information

9.

Management review

Notice to shareholders of the company in terms of section 45 of the Act of a resolution adopted by the board authorising the
company to provide such direct or indirect financial assistance:
(a) By the time that this notice of annual general meeting is delivered to shareholders, the board will have adopted a
resolution (the section 45 board resolution) authorising the company to provide, at any time from time to time during
the period of 2 (two) years commencing on the date on which the special resolution number 2 is adopted, any direct or
indirect financial assistance as contemplated in section 45 of the Act to any one or more related or inter-related
companies or corporations of the company and/or to any or more members of any such related or inter-related company
or corporation and/or to anyone or more persons related to any such company or corporation.
(b) The section 45 board resolution will be effective only if and to the extent that special resolution number 2 is adopted by
the shareholders of the company, and the provision of any such direct or indirect financial assistance by the company,
pursuant to such resolution, will always be subject to the board being satisfied that (i) immediately after providing such
financial assistance the company will satisfy the solvency and liquidity test as referred to in section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Act,
and that (ii) the terms under which such financial assistance is to be given are fair and reasonable to the company as
referred to in section 45(3)(b)(ii).
(c) In as much as the section 45 board resolution contemplates that such financial assistance will in the aggregate exceed
one-tenth of one percent of the company’s net worth at the date of adoption of such resolution, the company hereby
provides notice of the section 45 board resolution to shareholders of the company. Such notice will also be provided to
any trade union representing any employees of the company.

Divisional review

Reason and effect
The reason for special resolution number 2 is to grant the board authority to authorise the company to provide financial
assistance as contemplated in section 45 of the Companies Act to any one or more related or inter-related companies or
corporations of the company and/or to any more members of any such related or inter-related company or corporation
and/or to any one or more persons related to any such company or corporation.

Corporate
governance

SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Approval to the granting of financial assistance to related or inter-related companies and others
Resolved that to the extent required by the Companies Act, and subject to the provisions of, section 45 of the Companies Act
that the shareholders of the company hereby approve of the company providing, at any time and from time to time during the
period of 2 (two) years commencing on the date of this special resolution, any direct or indirect financial assistance (which
includes lending money, guaranteeing a loan or other obligation, and securing any debt or obligation) as contemplated in
section 45 of the Companies Act to a director or prescribed officer of the company, or to a related or inter-related company
or corporation or to a member of any of such related corporation or to a person related to any such company, corporation,
on such terms and conditions as the directors of the company from time to time for such purpose deem fit.

Sustainability
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Notice of annual general meeting continued

Ordinary shareholders who have dematerialised their ordinary shares through a CSDP or broker without “own name”
registration and who wish to attend the annual general meeting, must instruct their CSDP or broker to provide them with the
relevant letter of representation to attend the meeting in person or by proxy and vote. If they do not wish to attend in person
or by proxy, they must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the relevant custody agreement
entered into between them and the CSDP or broker.
Proxy forms should be forwarded to reach the transfer secretaries, Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd, at least
48 hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, before the time of the meeting.
Kindly note that meeting participants, which includes proxies, are required to provide reasonably satisfactory identification
before being entitled to attend or participate in a shareholders’ meeting. Forms of identification include valid identity
documents, driving licences and passports.

By order of the board

A Ndoni
Company secretary
26 May 2014
Boksburg
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Form of proxy
BASIL READ HOLDINGS LIMITED

Dematerialised ordinary shareholders holding ordinary shares other than with “own name” registration who wish to attend the annual general meeting must inform their
Central Securities Depository Participant (CSDP) or broker of their intention to attend the annual general meeting and request their CSDP or broker to issue them with
the relevant letter of representation to attend the annual general meeting in person or by proxy and vote. If they do not wish to attend the annual general meeting in
person or by proxy, they must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the relevant custody agreement entered into between them and
the CSDP or broker. These ordinary shareholders must not use this form of proxy.
Name of beneficial shareholder
Name of registered shareholder
Address
Telephone work

Telephone home

Cell

being the holder/custodian of

ordinary shares in the company, hereby appoint (see note):

1.

or failing him/her,

2.

or failing him/her,

3. the chairperson of the meeting,
as my/our proxy to attend and act for me/us on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the company convened for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit,
passing, with or without modification, the special and ordinary resolutions to be proposed thereat (resolutions) and at each postponement or adjournment thereof and
to vote for and/or against such resolutions, and/or abstain from voting, in respect of the ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the company registered in my/our
name/s in accordance with the following instructions:

3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Corporate
governance

2.

Ordinary resolution number 1
To receive, consider and adopt the annual financial statements of the company and group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013
Ordinary resolution number 2
To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc as auditors of the company together with Mr Faan Lombard for
the ensuing financial year
Ordinary resolution number 3
3.1 To confirm the appointment of Mr PC Baloyi as director of the company
3.2 To confirm the appointment of Dr CE Manning as director of the company
3.3 To confirm the appointment of Mr ACG Molusi as director of the company
3.4 To confirm the appointment of Mr SS Ntsaluba as director of the company
3.5 To confirm the appointment of Mr TA Tlelai as director of the company
Ordinary resolution number 4
4.1 To approve the re-election of SLL Peteni who retires by rotation
Ordinary resolution number 5
5.1 To approve the appointment of Mr SS Ntsaluba as member of the audit committee
5.2 To approve the appointment of Mr PC Baloyi as member of the audit committee
Ordinary resolution number 6
Approval of remuneration policy
Special resolution number 1
Approval of the non-executive directors’ remuneration for the financial year ending 31 December 2014
Special resolution number 2
Approval to grant financial assistance to related or inter-related companies and others

Number of ordinary shares
Against
Abstain

Sustainability

1.

For

Divisional review

For use only by ordinary shareholders who:
▶▶ hold ordinary shares in certificated form (certificated ordinary shareholders); or
▶▶ have dematerialised their ordinary shares (dematerialised ordinary shareholders) and are registered with “own name” registration,
at the 29th annual general meeting of shareholders of the company to be held at Basil Read Campus, 7 Romeo Street, Hughes Extension, Boksburg, at 10:00 on
Thursday, 26 June 2014 and any adjournment thereof.

Management review

Group overview

Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
(Registration number: 1984/007758/06
Share code: BSR ISIN: ZAE000029781
(“Basil Read” or “the company” or “the group”)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and act in his/her stead. A proxy so appointed need
not be a member of the company.
Signed at

on

2014

Signature
Assisted by (if applicable)
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Please indicate instructions to proxy in the space provided above by the insertion therein of the relevant number of votes exercisable.

Notes to the form of proxy

1.

The form of proxy must only be completed by shareholders who hold shares in certificated form or who are recorded on the sub-register in electronic form in
“own name”.

2.

All other beneficial owners who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker and wish to attend the annual general meeting must provide the
CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the relevant custody agreement entered into between them and the CSDP or broker.

3.

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternate proxies (none of whom
need be a shareholder of the company) of the shareholder’s choice in the space provided, with or without deleting “the chairperson of the meeting”. The person
whose name stands first on this form of proxy and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those
proxy/(ies) whose names follow. Should this space be left blank, the proxy will be exercised by the chairperson of the meeting.

4.

A shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and, on a poll, one vote in respect of each ordinary share held. A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy
must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by that shareholder in the appropriate space provided. If an “X” has been inserted
in one of the blocks to a particular resolution, it will indicate the voting of all the shares held by the shareholder concerned. Failure to comply with this will be
deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the shareholder’s votes
exercisable thereat. A shareholder or the proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholders or by the proxy, but the total of the votes cast
and in respect of which abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the shareholder or the proxy.

5.

A vote given in terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid in relation to the annual general meeting notwithstanding the death, insanity or other legal disability
of the person granting it, or the revocation of the proxy, or the transfer of the ordinary shares in respect of which the proxy is given, unless notice as to any of the
aforementioned matters shall have been received by the transfer secretaries not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the annual general meeting.

6.

If a shareholder does not indicate on this form that his/her proxy is to vote in favour of or against any resolution or to abstain from voting, or gives contradictory
instructions, or should any further resolution(s) or any amendment(s) which may properly be put before the annual general meeting be proposed, such proxy shall
be entitled to vote as he/she thinks fit.

7.

The chairperson of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received other than in compliance with
these notes.

8.

A shareholder’s authorisation to the proxy including the chairperson of the annual general meeting, to vote on such shareholder’s behalf, shall be deemed to
include the authority to vote on procedural matters at the annual general meeting.

9.

The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the annual general meeting and speaking and voting in
person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof.

10.

Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing the form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to this form of proxy, unless
previously recorded by the company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the annual general meeting.

11.

A minor or any other person under legal incapacity must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, as applicable, unless the relevant documents establishing his/her
capacity are produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries of the company.

12.

Where there are joint holders of ordinary shares:
▶▶ any one holder may sign the form of proxy; and
▶▶ the vote(s) of the senior ordinary shareholders (for that purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names of ordinary shareholders appear
in the company’s register of ordinary shareholders) who tenders a vote (whether in person or by proxy) will be accepted to the exclusion of the vote(s) of the
other joint shareholder(s).

13.

Forms of proxy should be lodged with or mailed to Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd:
Hand deliveries to:
Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd
13th floor
Rennie House
19 Ameshoff Street
Braamfontein

Postal deliveries to:
Link Market Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd
PO Box 4844
Johannesburg
2000

to be received by no later than 10:00 on Tuesday, 24 June 2014 (or 48 hours before any adjournment of the annual general meeting which date, if necessary, will
be notified on SENS).
14.

A deletion of any printed matter and the completion of any blank space need not be signed or initialled. Any alteration or correction must be signed and not
merely initialled.

Summary of the rights of a shareholder to be represented by proxy, as set out in section 58 of the Companies Act
A proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder appointing a proxy, and, subject to the rights of a shareholder to revoke such appointment
(as set out below), remains valid only until the end of the relevant shareholders’ meeting.
A proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of a shareholder to another person, subject to any restrictions set out in the instrument appointing
the proxy.
The appointment of a proxy is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder who appointed such proxy chooses to act directly and in person in the
exercise of any rights as a shareholder.
The appointment of a proxy is revocable by the shareholder in question cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a
copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the company. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s
authority to act on behalf of the shareholder as of the later of (a) the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any; and (b) the date on which the revocation
instrument is delivered to the company as required in the first sentence of this paragraph.
If the instrument appointing the proxy or proxies has been delivered to the company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice that is required by the
Companies Act or the company’s memorandum of incorporation to be delivered by the company to the shareholder, must be delivered by the company to (a) the
shareholder; or (b) the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has (i) directed the company to do so in writing; and (ii) paid any reasonable fee charged by the company for
doing so.
Attention is also drawn to the “Notes to the form of proxy”.
The completion of a form of proxy does not preclude any shareholder from attending the annual general meeting.
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